
C/CAG
Crry/Couxry AssocrATroN or GovnnNMENTS

oF SAN M¡.rno CouNry

AthertonoBelmontcBrisbanecBurlingameoColmaoDalyCity.EastpaloAlto.FosterCityoHalfMoonBaycHillsboroughcMenlopark
MillbraecPacirtca'PortolaValleyop¿¿*oodCitycsanBntnocsanCarlos.SdnMaleo.SanMatioCounty.gsu¡¡SanFrancßcoolqoodside

BOARD MEETING NOTICE

DATE:

TIME:

Meeting No. 208

Thursda¡ December 11, 2008

7:00 P.M. Board Meeting

PLACE: San Mateo County Transit District Office
1250 San Carlos Avenue, Second Floor Auditorium
San Carlos, CA

PARTilNG: Available adjacent to and behind building.
Please note the underground parking garageis no longer open.

PUBLIC TRANsrr: SamTrans Bus: Lines 261, 295, 297, 390, 39r, 3g7,px, Kx.
CalTrain: San Carlos Station.
Trip Plann er http:l ltransit. 5 1 1 .org

*********{<************ ********* l<******** *** *** ******x **************** *

1.0 CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CAIL

2.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Note: Public comment is limited to two minutes per speaker.

3.0 RESOLUTIONS OF APPRECIATION / PRESENTATIONS/ ANNOUNCEMENTS

3.1 Resolutions.

3.1.1 Review and approval Resolution 08-69 expressing appreciation to Judith Christianson,
Councilmember of the city of Daly City, for her years of dedicated service and contributions to
C/CAG. ACTION p. 1

3.2 Presentations.

3.2-l Presentation from the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) on Projections 2009.
INFORMATION

4.0 CONSENT AGENDA

555 conNrvcnNrnn, 50Fr-oon, REowooocrrv, cA 94063 Pnoue: 650.599.1420 Fp,x.:650.361.g227



Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be

no separate discussion on these items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific
items to be removedfor separate action

Review and approval of the Minutes of Regular Business Meeting No. 207 dated November 13, 2008.
ACTION p. 3

Review and approval of Resolution 08-63 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute the Memorandum

of Agreement for the Bi-County Area Planning and Design Study between the San Francisco County
Transportation Authorit¡ Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, San Mateo County Transportation

Authority, and C/CAG for planning and conceptual design work at the Bayshore [rtermodal Caltrain
Station and Geneva Avenue Extension for a total amount of $100,000 which includes an amount not
to exceed $25,000 from C/CAG. ACTION p. 9

4.3 Review and approval of Resolution 08-64 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute an amendment to

the agreement between the Cityl County Association of Govemments of San Mateo County and the

City of San Bruno for a six-month no-cost extension for the construction of a Sustainable Green

Streets and Parking Lot Project. ACTION p. 21

4.4 Review and approval of Resolution 08-62 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute an amendment to

the agreement between the City/ County Association of Governments of San Mateo County and

Advocation for State Legislative Advocacy professional services for a maximum amount of $76,000
per year. ACTION p. 27

Review and approval of Resolution 08-65 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute an amendment to

the agreement between the City/ County Association of Govemments (C/CAG) and Kimley-Hom for
the Smart Corridor Project for development of the system requirements and existing infrastructure

inventory for a maximum amount of $165,886. ACTION p. 31

4.1

4.2

4.5

4.6

4.7

Review and appointment of Councilmember Gina Papan from the City of Millbrae to the Congestion

Management and Environmental Quality (CMEQ) Committee. ACTION p. 4l

Review and approval of Resolution 08-66 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute an amendment to the

Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans for the Project ApprovaVEnvironmental Document (PA/ED) phase

of the San Mateo County Smart Corridors project in order to receive $367,000 programmed in CMAQ
funds. ACTION p. 43

NOTE: All items on tlte Consent Agenda are approved/accepted by a majority vote. A request must be made

at the beginning of the meeting to move any itemfrom the Consent Agenda to the Regular Agenda.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Pursuant to Government Code Sec. 54957):

Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Title: Executive Director

Conference with Labor Negotiators
C/CAG Representatives: Deborah Gordon, CiCAG Chair
Unrepresented Employee: Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director

5.0

5.1

5.2



5.3 Adjourn Closed Session.

6.0 RECONVENE OPEN SESSION

7.0 REGULAR AGENDA

7.1 Review and approval of C/CAG Legislative priorities, positions and Legislative update.
(A position may be taken on any legislation, including legislation not previously identified.)

7.lJ Review and approval of C/CAG Legislative Priorities for 2009. ACTION p. 47

7.I.2 LegislativeUpdate. INFORMATION

7.2 Status update on the implementation of the San Mateo County Smart Corridors Project.
INFORMATION p. 51

7.3 Review and approval of appointments to the C/CAG Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)
for two-year terms. ACTION p. 53

7.4 Review and approval of Resolution 08-68 adopting the Final San Mateo County Energy Strategy
(Energy Strategy) and request cities in San Mateo County to adopt the Energy Strategy and support
implementation of the Energy Strategy. ACTION p. 71

7.5 Review and approval of the C/CAG Quarterly Investment Report, Policy, and County of San Mateo
Pooled Investment Report. ACTION p. 79

7 .5.I Review and approval of the C/CAG Quarterly Investment Report as of September 30, 2008.
ACTION p. 81

7.5.2 Review and approval of Resolution 08-67 adopting the C/CAG Investment Policy for 2008-09.
(Special voting required) ACTION p. 85

7.5.3 Review of County Investment Pool and the Lehman Brothers Investment and Bankruptcy.
INFORMATION p. 113

8.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS

8.1 Committee Reports (oral reports).

8.2 Chairperson'sReport.

9.0 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

10.0 COMMUNICATIONS - Information Only

10.1 Letter from Deborah C. Gordon, C/CAG Chair, to all Councilpersons of San Mateo County Cities and

Members of the Board of Supervisors, dated llll3l08. Re: Vacancy on the Congestion Management and

555 couNry cnNrnn, 5'" FLooR, REDwooD crv, CA 94063 Pnows: 650.599.1420 F¡x:65Q.361 .8227



Environmental Quality Committee.

11.0 MEMBERCOMMUNICATIONS

12.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Pursuant to Government Code Sec. 54957):

l2.l Public Employee Compensation
Title: Executive Director

I2.2 Conference with Labor Negotiators
C/CAG Representatives: Deborah Gordon, C/CAG Chair
Unrepresented Employee: Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director

I2.3 Adjourn Closed Session.

13.0 RECONVENE OPEN SESSION

p.143

14.0 Review and approval of Executive Director Compensation and Performance Objectives for FY 08-09.

l4.l Approval of Amendment to the Agreement between the City/County Association of Governments
(C/CAG) and Richard Napier regarding compensation for services as Executive Director. ACTION

14.2 Review and approval of the Performance Objectives for FY 08-09 for the CitylCounty Association of
Governments (C/CAG) Executive Director. ACTION

I5.O ADJOURN

Next scheduled meeting: February 12,2009 Regular Board Meeting.

PUBLIC NOTICING: All notices of C/CAG Board and Committee meetings will be posted at

San Mateo County Transit District Office, 1250 San Carlos Ave., San Carlos, CA.

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular board meeting are available for
public inspection. Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are available for
public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members of the
Board. The Board has designated the Cityl County Association of Governments of San Mateo County
(C/CAG), located at 555 County Center, 5th Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063, for the purpose of making
those public records available for inspection. The documents are also available on the CiCAG Internet
'Website, 

at the link for agendas for upcoming meetings. The website is located at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov.

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who require auxiliary aids or sert¡ices in attending and participating in this meeting
should contact Nancy Blair at 650 599-1406, five working days prior to the meeting døte.

If you have any questions about the C/CAG Board Agenda, please contqct C/CAG Staff:



Executive Director: Richard Napier 650 599-1420 Administrative Assistant: Nancy Blair 650 599-1406

FUTURE MEETINGS

December 11, 2008 Legislative Committee - SamTrans 2nd Floor Auditorium - 5:30 p.m.

December 11, 2008 C/CAG Board - SamTrans 2nd Floor Auditorium - 7:00 p.m.

December 16, 2008 NPDES Technical Advisory Committee - to be determined - 10:00 a.m.

December 18, 2008 CMP Technical Advisory Committee - SamTrans 2"d Floor Auditorium - 1:15 p.m.

December 22,2008 CMEQ Committee - San Mateo Crty Hall - Conference Room C - 3:00 p.m.

January 13,2009 NPDES Technical Advisory Committee - to be determined - 10:00 a.m.

January 75,2009 CMP Technical Advisory Committee - SamTrans 2nd Floor Auditorium - 1:15 p.m.

January 22,2009 Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee - San Mateo City Hall - Conference

RoomC-7:00p.m.
January 26,2009 CMEQ Committee - San Mateo City Hall - Conference Room C - 3:00 p.m.

February 2,2OOg Administrators' Advisory Committee - 555 County Center, 5ü Fl, Redwood City - Noon

555 couNry cn¡rcn, 5frFt-oon, REDwooD crry, CA 94063 PHot¡s: 650.599.1420 Fp¿:.650.361.8227



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

CICAG AGENDA REPORT

December 11, 2008

C/CAG Board of Directors

Richard Napier, Executive Director

Review and approval of Resolution 08-69 expressing appreciation to Judith
Christensen, Council Member of the City of Daly City, for her years of dedicated
service and contributions to C/CAG.

(For further information contact Richard Napier at 599-1420)

RECOMMENDATION

That the C/CAG Board adopt Resolution 08-ó9 honoring Judith Christensen for her years of
dedicated service and contributions to C/CAG.

FISCAL IMPACT

Not applicable.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Not applicable.

BACKGROUND/DISCUS SION

Judith Christensen has contributed years of dedicated public service in San Mateo County. She
has served as a Council Member for the City of Daly City. She has also provided leadership to
C/CAG as a Board of Directors member, Congestion Management and Environmental Quality
(CMEQ) Committee member, Legislative Committee member and Sub-Regional Housing Needs
Allocation Policy Advisory Committee member. Judith Christensen has been a real asset to
C/CAG and her contributions have been appreciated.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution 08-69

ITEM 3.1.1



CICAG
Crrv/CouNTy AssocIATtoN or GovPRNMENTS

or Sax M,lreo Couxrv

Atherton¡BelmontcBrisbanecBurlingameoColmaoDalyCityoMenloParkcFosterCityt¡¡o¡TroonBayoHillsborough
MenloParkcMillbraeoPacirtca¡PortolaValleycRedwoodCityoSorBruno¡SanCarlosoSanMaleooSanMateoCounty

South San Francisco t lI/oodside

RrsolurloN 08-69
************

A RnsolurloN oF THE Bo¡,ru oF DIRECToRS oF THE

Cnv/CouNrY Assocu.TroN oF GovERNMENTS oF

S¡.N Mnrno CouNrY (C/CAG) ExrnnsslNc AppnncrArloN ro
JUnrrn CnnrSrENSEN, COUNCTL MEMBER FOR Crrv OF DALY CIIY,

FoR HER I)NNTC¿.TED SERVICE TO C/CAG
******rrr(********

Resolved, by the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of
Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) , thaL,

Whereas, Judith Christensen has served on the C/CAG Board of Directors,

representing the City of Daly Cify, from 2005 through 2008; and,

Whereas, Judith Christensen has served on the C/CAG Congestion Management

and Environmental Quality (CMEQ) Committee from February of 2005 through

December of 2008:- and,

Whereas, Judith Christensen has served on the C/CAG Legislative Committee,

from February of 2006 through December of 2008; and,

Whereas, Judith Christensen has also served on the Sub-Regional Housing

Needs Allocation Policy Advisory Committee; and,

Whereas, during that time, Judith Christensen, dedicated her services to the

people of San Mateo County through her active participation on the C/CAG Board of
Directors, CMEQ, Legislative Committee and Sub-Regional Housing Needs

Allocation Policy Advisory Committee.

Now, therefore, the Board of Directors of C/CAG hereby resolves that C/CAG

expresses its appreciation to Judith Christensen for her years of dedicated public

service, and wishes her happiness and success in the future.

PaSSno, AppRO\lED, AND ADOPTED THIS 11'" lly OF DECEMBER, 2008.

Deborah C. Gordon, Chaír



C/CAG
Crrv/Couxry AssocnrloN ox' GovrnNprpr.rus

o¡'S¡,n Marno CouNrv

AthertonoBelmontoBrisbaneoBurlingame¡Colma.DalyCity¡EastPaIoAltocFosterCit!oHalfMoonBay.Hillsborough¡MenloPark
Millbrae¡PaafcaoPorlolaValleyc¡¡s¿*t.dCityoSonBrunocSanCarlosoSanMateooSanMateoCountycSouthSanFranciscocl4/oodside

Meeting No. 207
November 13,2008

1.0 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

Chair Gordon called the meeting to order at 7',00 p.m. Roll Call was taken.

Jerry Carlson - Atherton
Sepi Richardson - Brisbane
Joseph Silva - Colma
Judith Christensen - Daly City
Rosalie O'Mahony - Burlingame, San Mateo County Transportation Authority
Linda Koelling - Foster City
Bonnie McClung - Half Moon Bay
Tom Kasten - Hillsborough
Kelly Ferguson - Menlo Park (7:08)
Paul Seto - Millbrae
Julie Lancelle - Pacifica (7.05)
Diane Howard - Redwood City
Irene O'Connell - San Bruno
Bob Grassilli - San Carlos
Carole Groom - San Mateo
Karyl Matsumoto - South San Francisco, San Mateo County Transit District
Rose Jacobs-Gbson - County of San Mateo
Deborah Gordon - Woodside

Absent:
Belmont
East Palo Alto
Portola Valley

Others:

Richard Napier, Executive Director - CiCAG
Nancy Blair, C/CAG Staff
Sandy'Wong, Deputy Director - C/CAG
Lee Thompson, C/CAG -Legal Counsel
Tom Madalena, C/CAG Staff
John Hoang, C/CAG Staff
Jean Higaki, C/CAG Staff
Dave Carbone, C/CAG Staff
Joe Kott, C/CAG Staff
Jim Bigelow, Redwood City/San Mateo County Chamber, CI\4EQ Member

ITEM 4.1

555couvryceurpn,5oFloon,R¡¡wooocrrv,CA94063 Pnor'rs: 650599.7420 Fpx:650.3678227



Onnalee Trapp, CA/ßQ Committee, League of Women Voters of San Mateo County
Jerry Grace, Union City
Pat Giorni, Burlingame

2.0 PT'BLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Pat Gorni
Jerry Grace

C/CAG's Executive Director introduced C/CAG's new staffmember, Joseph Kott. Mr. Kott's
position is C/CAG's Transportation Systems Coordinator.

C/CAG Executive Director invited the Board to a Green Business luncheon sponsored by the
County of San Mateo.

3 O RESOLUTIONS OF APPRECIATION / PRESENTATIONS/ ANNOUNCEMENTS

3.1 Review and approval of Resolutions of appreciation.

3.1.1 Review and approval of Resolution 08-54 expressing appreciation to David Alfano for his

dedicated service to the C/CAG Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee. APPROVED

Board Member Richardson MOVED approval of Item 3. 1. 1. Board Member O'Connell
SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 18-O

3.I.2 Review and approval of Resolution 08-58 expressing appreciation to Ralph Jack, City Manager
of the City of Millbrae, for his years of dedicated services. APPROVED

Board Member Richardson MOVED approval of Item 3.7.2. Board Member Christensen

SECONDED MOTION CARRIED 18-0.

3.2 Presentations.

3.2.I Update on activities/operations at San Francisco International Airport - presentation by
Michael McCarron, Director, Bureau of Community Affairs, San Francisco International
Airport. INFORMATION

Jerry Grace

3.2.2 Presentation on the Strategic Plan for the San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans).
(Materials will be provided under a separate cover for Board Members and Alternates only.)

INFORN4A-TION

Todd Mclntire, SamTrans, provided a presentation and answered questions.

40 CONSENT AGENDA

Board Member Howard MOVED approval of Consent Items 4.2,4.3,4.6, and 4.7. Board
Member O'Mahony SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 18-0.



4.2 Review and approval of Resolution 08-53 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute Amendment
No. I to Agreement between Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and the
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County for planning assistance for the
Daly City Community-Based Transportation Plan, APPROVED

4.3 Review and approval of the program policy and issue of a call for projects for the
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 Bicycle and Pedestrian FY 2009110 Program.

APPROVED

4 6 Review and approval of Resolution 08-57 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute a funding
agreement between the City/County Association of Governments and the Town of Colma
regarding the payment of $135,000 in local funds from the "D" Street pedestrian enhancement
project, and further authorizing the Executive Director to make minor changes to the agreement

APPROVED

4.7 Review and approval of Resolution 08-60 approving the list projects to be funded by the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) under the Lifeline Transportation Program for
a total amount of $1,925,721. APPROVED

Items 4.1, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.8 were removed from the Consent Calendar.

4 7 Review and approval of the Minutes of Regular Business Meeting No. 206 dated October
9,2008. APPROVED

Minutes were corrected to show C/CAG Board Alternate Mullooly represented the Town of
Hillsborough, and not Board Member Kasten.

Board Member Kasten MOVED approval of Item 4.1. Board Member O'Connell SECONDED
MOTION CARRIED 18-0.

4 4 Review and appointment of four members to the Congestion Management Program (Cl\æ)
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), APPRO\aED

Board Member Richardson MOVED approval of Item 4.4 including the addition of a member
for the Peninsula Congestion Relief Alliance. Board Member Lancelle SECONDED.
MOTION CARRMD 18-O

4.5 Review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report as of March 31, 2008, the Quarterly
Investment Report as of June 30, 2008, and the Quarterly Investment Report as of September
30,2008. APPROVED

Board Member Kasten requested that the Quarterly Reports be provided on a more timely basis.

Board Member Kasten MOVED approval of Item 4.1. Board Member Richardson
SECONDED MOTION CARRIED 18-O

555colrNrycENrsn,5oFlooll,Rrpwooocrry,CA94063 Pnowe: 650.599.1420 ftx:650.367.8227

5



4.8 Review and approval of 2009 C/CAG Board Calendar. APPROVED

The meeting scheduled for April falls on a religious holiday.

Board Member Grassilli MOVED to amend the2009 C/CAG calendar by moving the April
Board meeting either one week before or one week after. Board Member Kasten SECONDED.
MOTION CARRIED 14-4,

5 O REGULARAGENDA

5.1 Status Report on the State Legislative Session. APPROVED
(A position may be taken on any legislation, including legislation not previously identified.)

Advocation's team (Gus Khouri and Andrew Antwi) provided a presentation about the activity
in Sacramento, and answered questions.

5.2 Status update on the implementation of the San Mateo County Smart Corridors Project.
INFORMATION

Sandy Wong, C/CAG Deputy Director, provided an update on the Smart Corridor Project.

5.3 Public Hearing to consider the approval of Resolution 08-55 adopting a program, budget,
performance measures , and a $4 (four dollars) fee on motor vehicle registered in San Mateo
County as authorized by the amended California Government Code Section 65089.11 et. seq.

(Special voting procedures apply ) APPROVED

Jim Bigelow
Jerry Grace

Board Member Jacobs-Gbson MOVED to close the public hearing. Board Member O'Connell
SECONDED MOTION CARRIED 18-0.

Board Member Christensen MOVED approval of Item 5.3. Board Member Groom
SECONDED MOTION CARRIED 18-0,

6 O COMMITTEE REPORTS

6.1 Committee Reports (oral reports).

6.2 Chairperson's Report.

None.

7.0 E)GCUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

None.



8.0 COMMLINICATIONS - Information Only

Copies of communications are included for C/CAG Board Members and Alternates only. To
request a copy of the communications, contact Nancy Blair at 650 5991406 or
nblair@co.sanmateo.ca.us or download a copy from C/CAG's website - www.ccag.ca.gov.

8.1 Lette¡ from Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director, to Honorable Joseph C. Scott, Judge
of the Superior Court, dated 10116108. Re: Response to Grand Jury Report on the Future of
Trash Management in San Mateo County.

8.2 Let|er from Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director, to Honorable foseph C. Scott, Judge
of the Superior Court, dated 10/16/08 Re: Response to Grand Jury Report on Energy
Conservation Activities in San Mateo County.

9 O MEMBER COMMLINICATIONS

Board Member O'Mahony invited the C/CAG Board to attend the Pedestrian/ Bicycle overpass
etc etc.

This was Board Member Christensen's last C/CAG Board meeting. The Board thanked Judith
for her years of dedicated service, and wished her success.

10,0 ADOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Closed Session Cancelled)

10.1 Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Pursuant to Government Code Sec. 54957)

Title: Executive Director

11 0 RECONVENE OPEN SESSION

I2.O ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 9:30 p.m.

555 couNrv cn¡neR, 5oFLooR, R¡owooo crrv, CA 94063 Pnow¡: 650 599 1420 F¡x: 650 36I.8227

T





Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

CICAGAGENDA REPORT

December 11, 2008

CitylCounty Association of Governments Board of Directors

Richard Napier, Executive Director

Review and approval of Resolution 08-63 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute the
Memorandum of Agreement for the Bi-County Area Planning and Design Study
between the San Francisco County Transportation Authority, Peninsula Corridor Joint
Powers Board, San Mateo County Transportation Authority, and C/CAG for planning
and conceptual design work at the Bayshore Intermodal Caltrain Station and Geneva
Avenue Extension for a total amount of $100,000 which includes an amount not to
exceed $25,000 from C/CAG

(For further information contact John Hoangat363-4105)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board Review and approval of Resolution 08-63 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute the
Memorandum of Agreement for the Bi-County Area Planning and Design Study between the San
Francisco County Transportation Authority, Peninsula Corridor JointPowers Board, San Mateo County
Transportation Authority, and C/CAG for planning and conceptual design work at the Bayshore
Intermodal Caltrain Station and Geneva Avenue Extension for a total amount of $100,000 which
includes an amount not to exceed $25,000 from C/CAG.

F'ISCAL IMPACT

Not to exceed $25,000.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Funding for this project was budgeted in the FY 2008109 Congestion Management Fund.

BACKGROUNDIDIS CUSSION

The Bi-County area, defined as the northeasternportion of SanMateo County including land underthe
City of Brisbane's jurisdiction and the southeastern portion of the City/County of San Francisco, is
expected to undergo transformative development in the coming years. The San Francisco County
Transportation Authority (SFCTA) applied for and received a grant from the Metropolitan

ITEM 4.2



Transportation Commission's StationAreaPlaruring grantprogramto leadthe Bi-CountyAreaPlanning
and Design Study. The study's aim is to build consensus on the design of two particular transportation

facilities that will connect the surrounding community with local and regional transit services: Bayshore

Intermodal Station and Geneva Avenue extension to a rebuilt US 1Ol/Candlestick interchange and

Harney Way.

These projects have already been identified as critical transportation needs in the area. The next step is

to develop conceptual designs that achieve consensus among the multiple stakeholders, including
agencies from San Francisco and San Mateo County. The expected outcome of the study is a set of
agreed-upon conceptual designs for the Bayshore lntermodal Station, its station area, and Geneva

Avenue extension, US 101 interchange, and rebuilt Hamey Way.

The total cost of the Study is expected to be approximately $300,000, of which MTC has awarded

SFCTA$200,000. ByagreementwithMTC,theamountoflocalmatchforthestudyis$100,000. The

SFCTA, C/CAG, Peninsula Joint Powers Board (Caltrain), and San Mateo County Transportation

Authority (SMCTA) has agreed to providing a portion of the local match. The distribution of the

$100,000localmatch is as follows:

Agency

SFCTA

C/CAG

Caltztn

SMCTA

Total

Amount

$45,ooo

$25,000

$15,000

$15,000

$100,000

It is requested that authorization be given to the Executive Director to negotiate the Memorandum of
Agreement terms, as needed, subject to approval by the C/CAG Legal Counsel, and provide the C/CAG
Chair final recommendations prior to execution of this agreement.

ATTACIIMENT

' Bi-County Area Planning and Design Study Scope of V/ork
. Resolution 08-63

1.ø



Bi-County Area Planning and Design Study
Scope of Wotk

November 21,2008

Introduction

The Bi-CounBJ are , defined as the southeastetn portion of the city atound Execudve Patk,
Candlestick Potnt, and Visitacion Valley, and including land undet the City of Brisbane's
junsdiction, is expected to undergo transformadve development in the coming yeats. Several
land use proposals in various stages of planning envision placing over 18,000 new housing
units and 15 milhon square feet of employmentin this atea.

Enhancrng the transportation lnfrastructure will be of critical importance to transformrng it
ftom an industdal expanse lnto a cluster of new smart gtowth neighborhoods. From a
transportation standpoint, the âreâ currently suffers ftom poor pedestrian desig!, lack of
attracdve ffansit service, and low connectivity between neighborhoods and to key transit
facilities.

The San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Authority) will lead the Bi-County
,\tea Planning and Desþ Study to build consensus on how to enhance two key
transportation faciliúes that will connect the suttoundrng community with local and regional
ttansit services and will thetefore be important places to focus attention to pedestrian and
transit accessibrlity: Bayshote Intermodal Station and Geneva Avenue f Harneylülay.

B ay h ore I n te rrno d a / S tatio n

Slated to become a transfer centel for Caltrain, Muni Thlrd Street l-tght Rail, and a new
Geneva/Harney Bus Rapid Transit service, the Bayshore Intermodal Station will not only
need to serve seamless transit ttansfers but also become a key pedesftian focal pornt of the
new neighbothoods. The study will answer sevetal key questions, including:

The optimal location of the Bayshore station

How the Muni Third Street Light Rail hne and Bus Rapid Transit line will coffiect at
Bayshore stad.on (including Geneva Avenue itself, and issues relating to the Geneva-
Candlestick US 1 01 tnterchange re-configuration)

How the area immediately surtounding Bayshore station will be desþed for optimal
pedesftian and bicycle connectivity, both to the nofih and south of the station, and
identification of key pedestrian and bicycle connectivity options to the station from
these existing and planned communid.es

What Calttain service plans and bus feeder service would best serve the area's future
land uses in the Bdsbane Baylands and Visitacion Valley

!7hat types of Transportation Demand Management effotts and policies would best
support altetnative-mode travel in the are

1of 8

LL



Ceneua Auenae and Hamel Val
Thrs new local street is composed of an extension of Geneva Avenue eastward over the
Caltatn tracks and US 101, whete it becomes Harney Way and extends lnto the Candlesuck
Point area. The street will be a crucial connection from the planned communittes to each
other and the Bayshore Intermodal Statron described above. It will feature exclusive bus
rapid ttansit lanes to support tegional transit connectrvity, in additron to moving vehrcle
úaffic to and fron;'a re-configuted interchange of US 1,01, at Candlestick Point. There are
also demands on the street to accommodate alLmodes: pedestrians, bicyclì.sts, vehicles, and
bus rapid transit.

The three projects - the Geneva Avenue Extension, the interchange re-configuradon, and
the Harney \X/ay re-burld - are moving forwatd separately but because there is a close
relationshrp among them, there is a need for continued joint planning and ovetarching
cootdination on desþ. The study will aim to build conseflsus around an overall vision for
the stteet's functions, layouts, alignments and gtades that strikes an optimal balance among
the needs and goals of each agency and mode.

The study will retain a consultant to provide the expertise and services required to carry out
the study tasks. The study will t^rget a contractor with the following skill set urban desþ;
ttansportation inftastructure desþ; pedestdan, bicycle, and transit planning; transportadon
engrneering; and ptofessional meeting facilitation. The last skill is supremely important as the
success of this study wrll hinge on its ability to build consensus around the key questions and
issues identlfied above.

Inter- Otga niz ational C o ordination and O utre a ch

-An inter-agency Steering Coinmrttee will convene to rìirect the study's work. This Steering
Committee will consist of funding agencies, including the San Francisco County
Ttansportation -,\uthodty, the City and County Âssociation of Governments of San Mateo
County, the Peninsula Joint Powets Board, the San Mateo County Transit District and the
San Mateo Transportation Authodty.

The Study will also ttili2s the rnput and guidance of a technical working group composed of
key stakeholders and lead agencies for the related projects. Multiple agencies have a stake
here: llatneyWay is in San Francisco, while the Geneva,kenue Extension is in Brisbane,
and the Caltfortia' Depattment of Ttanspottation has jurisdrction over the jnterchange; bus
service in the atea is provided by SamTrans and Muni; Caltain operates the commutet rail
Ilne which stops at Bayshore Intermodal Stadon, and Muni operâtes the T-Third ìight rail
Lne that wtll potentially connect to Bayshore Station. Âll agencies will be invited to inter-

^geflcy 
discussions about desigmng these new connectlons.

To mcotporate pubJic input, the Study will conduct workshops to facilitate discussion of key
desþ issues and concepts with the commuruty. More detail is provided under Task2 below.

2ofB

IZ



Related Activities

There are several relevant recent and ongoing activines that ate alteady being conducted
outside tlus Study and that address the planning elements stipulated by the MTC Stanon
,{rea Pianmng Grant program. These activities ate descnbed below.

Bi s b ane B a/an ds P lanning Pro ce ss

The large Brisbane Baylands site, which surtounds the Bayshore Intetmodal Stauon, is
undergomg a multr-year planning process that will result rn approvals for development on
this currently va.c nt brownfield site. In 2006, the City of Brisbane accepted for processing a

Brisbane Brylands Plta:e I Specifc Plan from the potential developer, Universal Paragon
Corporation (JPC). This plan defined a land use plogram with commercial uses, a

circulation plan, a site plan, and an open space plan. Since then, the crty and UPC have been

conducting additional activities to solicit public hpnt, revise the land use plan and undertake
environmental review of the land use changes. One of the alternatives under consideration
for furthet environmental anaþsis lncludes housmg.

Visitacion Valle-y / Schlage I-tck PlanningProcess

This planning area, dttsçtfy to the northwest of the Bayshore Intermodal Station, is the focus
of a planning process that aims to convert a brownfields site into a mixed-use tesidential and
commetcial neighborhood. This process, led by the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency
and the San Francisco Planning Department, included a series of community workshops,
resulting n a De:ign þr Deuelopruenl document in 2008. This document outlines the vision and

goals for the area and provides the urban desþ framewotk, includrng aland use pÍogram
and regulations stipulating urban form, building design, and public reakn design.
Development controls include parkrng supply and demand management strategies, such as

maximum allowable parkrng rates. The environmental review process for these changes is

underway, with a draft Environmental Impact Report released rn summer 2008.

E xe ca îiae P ør,k P lann i ng P ro ce ss

The Executive Park area, directly to the nottheast of the Baylands site and encompassing the
Harney Way coridor, is also undergoing a planmng process. The San Francisco Planmng
Department released a draft Execatiue Park Subarea Plan n 2006. The plan developed policies
for urban desþ and circulation that support mrxed use and high-density housing. It
includes desþ guidelines for streets and buildings, a circulation plan, a pedestrian netwotk
and public open space plan, street secdons, and parking desþ gurdelines. The Planmng
Department is conducting public outreach and environmental review of that plan.

Bayìew (Candlestick Poinr and Hunîers Poinl Shtpltørd) PlanningProcess

The Bayview development proposal, includrng the Candlestick Point and llunters Point
Shipyard planning ateas, represents alarge portion of the proposed development in this area.

Tlrrs work is a collaboration among the San Ftancisco Planmng Department, the San

Francisco Redevelopment Agency, the San Ftancisco Mayor's Office, and Lennar, the
potential developer. The comprehensive planning plocess for Bayview includes a

Transþortation Plan to add¡ess the multi-modal needs of the proposed development. Thrs
process will include envitonmental revieuz and cleatance of several transportation projects,
including the te-build of Harney \Vay. In addition, the plan descdbes transit service changes
and parking supply and demand management strategles.

3 of 8

1.3



B i-C oan fl Tran sp ortation S tu$t
In partnership with agencies in San Francisco and San Mateo counties, the San Francisco
County Transportation -A.uthority is leadin g an effofi to prioritize and fund regional-scale
transportation investments in the atea. This study aims to achieve consensus on the llghest-
pdority regional ftansportation facilities needed to support proposed land use growth.
Individual transpottation ptojects will move forward through design under theit own
processes; t}ns study is intended to develop multi-jurisdictional consensus on regional
pdorities so that the pattners can pursue local, regional, state, federal, and private funding
sources. To that end, the study will develop cost estimates and a funding and
implementatron plan for the selected priority projects. The study also ptovides a mechanism
for regulat inter-agency coordinatiori âcross the land use and transportation projects
occurring in the atea.

Given all the planning activities in th,rs area, the Bi-County Area Planning and Design Study
seeks to bdng focus to the key multimodal ttanspottation facilities that travetse and overlap
with the above-mentioned discreet land use planning ateas. rùØhjle each separate plan gives
attention to transportation and circulation fot its area, there remains a need for an

ovetarching planning effort that coordinates multimodal access and circulation around the
key transit facrlities desctibed above - namely, Bayshore Intetmodal Statton and Geneva
Avenue/H atney Way. These faohties wilI be the focus of this Study's planmng and desþ
effotts.

Study Tasks

l. Project Iniriation, IYorkplan, and OngoingManagemenl

The consultant will review and finaltze the project scope of work, including clarifyrng
and detailing individual tasks, further defining work products, and establishing a project
schedule with work product deLvery dates. This task also provides fot ongoing project
mânagement thtoughout the course of the pro1ect.

Deliverables:
Re{ined Scope, Schedule, and Budget

Project management, including reports and meedngs as needed

1,.1,

t.2

2. CommanicaTion and Oatreacb Plan and Actiuities
The consultant will prepare a communication and outreach plan that descdbes key
stakeholders withrn the community and stakeholder agencies that the Study will aim to
reach, and the strategies that will be employed to reach them as the Study develops its
work products. Fot incotpotatìng community input, the consultant will prepare materials
fot and conduct a Community'Uflorkshop to discuss desþ issues and concepts for the
Bayshote Intermodal Station and GenevafHarney. For staff from the stakeholder
agencies, the consultant will conduct multrple desþ cootdination meetings. The plan
will also include methods for noncing of meetings and othet communications needed to
inform and incorporate rnput from stakeholders.

4ofB

14



This task provides fot the community involvement that will be necessary to build
consensus on the visioning and coordination processes described in Tasks 4 and 5. The
outreach effotts will educate the community and seek input on the issues and projects
being conceptualized. The consultant will conduct community workshops to solicit rnput
on both ttansportadon facilrties, as well as support the Authority in making presentations
at other community venues. This scope ptovides fot two community workshops.

Deliverables:
2.1 Communication and Outreach Plan

2.2 Two Community \)Torkshops, includrng materials preparation and summary
notes

2.3 Interagency design coordination meetings, materials and summaries

3. Document Existing CondiTions, Need4 and Plans

The study will compile the significant existing informatron about the condition of the
areâ's transportation system and potential effects of proposed development. Areas of
focus will include: pedestrian dght-of-way and crossing conditíons, highest-demand
pedestrian connections, key bicycle network connections, local bus service, express bus
sewice, rail service, and existing and proposed local street netwotks.

I(nown documents and projects that the study will draw upon lnclude:

' Bayview (Candlestick Point / Hunters Point Shipyard) Transportation Plan - SF
Planning

' Visitacion Valley / Schlage Lock Desþ for Development and Draft
Environmental Impact Report - SF Redevelopment Agency

' Bdsbane Baylands Phase 1 Specifrc Plan and Community Input on Alternatives -
City of Bdsbane

¡ Geneva 'A.venue / Candlestick Polnt Interchange Project Study Report -Tra:ffic
Operational Analysis Repot - City of Brisbane

. Muni T-Third Lrght Rail Segment'S' Conceptual Engineering Report - SF
Municþal Transportation Agency (SFMT,A.)

r Bayview Community-Based Transportation Plan - SamTrans

r Bay'view Transportation Imptovement Project - SF Department of Public lùØorks

r Transit Effeclveness Ptoject - SFMTA

¡ Geneva Ttansit Preferendai Streets Ptoject - SFMTA

¡ San Francisco Bicycle Plan - SFMTA

The study will augment with new informadon through selected field visits as needed.

Deliverable: 3.1 Access and Circulation Needs and Condrtrons Assessment

5 of 8

L5



4. Conduct BEshore Slaîion Planning and Design

Thtee related components will proceed concurtently as below.

4.1 Station Ârea Access and Intetmodal Transit Transfer \¡isioning and Desþ
This subtask focuses on two topics: how the various connecting transit services will
interact with each other at Bayshore Caltatn Station; and how transit users will be able

to access the station by foot and bike. Attention will also be given to how patking will be

handled.

The study will conduct a conceptual design process guided by a technical working group
consisting of representatives for SFCTA, Calúain, Muni, SamTrans, Brisbane, and San

Francisco. The process will seek agreement on ân overall vision for how the diffetent
transit modes will access the station and how the station will relate to surtounding land
uses, including conceptual plans, profile drawings, and other methods for illustrating the
vision. For adjacent land uses still under development, this subtask will define gurdelines

for how those land uses should be desþed to support the station atea vision. Whie the
study does not call for engineering design, this task includes a conceptual engineering
review to ensure that the designs undet considetadon are feasible. The consultant will
conduct multiple rounds of conceptual desþ work to explore alternatives with
successive refinements and targeted analysis to answer desþ questions that arise. The
study will also seek a consultant with demonstrable facilitation sklls to ensuÍe effectrve
discussions.

4.2 Conceptual Service Analysis and Pianning
This task will explore service options for local feeder service and regional tansit service

from the perspective of future user demand. To the firllest extent possible, this task will
rely on work and concepts ùrczdy developed, including the Transit Effectiveness Project
and the Hamey BRT ptoject.

This task will rnciude Community \Totkshops to gather community rnput on design
issues and concepts (see Task2).

Deliverables:
4.1 Vision document for Bayshore Intermodal Station, including conceptual desþs
þlan and profile drawings) and other visual illustrations of the agreed-upon vision

4.2 Conceptual service recommendations for key idenafred üansit services

Sapþort and CoordinaTe Geneua, Ha.rnry Processes For Ouerall Vision

In this task, the study will convene a technical workrng group thatmay include the same

representatives as those rn Task 4, but with modrficadons necessary to ensure proper
representation of all issues pertarning to the Geneva ,A.venue Extension andHarney Way
Re-Build. For example, the CaJrforrua Department of Transportation will need to be

involved in the desþ discussion. The study will conduct a visioning process that seeks

agÍeement on conceptual desþs for the alignments, grades, ctoss secdons, and
intersections of the ne.w street. The process will seek to accoÍrmodate pedesftian,
bicycle, vehicle, and bus transit travel modes. The study will pror.nde fot any anaþsis
required by desþ questions that arise, rncludrng questions of altetnative routing or key

6 of 8

16



6.

connections that should be improved. \X/hile the study does not call for engrneering
desþ, this task includes a conceptual engineering review to ensure that the designs
under consideration are feasible. The budget again provides for muluple rounds of
design work to explore options.

One key point of coordination will be with the Geneva-Candlestick Interchange re-
conf,gutation project. That ptoject is currently in its Project Study Report (PSR) phase
and expects to entet a detailed desþ phase after the PSR is completed. The re-
configutadon will place desþ constraints on both sides of US 101 that will need to be
considered.

This task will include Community 1üTorkshops to gather community input on desþ
issues and concepts (see Task 2).

Deliverable:5.1 GenevafHarney Vision documentincludingillusttadons of the agteed-
upon vision and desctþtions of key connections to be improved.

CreaTe Funding and Imþlemenlation SÍrategy

The Authority's curently ongoing Bi-County Ttansportation Study will deveiop a

funding plan for the ptojects in this study. This study will define an rmplementation
strategy fot the Bayshore Intetmodal Station and Genevaf Harney visions, rncluding
steps, agency roles, and coordination needed to move the ptojects into environmental
analysis, engineering design, and construction.

Deliverable: 6.1 Funding and Implementation Stategy

CreaTe Drøft and Final Reports

The study will incorpoøte alL priot work into reports for Bayshote and GenevafHarney.
The repotts will lnclude summaries of the key needs, the process for developing the
visions, the visions themselves, and the funding and implementadon strategies.

Delivetable:7 .1. Draft and Final Reports for Bayshore Station and Genevaf Harney

7 of 8

T7

7.



Deliverables Budget and Schedule

Task Deliverables
MTC Recipient

Contribution Contribution Total Cost
Completion

Date

Project initiation, workplan, and ongoing management

1.1 Refined scope, schedule, and budget
1.2 Ongoing proiect manaqement

$

$

$

$

$

$

4,1,1,7

3.21,9

2,055

1,.601

6,1,73 lat-09
4.827 Mar-10

2 Communication and outreach

2.1 Communication and outreach plan
2.2 Tw o community u'orkshops
2.3 Intengency design coordi¡ation meetirtgs

$

$

$

s

$

$

) 7))
1,"1,722

17.522

1,,1,59

5,852

8.748

3,481 Feb-09

1,7 ,514 Sep-09

26,269 Sep-09

$

$

$

3 Document existing conditions, needs, plans

3,1 Needs aod conditions assessment ff 1,3,249 $ 0,0tS $ 19,864 Àpr-09

4 Conduct Bayshore Station conceptual planning and desþ
4.1 Station and access vision and conceptual desþ
4.2 Servtce analysis and plan

$

$

23,341

5,796

70,092 Sep-09

17,405 Sep-09

$

$

46,152

1,1,609

$

$

5 Support Geneva Âvenue f }Ia;.ney VTay process

5.1 Geneva,/Hamey vision and conceptual design fi qZ,SSq fi 21,,759 ff 65,344 Nov-09

6 Create funding and implementation strategy

6.1 Funding and implementation stfategy $ 8,834 fi 4.41,7 fi 13.245 Dec-09

7 Create draft and final reports

7.'1, Drz:ft and fìnal reports fi 16,097 $ 8,037 fi 24.1.34 Mar-10
11olo Contingency $ 19.693 $ 9.832 fi 29.525

Totals $ 198,720 $ 99,271 $ 297,932

8 of 8

1.8



RESOLUTION 08.63

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY/COUNTY
ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY (C/CAG)

AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR
THE BI.COUNTY AREA PLANNING AN.D DESIGN STUDY BETWEEN THE SAN

FRANCISCO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, PENINSULA CORRIDOR
JOINT PO\ryERS BOARD, SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY,

AND C/CAG FOR PLANNING AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN WORK AT THE
BAYSHORE INTERMODAL CALTRAIN STATION AND GENEVA AVENUE

EXTENSTON FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $100,000 \ryHrCH INCLUDES AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $25,000 FROM C/CAG

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the CitylCounty Association of Govemments of
San Mateo County (C/CAG), that

WHEREAS, C/CAG is the designated Congestion Management Agency (CMA) for San
Mateo County; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG is cooperating with the San Francisco County Transportation
Authority, Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, and the San Mateo County Transportation
Authority and participating in the study team responsible for managing the Project; and

ÌVHEREAS, C/CAG is part of an Interagency Coordination and Outreach Steering
Committee consisting of representatives from the agencies stated above; and

WHEREAS, the Project's aim is to build consensus on the design of the transportation
facilities at the Bayshore Intermodal Station and Geneva Avenue Extension that will connect the
surrounding community with local and regional transit services; and

WHEREAS, the San Francisco County Transportation Authority is acting as the contracting
entity for consultant services; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the C/CAG Board Chair is hereby
authorized to sign the Memorandum of Agreement for and on behalf of the C/CAG Board, with the
above referenced agencies, for the above-stated purpose, and that the Executive Director is
authorized to negotiate the final Memorandum of Agreement prior to execution by the Chair,
subject to final approval by C/CAG Legal Counsel.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS llTH DAY OF DECEMBER 2008.

Deborah C. Gordon, Chair

19



2E



C/CAG AGEI{DA REPORT

I)ate: December 11, 2008

To: City/County Association of Governments Board of Directors

From: Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director

Subject: Review and Approval of Resolution 08-64 Authorizing the C/CAG Chair to
Execute an amendment to the Agreement with the City of San Bruno for a Six-
Month No-Cost Extension for the Construction of a Sustainable Green Street and
Parking Lot Demonstration Project

(For further information or questions, contact Matt Fabry at 415-508-2134)

RE,COMMENDATION

Review and approval of Resolution 08-64, authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute an
amendment to the agreement with the City of San Bruno for a six-month no-cost extension for
the construction of a sustainable green street and parking lot demonstration project.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

SOURCE OF FUNDS

This project is funded through vehicle license fee revenue collected under the 481546 program.
The proposed amendment is a no-cost extension and will not require any additional funding.

BACKGROUND/DIS CUS SION

C/CAG previously awarded the City of San Bruno $71,300 to design and construct a

demonstration project under the San Mateo Countywide'Water Pollution Prevention Program
(Countywide Program)'s Sustainable, Green Streets and Parking Lots Program. The City of San
Bruno originally anticipated project completion by December 31, 2008, which was included as

the termination date in C/CAG's adopted funding agreement. The demonstration project consists
of a vegetated curb extension adjacent to an elementary school. In order to minimize
construction impacts to the school, City staff scheduled construction activities during the school's
winter break. As such, the City expects construction will be complete by December 31, 2008,
but closeout of project documentation will extend into early 2009. Therefore, the City requested
in an August 28, 2008 letter an extension of their funding agreement to accommodate this
schedule. The proposed no-cost extension would extend the existing funding agreement for six
months, until June 30,2009.

7,1

ITEM 4.3



ATTACIIMENTS

o Resolution 08-64
. Amendment (No. 1) to Agreement Between C/CAG and City of San Bruno
o August 28,2008letter from City of San Bruno

ALTERNATIVES

1- Review and approval of Resolution 08-64, authorizingthe CICAG Chair to execute a

six-month no-cost extension to the agreement with the City of San Bruno to construct
a Sustainable Green Street and Parking Lot Demonstration Project in accordance with
the staff recommendation.

2- Review and approval of Resolution 08-64, authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute a

six-month no-cost extension to the agreement with the City of San Bruno to construct
a Sustainable Green Street and Parking Lot Demonstration Project in accordance with
the staff recommendation with modifications.

3- No action.

?Z



RESOLUTION 08.64

A RESOLUTIOI{ OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF'SAN MATEO
COUNITY (C/CAG) AUTHORTZING THE C/CAG CHAIR TO EXECUTE
AN AMEI{DMENT TO TIIE AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SAN

BRUNO FOR A SIX.MOI\TH NO.COST EXTENSION FOR THE
CONSTRUCTIOI{ OF A SUSTAINABLE GREEN STREETS AND

PARKING LOT DEMONSTRATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the CitylCounty Association of Governments (C/CAG) manages the Countywide Water

Pollution Prevention Program (SMCWPPP), which implemented a Sustainable Green Steets and Parking

Lots Program to address vehicle-related pollution impacts from street and parking lot runoff; and,

\ilHEREAS, the City/County Association of Governments for San Mateo County (hereinafter referred to

as C/CAG) has entered into an agreement with the City of San Bruno (hereinafter referred to as City) on

May 8, 2008 for design and construction of a Sustainable Green Street and Parking Lot demonstration
project; and,

\üHEREAS, the agreement between C/CAG and the City terminates December 31, 2008; and

WHEREAS, the City requires additional time to complete the grant-funded project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City/County
Association of Govemments of San Mateo County that the C/CAG Chair be authorized to

execute a no-cost amendment to the funding agreement with the City of San Bruno to extend the

agreement termination date to June 30, 2009.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THrS llTH DAY OF DECEMBER,2008.

Deborah C. Gordon., Chair

¿ù



AMENDMENT (No. 1) TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY/COUNTY
ASSOCIATION OF GOVERI{MENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY AND THE CITY OF

SAN BRUNO

WHEREAS, the CitylCounty Association of Governments (C/CAG) manages the Countywide Water
Pollution Prevention Program (SMCWPPP), which implemented a Sustainable Green Streets and Parking
Lots Program to address vehicle-related pollution impacts from street and parking lot runoff; and,

WHEREAS, the CilylCounty Association of Governments for San Mateo County (hereinafter referred to
as C/CAG) has entered into an agreement with the City of San Bruno (hereinafter referred to as City) on
May 8, 2008 for design and construction of a Sustainable Green Street and Parking Lot demonstration
project; and,

WHEREAS, the agreement between C/CAG and the City terminates December 31, 2008; and

WHEREAS, the City requires additional time to complete the grant-funded project;

IT IS IIEREBY AGREED by the C/CAG Chair and City that:

1. The City's existing agreement with C/CAG is modified to include a Contract Termination date of
June 30, 2009.

2. All other provisions of the original agreement between C/CAG and the City dated May 8, 2008
and subsequent amendments shall remain in full force and effect; and

3. This amendment to the agreement shall take effect upon signature by both parties.

For C/CAG Chair: For City of San Bruno:

Deborah Gordon, Chair Signature

By:

Date: Date:

Approved as to form:

Lee A. Thompson, C/CAG LegaT Counse

24



S¡v-ähïq9
CITY OF SANBRTINO

PUB LIC IVORKS _ ADMINISTRATION AND ENGINEERING

August 28,2Q08

Richard Napier, Executive Director
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County
555 County Center, Fifth Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

Subject: Agreement with Gity of San Bruno for Green Streets Demonstration
Project-Req uest for Extension

Dear Mr. Napier,

This letter seeks to extend the term of the City of San Bruno's funding agreement with C/CAG
for the Sustainable Green Streets and Parking Lots Project. As you know, the City plans to
build a vegetated curb extension near a local elementary school. ln our original grant
application, the City indicated that construction would complete by December 31, 2008. lndeed,
we are well into the design phase, having already conducted surveying and soil sampling at the
project site, and could construct in November.

However, in order to cause as little disruption as possible at busy student drop-off and pickup
times during the construction phase, our project team is seriously considering conducting the
majority of the work during the school's winter break. Unfortunately, this schedule would conflict
with the deadline imposed by the funding agreement.

ln order to give the project more flexibility and minimize public impact, the City of San Bruno
requests the termination date of the funding agreement be moved or othenryise extended to
February 28,2009. Though the project will certainly be built in December, providing an
additional two months allows for complete project closeout and funding reimbursement.

Thank you for your time and consideration. Feel free to call me at (650) 616-7046 to discuss
any questions or concerns you might have.

Sincerely,

/s/ Jim Shannon
Green Streets Project Manager

567 El Camino Real, San Bruno, CA94066-4299
Voice: (650) 616-7065 . Fax: (650)194-1443

http:/þublicworks.sanbruno.ca. gov

z5



26



CICAGAGENDA REPORT
Date: December 11, 2008

To: City/ County Association of Govemments of San Mateo County of San Mateo

From: Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director

Subject: Review and approval of Resolution 08-62 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to
execute an amendment to the agreement between the City/ County Association of
Governments of San Mateo County and Advocation for State Legislative
Advocacy professional services for a maximum amount of $76,000 per year for
two years.

(For fuither information contact Joseph Kott at 599-1453)

RECOMMENDATION

That the C/CAG Board approve Resolution 08-62 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to execute an

amendment to the agreement between the Cityl County Association of Govemments of San

Mateo County and Advocation for State Legislative Advocacy professional services for a
maximum amount of $76,000 per year for the Legislative Session ending on November 30,2010
in accordance with the staff and Legislative Committee recommendation.

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost of the outside lobbyist will not exceed $76,000 (including monthly retainer and
expenses) per year. The $76,000 is programmed in the FY 2008-09 CICAG budget and will also
be programmed in the FY 2009-2010 C/CAG budget.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

The source of the funds for the lobbyist will be from Congestion Management and the $4 vehicle
license fee.

BACKGROT]ND/DIS CUSSION

Since 2002, C/CAG has used the services of a legislative advocate to move issues of local
concern to the state legislature. Staff was instructed by the board to review the need for a
legislative advocate. Staff found that the cost to benefit ratio of having a legislative advocate to
be on the order one to thirty eight in favor of having an advocate

Advocation has been with C/CAG since 2002. Their contract was renewed for the 2008
Legislative Session after they submitted the only proposal in response to a Request for Proposals

D,|

ITEM 4.4



sent out on Novemb er 2,2007 . While board policy requires another call for proposals to be
implemented to ensure that the services received for fees are still in line with other advocates,
staff would expect a similar response to last year's Request for Proposals should another one be
issued for next year.

Staff proposes extension of the Avocation contract for another year for the following reasons:

1. Avocation's work during 2008 has been outstanding, most notably in securing the
Governor's signature on renewal of SB 348, legislation that provides C/CAG with $11.2
million in funding over four years

2. Avocation has been very responsive to staff and Board
3. The team which includes Avocation and Shaw Yoder has worked exceptionally well

In recognition of the difficult economic times, Advocation has agreed to continue its work in
Sacramento on behalf of C/CAG for the same budget maximum annual compensation ($76,000)
as during 2008.

ALTERNATIVES

L Approve in accordance with staff recommendation.
2. Approve in accordance with staff recommendation with modification.
3. No action.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution 08-62
Amendment to Agreement



RESOLUTION 08-62
?k?t?t***Jrtr****

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OT'DIRECTORS OF'THE
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO

couNTy (c/cAc) RESOLUTTON 08-62 - AUTHORTZING THE C/CAG CHArR TO
EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT \ryITH ADVOCATION FOR

STATE LEGISLATIVE ADVOCACY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR A MAXIMUM
AMOUNT OF'$76,000 PER YEAR FOR TWO YEARS

************r<*{<*

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments
of San Mateo County (C/CAG), that

WHEREAS, C/CAG is a joint po\ilers agency representing all twenty-one local
jurisdictions in San Mateo County; and

WHEREAS, the C/CAG Board has determined that it is vital and necessary that its
interests be actively promoted with the Califomia Legislature and Administration; and

\ilIIEREAS, C/CAG has determined that outside lobbying services would be the most
appropriate method to ensure that CICAG is adequately represented in the legislative and

administrative processes in the Capitol of the State of California; and

WIIEREAS, Advocation competed through a request for proposals and qualifications for
the 2008 Legislative Session, then performed in an outstanding fashion during the 2008-2009
Legislative Session; and

WHEREAS, Advocation 's legislative advocacy led to approval by the Legislature and

signing by the Governor of 58348, an $11.2 million revenue source for San Mateo County's
transportation-related efforts ; and

WHEREAS, Advocation has verified that it is qualified and properly licensed to provide
these services; and

\ilHEREAS, the C/CAG Board has determined that it desires these services through the
State Legislative Session ending on November 30, 2010.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chair of the Board of Directors of
C/CAG is hereby authorized and directed to execute said agreement with Advocation for an

amount not to exceed $76,000 per yeff for two years and on behalf of C/CAG, subject to

approval as to form by C/CAG Legal Counsel.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS llthe DAY OF DECEMBER 2008.

Deborah C. Gordon, Chair

29



CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF
SAN MATEO COUNTY

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
CITY/COUNTY/ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS ANI)

ADVOCATTON, INC.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments (hereinafter

referred to as C/CAG), and Advocation, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) are parties to an

Agreement dated December, 13 2007 regarding provision of Professional Services in legislative research

and advocacy; and

WHEREAS, the C/CAG, at its December 11, 2008 meeting, approved this amendment to the
agreement with Contractor; and

WHEREAS, Contractor has reviewed and accepted this amendment;

IT IS HEREBY AGREED by C/CAG and Contractor that:

1. This amendment shall be to extend the term of the Original Agreement between
C/CAG and Advocacy to provide Professional Services in legislative research and
advocacy for a period of one year at a maximum compensation of $76,000 and the
Original Agreement is hereby amended as set forth herein.

2. This amendment shall be in effect as of January 1,2009.

4. The Contract Term, as specified in section 5 (Contract Term) of the Original
Agreement, shall terminate on November 30, 2010.

5. All other provisions of the Original Agreement as Amended shall remain in full
force and effect.

For C/CAG: For City:

Deborah C. Gordon, Chair

Date: Date:

Approved as to form:

Lee Thompson, C/CAG Legal Counsel City Legal Counsel

3E



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

CICAGAGENDA REPORT
December 11, 2008

CitylCounty Association of Governments Board of Directors

Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director

Review and approval of Resolution 08-65 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to
execute an amendment to the agreement between the City/County Association of
Govemments (C/CAG) and Kimley-Hom for the Smaf Corridor project for
development of the System Requirements and existing infrastructure inventory for
a maximum amount of $165,886

(For further information contact John Hoan g at 363-4105)

RECOMMENDATION

That the C/CAG Board review and approve Resolution 08-65 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to
execute an amendment to the agreement between the City/County Association of Govemments
(C/CAG) and Kimley-Horn for the Smart Corridor project for development of the System
Requirements and existing infrastructure inventory for a maximum amount of $165,886 in
accordance with staff recommendation.

FISCAL IMPACT

Not to exceed $165,886 (direct cost to C/CAG is $82,943)

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Funding for this proj ect was budgeted in the FY 2008/09 Congestion Relief Fund Program. The San
Mateo County Transportation Authority (TA) will fund fifty percent (50%) of the total project cost.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

C/CAG entered into an agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates on March 8,2007 for $217,000
to provide technical assistance for the development of the Incident Management - Alternate Route
Pian, addressing effects of non-recurring traffic congestion on local streets caused by major freeway
incidents along US- 1 01 and portions of I-280 and SR 92. The Plan includes establishing pre-planned
altemate detour routes, facilitating interagency coordination and communication, an developmentto
traffic control strategies to minimize congestion and improve safety on local streets.

The contract'tù/as subsequently amended to add additional work scopes for the development of the
San Mateo County Smart Corridors Project and is summarized as follows:

31.

ITEM 4.5



Amend Amount Date Purpose
No.

I $155,300 lll8l07 Additional tasks: Prepare Project Study Report (PSR),
Concept of Operations, and other documents for the
Smart Corridors Proj ect

2 $321,000 2ll4l08 Additional tasks: Prepare Project Report and
Environmental Document (PR/ED)

3 $195,000 l0l9l08 Additional efforts for completion of PSR, PR/ED and
additional task to perform traff,rc analysis

Amendment No. 4, for the amount of $165,886, includes additional tasks to enable the Smart
Corridors project development to progress towards the next steps in the Systems Engineering
process. In addition to participating project meetings, consultant will prepare the system and
performance requirements, document existing infrastructure inventory, and assist in the completion
of PRÆD documents, as necessary. The work scope identified under AmendmentNo. 4 will be on a

task order basis. Detailed task descriptions can be found in "Exhibit A" of AmendmentNo. 4 to the

contract (attached). This amendment also extends the contract to June 30,2009 (current contract
expires January 30, 2009).

ATTACHMENT

. Resolution 08-65

. Amendment No, 4 to the Agreement between C/CAG and Kimley-Horn and Associates

a2



RBSOLUTION 08.65

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY/COUNTY
ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY AUTHORIZING

THE C/CAG CHAIR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS (C/CAG) AND
KIMLEY-HORN FOR THE SMART CORRIDORS PROJECT FOR DEVELOPMENT

OF THE SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS AND EXISTING INF'RASTRUCTURE
INVENTORY FOR A MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF'$165,886

RESOLVED, bythe Board of Directors of the CitylCounty Association of Governments of
San Mateo County (C/CAG), that

WHEREAS, C/CAG is the designated Congestion ManagementAgencyresponsible forthe
development and implementation of the Congestion Management Program for San Mateo County;
and

WHEREAS, C/CAG has adopted a Countywide Congestion Relief Plan that includes
specific programs and studies to improve congestion management in San Mateo County including
the Countywide Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Strategic Plan; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG has initiated development of the Altemate Route Plan and San Mateo
Smart Corridors Project; and

\ilHEREAS, C/CAG determined that outside consulting services are needed to assist in the
development of the technical documentation for the project; and

\ryHEREAS, C/CAG has selected Kimley-Hom and Associates, Inc. to provide these
services; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG has determined that additional services are needed to complete the
Project Report, Environmental Documents and associated tasks; and

NO\il, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors ofthe City/County
Association of Govetnments of San Mateo County that the Chair is authorized to execute an
amendment to the agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for an additional amount notto
exceed $165,886, to a maximum contract amount of $1,054,186. In accordance with C/CAG
established policy, the Chair may administratively authorize up to an additional 5Yo of the total
contract amount in the event that there are unforeseen costs associated with the project. This
amendment to the agreement is attached hereto and is in a form that has been approved by C/CAG
Legal Counsel.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THrS llTH DAy OF DECEMBER 2008.

Deborah C. Gordon, Chair

a1
dd



aMENDMENT (NO. 4) TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

THE CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO
COUNTY AND

KIMLEY.HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the CitylCounty Association of Governments for
San Mateo County (hereinafter referred to as C/CAG), at its March 8,2007 meeting, approved an
agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Consultant) to
develop the Incident Management - Alternative Route Plan for San Mateo County and approved
amendments to said agreement at its November 8,2007, February 14,2008, and October 9,2008
meetings; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG and Consultant entered into an original agreement, dated March 8,
2007, and into amendments to the original agreement dated November 8,2007, February 14,
2008, and October 9, 2008 (hereinafter the original agreement and the three amendments thereto
shall be referred to as the "Agreement As- Amended"); and

WHEREAS, C/CAG has determined that additional consulting services and work are
needed as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "additional work"); and

WHEREAS, up to an additional one hundred sixty five thousand eight hundred eighty six
dollars ($165,886.00) will be required to complete the additional work; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to further amend the Agreement As Amended as set forth
herein.

IT IS IIEREBY AGREED by C/CAG and Consultantthatthe Agreement As Amended is
further amended as follows:

1. The additional work is hereby added to the services and work to be performed by
Consultant under the Agreement As Amended and Consultant agrees to complete all work and
services under the Agreement As Amended.

2. C/CAG staff will issue task orders authorizing Consultant to perform each task
identified in Exhibit A. Consultant will not be paid for any task performed without prior
authorization.

3. For the completion of the additional work, the maximum reimbursement to
Consultant is increased by one hundred sixty five thousand eight hundred eighty six dollars
($165,886.00). The new total maximum contract amount is one million frfty four thousand one
hundred eighty six dollars ($1,054,186.00).

4. The January 30,2009 termination date is extended to June 30,2009.

5. Payment for services in connection with the additional work shall be on a time
and materials basis, based upon the receipt of invoices for the actual costs, and with services to be
performed only upon the request of C/CAG staff after review of specific work plans for
individual tasks

KII Contract Amend#4 Dec08

J=

Page I of2



6. All other provisions of the Agreement As Amended shall remain in full force and
effect.

7 . This amendment shall take effect upon execution by both parties.

City/County Association of Governments Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

C/CAG Consultant:

Deborah C. Gordon, Chair

35



7,-Jl Nmrey-nom
\f f I ano A-ssæiaræ, rnc.

EXHIBIT A

Suite 1230

555 12üt Street

Oakland, California

94607

December I,2008

Mr. John Hoang

San Mateo City/County Association of Governments
555 County Center, 5th Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

RE: Proposøllor Controct Amendment #4

Dear Mr. Hoang,

Kimley-Horn and Associates, lnc. (KHA) is pleased to submit a letter proposalto continue providing
valuable services to the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) and
the stakeholders. This proposal includes several tasks that are appropriate and important to
continue the development of the San Mateo County Smart Corridors and keep the project rolling on
schedule. The primary tasks in this proposal are Meetings, Systems Engineering Support, and
Documentation of Existing lnventory. Additional tasks could be added as needed by C/CAG.

The primary tasks are described below;

Task 1- Proiect Meetinqs:
KHA will attend meetings regarding the San Mateo County Smart Corridors. These meetings will
include:

Weekly meetings with C/CAG staff and others to discuss project issues and further project
development.
Additional meetings as directed by C/CAG with FHWA, Caltrans, or other agencies as it
specifically relates to the development of the Smart Corridors Program or approval of
previous documents.

Randy Durrenberger will be the primary attendee, w¡th add¡t¡onal attendees as approved by C/CAG.
These meetings will be located at the C/CAG offices, or as otherwise directed,

Deliverables: Attendance dt meetings (ossume 10 meetings)
Meeting notes

Tosk 2 - Prepare Svstem Requirements:
KHA will develop a draft of the detailed system and performance requirements consistent with the

TEL 510 6250712
FAX 510 6250714

3E



Mr. John Hoang
December 1, 2008

Page 2

Systems Engineering process. The draft system requirements will be developed such that the system
can be produced to meet the project's goals and objectives. The system requirements will be
defined under the following four requirements areas:

a

a

a

Functional - Does the system do what it is supposed to do?
Performance - How well does the system do its functions?
Environmental (and non-functional)- Under what conditions does the system have to work
and meet its performance goals?

User - Does the system do what the end users expect it to?

KHA will develop an initial set of system requirements based on the Concept of Operations and
expanded/confirmed through input from project stakeholders. The system requirements will be
prioritized by stakeholders, de-conflicted and validated. Each system requirement will follow the
typical guidelines to be a 'good' requirement (i.e., necessary, testable, clear, concise, technology-
independent, feasible, standalone, and traceable to a need).

The system requirements will be defined to the subsystem level as appropríate, and each
requirement will be validated such that it meets an expressed need, or set of needs, as defined in
the Concept of Operations or other document. Examples of subsystems include:

. CCTV cameras;
o Trailblazer signs;
o Signal system components;
o Communicationsmedium;
o Central functionality;
o lnterface between TMCs;
o Data and video sharing; and
¡ Operational parameters.

The system requirements will also be prepared in a matrix form in order to easily trace the
requirementstotheneeds(intheConceptof Operations)aspartofafuturetask. Therequirements
will be assigned a unique identifier and will be categorized into the four different requirement areas.

Deliverables: lnitial Draft Requirements
Workshops to define functional requirements (assume 4 workshops)
Draft System Requirements Document
Draft System Requirements Matrix

Task 3 - Documentotion of Existinq lnventorv:
KHA will gather project inventory information for existing Smart Corridor devices. The focus of this
task is to define the existing conduit and pull box infrastructure, existing communications cabling,
a nd location of existing traffic signa I ca binets a long the limits of the Sma rt Corridor a nd at locations
that may be influenced or impacted by the Smart Corridor project. KHA staff will visit each agency
along the initial phases of the Smart Corridor including South San Francisco, San Bruno, Millbrae,
Burlingame, San Mateo, Belmont, San Carlos, Redwood City, East Palo Alto, and Caltrans.

KHA will meet with each agency individually (L0 meetings)to obtain as-built documentation forthe

37



7,-fl Nm¡ev-dom\I/ _\ anoÄlsæ¡aræ, rnc.

Mr. John Hoang
December 1,2009

Page 3

existing infrastructure, discuss the condition ofthe infrastructure, and discuss any concerns over
using existing cabling or conduit for the Smart Corridors program. Through these meetings, KHA wíll
also document utilizatíon of existing infrastructure to capture how much of the existing
communicat¡ons network may be available for sharing with the Smart Corridor project.

KHA will conduct spot field investigatíon in existing pull boxes to determine the feasibility of usíng
existing conduit, We will assess the likelihood of using the existing infrastructure at the locations
that we observe. This information will be submitted to C/CAG for future consideration. We will
provide up to 40 hours of field investigation.

The information gathered in this task will include, as available, as-builts from previous projects;
input from agencíes on future projects; future direction of communications network; and field notes
from infrastructure invest¡gation. This information will be submitted to C/CAG for future
consideration.

Deliverables: Meetings and as-built collection from agencies (10 agencies)
Notes from field investigation

Tosk 4 - Finolize Proiect Report:
KHA will assist in addressing or responding to additional comments received from Caltrans on the
Project Report (PR) and Environmental Documentation (ED). This work will entail preparation of one
set of PR/ED documentation to address Caltrans comments and a response matrix to the comments
provided. This effort will only be completed based on written authorization by C/CAG.

Deliverobles: Final PR and ED

öö
,-f Õ



7-fl Nmrcy-nom
\I/- \ anoÂitsærates, rnc.

Mr. John Hoang
December 1, 2008

Page 4

The fee estímate presented below is for budgetary purposes only based on the assumptions
presented in each task above. Level of effort and budget may change as directed and approved by
C/CAG. We will bill C/CAG according to actual effort.

Task Budgets

Task PM M¡d
Anly/
CAD

Admin Total
Cost per

Task

Task 1- Proiect Meetinss (10 meetinss) 60 8 8 6 82 S17,630
Task 2.1- Compile lnitial Functional
Requirements 20 20 20 4 64 St!,720
lask 2.2 - Stakeholder Workshoos 20 20 4 44 Ss,o60
Task 2.3 - Populate Draft System
Requirements Matrix (prioritize) 20 30 30 80 S14,sso
Task 2.4 - Decompose Requirements
(further detail and avoid conflicts) 30 40 40 12 722 521,,460
Task 2.5 - Prepare Draft System
Requirements Report 30 40 60 16 146 s24,680
Task 3 - Existins lnventorv 50 60 720 10 250 S43,3so
Task 4 - Finalize Proiect Reoort 20 30 30 80 s14,ss0
Total Hours 260 248 31.2 48 868
Billing Rate $240 $1 85 $140 s1 05

Labor $62 400 $45.880 $43 680 $5 040 $1 57,000

lndirect Expenses (computer, copy, fax, mileage, etc,)
$3.1 24

Direct Expenses (assume l%) $1.s62

LSA (Finalize Proiect ReoodEnvironmental Documentation $5 000

Total
$165,886

Kimley-Horn and Associates, lnc. appreciates the opportunity to continue providing support to
C/CAG to continue implementing the San Mateo County Smart Corridor Project. Please let me know
if this proposal is acceptable to you, we are prepared to begin immediately on this support.

Sincerely yours,

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

39



40



CICAGAGENDA REPORT
Date: December 11, 2008

To: CitylCounty Association of Governments Board of Directors

From: Richard Napier, Executive Director

Subject: Review and appointment of Councilmember Gina Papan from the City of Millbrae to
the Congestion Management & Environmental Quality (CMEQ) Committee

(For further information or questions contact Sandy Wong at 599-1409)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board consider the appointment of Millbrae Councilmember Gina Papan to the Congestion
Management and Environmental Quality (CMEQ committee to fill the vacant seat for elected officials.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

BACKGROUND/DIS CUS SION

There is one vacant elected seat on the CMEQ committee since the beginning of this year. A
recruitment letter was distributed to all of the elected officials in San Mateo County early 2008 and
again in November. Councilmember Papan requested for consideration of appointment to the CMEQ
Committee.

The Congestion Management and Environmental Quality Committee (CMEQ) provides advice and
recoÍrmendations to the full C/CAG Board on all matters relating to transportation planning,
congestion management, and selection of projects for state and federal funding. The Committee also
has the specific responsibility for the development and updating of the Congestion Management
Program and the Countywide Transpofation Plan.

ATTACTIMENTS

o Current roster for the CMEQ Committee

F : \users \ccag\wllata\cM&EQ\APPoTNT\ 2 o0 I \appoint4l-nt papan ro cMEe - Doc

ITEM 4.6



CURRENT CMEQ 2008 ROSTER

Chair - Irene O'Connell
Vice Chair - Sepi Rlchardson
Staff Support: Sandy Wong

Name Representinq
Jim Bigelow Business Community

Zoe Kersteen-Tucker San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans)

Judith Christensen City of Daly City

William Dickenson City of Belmont

Linda Koelling Crty of Foster City

Sue Lempert Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)

Arthur Lloyd Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (CalTrain)

Karyl Matsumoto Citv of South San Francisco

Irene O'Con¡rell City of San Bruno

Naomi Patridge City of Half Moon Bay

Barbara Pierce City of Redwood City

Sepi Richardson Crty of Brisbane

Lerurie Roberts Environmental Community

Onnolee Trapp Agencies with Transportation Interests

Daniel Quigg City of Millbrae

Steve Dworetzky Public Member

F : \users \ccag\wloara\CM&EQ\APPOTNT\2 00 I \appoint4Znr papan ro CMEQ . DoC



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

CICAG AGENDA REPORT

December 11, 2008

CitylCounty Association of Govemments Board of Directors

Richard Napier, Executive Director

Review and approval of Resolution 08-66 authorizing the C/CAG Chair to
execute an amendment to the Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans for the
Project Approval/Environmental Document (PA/ED) phase of the San Mateo
County Smart Corridors project in order to receive $367,000 programmed in
CMAQ funds.

(For fuither information or questions contact John Hoang at363-4I05)

RECOMMENDATION

Review and approval of Resolution 08-66 authorizingthe CiCAG Chairto execute an amendment to
the Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans for the Project Approval/Environmental Document
(PA/ED) phase of the San Mateo County Smart Corridors project in order to receive $367,000
porgrarnmed CMAQ funds.

FISCAL IMPACT

$41 5,000 (includes $48,000 local match)

SOURCE OF FUNDS

. 5367,000: Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program funds from the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)

. $48,000: FY 2008109 Congestion Relief Fund Program

BACKGROUND/DIS CUS SI ON

The San Mateo County Smart Corridors project will implement inter-jurisdictional trafftc
management strategies by deploying integrated Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) elements

and providing local jurisdictions the tools to manage recurring/non-recurring traffic congestion by
improving trafÍic operations and mobility, optimizing existing roadway facilities, and addressing
system efficiency and safety. The project will implementation communication infrastructure, traffic
signal improvements, signal system interconnect,tratlblazer and changeable message signs, closed

circuit television cameras, and vehicle detection system. The project is located along portions ofthe
US 101 corridor from I-380 to the Santa Clara County line and SR 82 (El Camino Real) and local
arterial streets.

43

ITEM 4.7



The Cooperative Agreement between C/CAG and Caltrans for the Project Approval/Environmental
Document (PA/ED) phase of the Smart Corridors project was executed on JuIy 25,2008. The Coop
Agreement for PA/ED enables Caltrans to oversee the preparation of the environmental
documentation and provide quality assurance oversight work on the project. Under the current
executed agreement, approximately $300,000 in local funds was committed for the development of
the PA/ED documents. The amendmentto the PAÆD Coop Agreementwill include an additional
$415,000 ($367,000 of CMAQ funding and $48,000 local match) for preliminary engineering.

The CMAQ funds of $367,000, whichwas providedbyMTC, isprogrammedunderFY2008/09. To
obligate this federal fund, C/CAG staff has submitted a request for the authorization of the PE
(preliminary engineering) phase to Caltrans. The processing ofthe request and subsequent approval
by FHWA (Federal Highway Administration) requires that the fund be reflected in the project Coop
Agreement between C/CAG and Caltrans. Execution of the amended PA/ED Coop Agreement will
enable the Caltrans Local Assistance divisionto process the request for authorization of the PE
phase.

It is requested that authorization be given to the Executive Director to negotiate the final amended
PA/ED Cooperative Agreement terms, as needed, subject to approval by the C/CAG Legal Counsel,
and provide the C/CAG Chair final recommendations prior to execution of this amend.

ATTACHMENTS

. Resolution 08-66

44



RESOLUTION 08.66

**r(?rr*:k******

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERI\MENTS

OF SAN MATEO COUNTY (C/CAG) AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR TO
EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

WITH CALTRANS FOR THE PROJECT APPROVALIENVIRONMENTAL
DOCUMENT (PA/ED) PHASE OF THE SAN MATEO COUNTY SMART

CORRIDORS PROJECT IN ORDER TO RECEIVE $367,000
PROGRAMMED IN CMAQ FUNDS

* 2rr :k * * * :l * * * rb rr * Ìk ?rr *

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments
of San Mateo County (C/CAG), that

WHEREAS, C/CAG is the designated Congestion Management Agency for San Mateo
County; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG has developed the San Mateo County Smart Corridors Project to
implement traffic management strategies with the deployment of Intelligent Transportation
Systems (ITS); and

WHEREAS, C/CAG and the Califomia Department of Transportation (Caltrans) are

partners in the development of the Project Approval/Environmental Document (PA/ED) phase of
the San Mateo County Smart Coridors Project; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG will be the project implementation agency and Caltrans will act as

the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) lead agency and project oversight; and

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Agreement is amended to include $367,000 in CMAQ
funds and $48,000 of local match; and

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Agreement term is set to expire at the completion of the
PA/ED Phase of the Smart Corridors Project; and

NO\ry, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL\{ED by the Board of Directors of the
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County that the Chair is authorized to
execute an amendment to the Cooperative Agreement between C/CAG and Caltrans for the
PA/ED Phase of the Smart Corridors, and that the Executive Director is authorizedto negotiate
the final amendment to the Cooperative Agreement prior to execution by the Chair, subject to
approval by the C/CAG Legal Counsel.

45



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS lrTH DAy OF DECEMBER 2008.

Deborsh C. Gordon, Chøir

46



C/CAGAGEI{DA REPORT
Date: December i 1, 2008

To: City/ County Association of Govemments of San Mateo County of San Mateo

From: Richard Napier, Executive Director

Subject: Review and approval of C/CAG Legislative priorities, positions and
Legislative update

(For further information or questions contact Joseph Kott at 599-1453)

RECOMMENDATION
That the committee review and approve the proposed 2009 State Legislative Policies and
Priorities in accordance with the Legislative Committee recommendations.

FISCAL IMPACT

he priorities listed in the attached document have the potential to maximize the fiscal resources
available to C/CAG member agencies.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

New legislation.

BACKGROUND/DIS CUS SION

Eachyear, the C/CAG Board adopts a set of legislative priorities to provide direction to its
Legislative Committee, staff, and its Lobbyist. In the past, the C/CAG Board established the
policies and priorities that:

o Clearly defined a policy at the beginning of the Legislative Session.
o Identified specific priorities to be accomplished during this session by the Lobbyist
o Limited the activities of C/CAG to areas where we can have the greatest impact.

The adoption of a list of priorities will hopefully maximize the impact of having a Lobbyist
represent C/CAG in Sacramento and will also significantly reduce the amount of C/CAG staff
time needed to support the program.

ATTACHMENT
C/CAG Proposed Legislative Policies and Priorities For 2009

ALTERNATIVES
Approve the proposed C/CAG Legislative Policies and Priorities for 2009 with modification.

ITEM 7.1

47



ATTACHMENT

C/CAG LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES FOR 2OO9

Priority #1 -
Protect against the diversion of locøl tevenues including the protection of redevelopment

funds and programs.

1.1 Support League and CSAC hritiative to protect local revenues.

7.2 Protect and preserve the 20%io redevelopment housing set aside.

1.3 Support follow-up legislation to the 2006 Bond Funds to create opportunities for San
Mateo County.

Priority #2 -
Protect against increased local costs resulting from Stste actíon without 100% Støte
reimbursementfor the ødded costs,

2.1 Ensure that there is real local representation on State Boards and Commissions that are
establishing policies and requirements for local programs.

2.2 Advocate for the appointment of Administration Officials who are sensitive to the fiscal
predicament faced by local jurisdictions.

2.3 Oppose State action to dictate wage and benefits for local employees.

2.4 Oppose State action to restrict the ability of local jurisdictions to contract for services.

2.5 Advocate for State actions that are required to take into consideration the fiscal impact to
local jurisdictions.

Priority #3 -
Secare sløhle fundin to br increased NPDES mandates.

3.1 Primary focus on maximizing funds from the adopted infrastructure bonds.

3.2 Support efforts to exempt NPDES from the super majority voting requirements.

3.3 Include NPDES as a priority for funding in new sources of revenues (i.e. water bonds).

48



3.4 Advocate for C/CAG and San Mateo County jurisdictions to be identified as a pilot
project to receive earmarked funding.

3.5 Support efforts to reduce NPDES requirements as a way to stimulate business

development while still working to improve the quaiity of the Ocean, Bay, streams,

creeks, and other waterways.

3.6 Support efforts to reform the NPDES program while still working to improve the quality
of the Ocean, Bay, streams, creeks, and other waterways.

3.7 Support efforts to place the burden/ accountability of reporting, managing and meeting
the NPDES requirements on the responsible source not the City or County.

3,8 Oppose efforts to require quantitative limits and Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL)
measures since there are insufficient scientihc methods to evaluate the benefits. For this
reason C/CAG instead supports the implementation of Best Management Practices
(BMP's) to the maximum extent practicable.

Príority #4 -
lowering the 2/3rd super majority vote for local taxes.

4.1 Oppose bills that lower the 2l3rd super majority threshold, but dictate beyond the special
tax category, how locally generated funds can be spent.

4.2 Support bills that reduce the vote requirement for special taxes but increase the vote
requirement for general taxes.

Priority #5-
Encourage the Støte to protect transportøtion funding ønd develop an equitøble cost-sharing
ørrangement to pay for any cost overruns on the constructìon of the Bay Bridge.

5.1 Urge the State to restrict or eliminate transfer of State transportation funds to the State

General Fund.

5.2 Urge the State to continue to pursue a solution to the Federal Ethanol tax problem.

5.3 Oppose efforts to divert any of the Regional Measure 2 funds to pay for any Bay Bridge
cost ovemrns.

49



Priority #6 -
Advocate for revenue solutions to address State budget issues that are also beneficiøl to Cities/
Counties

6.I Support measures to realign the property tax with property related services

6.2 Support measures to ensure that local governments receive appropriate revenues to
service local businesses.

6.3 Support measures to collect sales tax on Internet transactions.

6.4 Support expansion of the sales tax to personal and professional services.

Priority #7 -
S upport ress onable climate action/Greenh ous e G us lesislatío n

7.1 Support incentive approaches toward implementing A832.

7.2 Support county-based planning for sustainable communities in SB 375.

7.3 Oppose climate legislation that would conflict with or override projects approved by the
voters.

7.4 Support expansion ofthe sales tax to personal and professional services.

Priority #8 -
conservøtion

8.1 Support local government partnerships with PG&E.

8.2 Suppof cormty-based planning for sustainable communities in SB 375.

Priority #9 -
Other

9.1 Support/sponsor legislation to allow transportation planning funds to be used
to fund comprehensive land use plans for airports.

9.2 Support efforts that will engage the business community in transportation
demand management.

5ø



CICAG AGEI\DA REPORT
Date: December 11, 2008

To: City/County Association of Governments Board of Directors

From: Richard Napier, Executive Directo

Subject: Status update on the implementation of the San Mateo County Smart Corridors project

(For further information or questions contact Richard Napier at 599-1420, or Sandy
'Wong at 599-1409, or John Hoang at363-4105, or Jean Higaki at 599-1462)

RECOMMENDATION

That the C/CAG Board receives a verbal status update from staff on the implementation of the San
Mateo County Smart Corridors project.

FISCAL IMPACT

Approximately $23 million has been programmed for the funded segments of the Smart Corridors.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Funding sources come from: State Transportation Bond Traffic Light Synchronization Program
(TLSP); State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP); Federal CMAQ funds; and C/CAG
Congestion Relief Program and Vehicle License Fee Program.

BACKGROUND/DISCUS SION

The San Mateo County Smart Corridors project will implement inter-jurisdictional traffic management
strategies by deployng integrated Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) elements. It includes traffîc
signal modifications, traffic monitoring and control devices, traffic guidance devices, and
communication systems that will connect between field devices with traffic management centers within
all involved agencies. The project is generaliy located along the US 101 and SR 82 (El Camino Real)
corridor, including local arterials.

ATTACHMENT

None.

5L

ITEIII7.2



52



CICAG AGEI{DA REPORT

Date: December 11, 2008

To: C/CAG Board of Directors

From: Richard Napier, Executive Director

Subject: Review and approval of appointments to the C/CAG Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee (BPAC) for two-year terms.

(For further information please contact Tom Madalena at 650-599-1460)

RECOMMENDATION

That the CICAG Board review and approve appointments to the C/CAG Bicycle and Pedestrian

Advisory Committee (BPAC) for two-year terms,

1. Review and approval of the reappointment of Cory Roay and Judi Mosqueda to the
C/CAG Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) for two-year terms.

2. Review and approval of the appointment of two candidates to the C/CAG Bicycle and
Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) for two-year terms.

FISCAL IMPACT

There will be no fiscal impact.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Not applicable

BACKGROUND/DIS CUSSION

Currently two members of the BPAC are being recommended by staff to be reappointed for two-
year terms. Cory Roay's second two-year term and Judi Mosqueda's first two-year term ended

in September 2008 and December 2008, respectively. Both members have had excellent
attendance records throughout their prior terms.

Should the Board decide to reappoint member Roay and member Mosqueda there would still be

two vacant seats on the BPAC that were vacated by David Alfano and Robert Cronin. Member
Alfano and member Cronin had been on the BPAC for three two-year terms, which is the limit

53

TTEI\I7.3



for the number of terms that is established in the Bylaws for the BPAC. The appointments to the
two vacant seats will also be for two-year terms.

At the November 9,2006 C/CAG Board meeting, the Board concluded that it was necessary to
bring forward all of the applicants for vacant seats on the BPAC. Each of the seven applicants
have been invited to come before the Board and will have two minutes to speak as to why they
would make a good appointment and then answer any questions that the Board may have.

Applicant Citv of Residence

. Cory Roay Belmont
o Judi Mosqueda Millbrae
o Steve Schmidt Menlo Park
o Joel Slavit San Carlos
o Justin Kromelow Burlingame
. Lucy Wicks Unincorporated San Mateo County
o John Fox Menlo Park

ATTACIIMENTS

o Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Membership Application
o 7 BPAC membership applications received
. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Membership Roster 2008

54



C/CAG
Crry/CouNTy AssocrATroN oF, GovERNMENTs

oF SAN M¡rno Counry

Alherton o Belmont o Brisbane o Burlingame. Colma. DaIJ C.Ìty t East Palo Aho . Foster City o ¡¡n¡yroon Bay. Hìllsborough c Menlo park
MillbraetPacificatPorlolaYalleyoRedwootlCitycsonBruno.sanCarloscsanMateo.SanMateoCountyoSouthsanFrãnciscoollootlsirle

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Membership Application

Please give brief answers to the following questions to be considered for appointment to the
City/County Association of Govemments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee (BPAC).

1. What expertise/experience do you have pertaining to serving on this committee?
2.Why do you want to serve on this committee?
3. What special strengths would you bring to the committee?
4. What is the role of the countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee?
5. Have you ever attended a meeting of this committee? If so, when?
6. The C/CAG BPAC meets on the fourth Thursday of the month from 7:00 - 9:00 p.m., do you

have other commitments that will keep you from attending meetings?
7. Are you a member of any other committees/organizations?
8. Please mention the city in which you reside.

Applications will be reviewed and presented to the C/CAG Board for consideration. Applicants
may be asked to present before the C/CAG Board or its selection subcommittee.

Please email, fax, or mail your application attention Tom Madalena.

trnadalen a@co. sanmateo. ca.us

650-361-8227 fax

555 County Center
5'h Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

555 County Center, 5th Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063 PnoNs: 650 5gg 1460 Ftx: 650.361.822j

55



San Mateo County Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Membership Application

The expertise and experience that I have pertaining to serving on the committee includes:

o BPAC Committee member since April 14,2005
. Daly City BPAC Committee member for over 5 lzyears
o Regularbicycle commuter from Belmont to Daly City
o 29 years of law enforcement experience with the Daly City Police Department,

including tr afftc i s sues, acci dent investi gation and community involvement
o USCF licensed category 4 bicycle racer

I would like to continue to serve on the BPAC Committee because I remain committed to
bicycle and pedestrian advocacy, my service on the board has been a learning experience,
and because I am impressed with the level of commitment and the knowledge of the other
committee members.

The special strengths that I bring to the committee include my bike commuting
experience, law enforcement background and experience in forming partnerships between
local govemment and communities.

The role of the BPAC Committee is to advise the C/CAG Board of Directors on matters
related to bicycle and pedestrian facilities planning and the selection of projects for state
and federal funding. The interaction between the engineers who plan the projects and the
people who understand how they will actually be used is critical to the success of the
process.

Since becoming a BPAC Committee member, I have missed very few meetings and I
have taken part in every project field trip with the committee members and county staff.

I am a member of the Peninsula Velo Cycling Club Board of Directors, Daly City Host
Lions Club and Daly City Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee.

I reside in the city of Belmont and work in Daly City.

CoryRoay

56



November 25,2008

Mr. Tom Modoleno
CCAG
555 County Cenler, Srh Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

Mr. Modoleno,

I would like lo be considered for re-oppointment to the City ond County Associotion of
Governments of Son Moteo County Bicycle ond Pedestrion Advisory Commiltee (BPAC), I hove
enjoyed serving on lhe BPAC over the post two yeors ond feel thol I bring o unique ond
voluoble perspeciive to this commitfee.

I om o registered Londscope Architect ond hove devoted my coreer lo public sector projecis
involving urbon plonning ond design, tronsportolion systems, pedestrion ond bicycle occess,
disobled occess, ond quolily of life issues. Professionolly, I continue to be exposed to the lotesl
trends in urbon ond environmentol design, public ironsporlotion innovotions, ond bicycle ond
troilsystem plonning. With this bockground, I compliment other bockgrounds represenied on
the committee, including commute cyclists, recreotionol cyclists, ond cily council members.

I hove o sirong personol interesi in the projects ihot the BPAC evoluotes. I om o mother of
school oged children ond oflen look io get oround town on foot or by bicycle. I om very
fomilior with the issues fomilies foce trying to stoy heolthy ond fiï, connected to the communily,
ond environmentolly responsible. lt is importont thol voices representing the needs of young
fomilies be present on this commitlee.

I bring the odded experience of being well versed in the Americons wilh Disobililies Act os it
opplies io roodwoys, bikewoys, sidewolks ond troils. While the cities ore ultimotely responsible

for sotisfying ADA through their projects, I om oble to respond to informol questions or concerns
from the commitlee.

I om residenl of Millbroe ond hove served os o member of Millbroe's Pork ond Recreotion
Commission for the post four yeors. The Pork ond Recreotion Commission meets on Tuesdoy
evenings ond does not provide ony conflicT wilh my oltendonce of the BPAC meetings.

The BPAC is o very exciting committee. The BPAC is oble to support smort growth for the
Peninsulo, encouroging provisions for commute bicyclists, tronsit users, recreotionol cyclists ond
hikers, people with disobilities, ond pedestrions. I om hoppy to see Peninsulo towns working to
enhonce the quolily of life for oll citizens ond visitors to the county. I respectfully request your

considerotion for re-oppointment to the BPAC.

Sincerely,

Judi Mosquedo
341 Polm Avenue
Millbroe, CA 94030
mosquedoonpolm@comcosl.net

57



1 om Madalena - Bi an ication

From: "steve schmidt" <gabriellejohnck@gmail.com>
To: <tmadalena@co.sanmateo.ca.us>
Date: 11114120081:18 PM
Subject: Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Application

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Membership Application
Steve Schmidt, Menlo Park. 650 323-5546

Please give brief answers to the following questions to be considered
for appointment to the City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG)
of San Mateo County Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC).

'1. What expertise/experience do you have pertaining to serving on this
committee?

I've commuted and done errands by bicycle in the Mid-peninsula for
over thirty five years. I served on the BPAC and its predecessor
committee between 1991 and 2002 both as a public member and as an
elected official.

2. Why do you want to serve on this committee?

I believe that it is impoftant to have BPAC members who have a strong
commitment to building cost-effective ínfrastructure for the practical
use of pedestrians and bicyclists.

3. What special strengths would you bring to the committee?

ln my eight years on the Menlo Park City Council, I had the
responsibility of balancing the needs and desires of constituents and
at the same time doing so within the financial limitations of local
government. ln the end I had to make a decision.

4. What is the role of the countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory
Committee?

The BPAC has two major responsibilities: lt makes recommendations to Ci
CAG on providing TDA funding to projects that serve pedestrians and
bicyclists in San Mateo County; lt serves as a source of information
and advice for bicycle/pedestrian design and safety issues raised by
San Mateo County cities.

5. Have you ever attended a meeting of this committee? lf so, when?

I was a regular attendee before 2003 for about 11 years.

58



6. The C/CAG BPAC meets on the fourth Thursday of the month from 7:00

- 9:00 p.m., do you have other commitments that will keep you from
attending meetings?

No.

7. Are you a member of any other committees/organizations?

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition, Loma Prieta Chapter of
the Sierra Club, Audubon Society, Mono Lake Committee, Menlo Park
Green Ribbon Citizen's Committee,

8. Please mention the city in which you reside.

I've lived in Menlo Park since'1976, the mid-Peninsula
since 1959.,

59



C/CAG
CIry/CouNrY ASsoCIATIon or GovERNMENTS

on Se¡J MATEo Counry

AlherlonoBelmontcBrisboneoBurlingame¡Colma.DalyCítycEastPaloAllo.FoslerCítyc¡¡o¡¡roonBayo¡7¡¡t6oroughcMenlopark
MillbraecPacifcøoPortolaValleyoRedwootlCityoSanBrunocsanCarlosoSanMateocsanMateoCounty.soulhsanFranciscoolloodsítle

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Membership Application

Applicant: Joel Slavit

Please give brief answers to the following questions to be considered for appointment to the
City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee (BPAC).

1. What expertise/experience do you have pertaining to serving on this committee?

I have a professional planning credential from the American Institute of Certifîed Planners
(AICP) and a B.S. degree in City and Regional Planning. I also have over 13 years of
professional planning experience with the City of San Jose and over eight years of professional
experience managing the San Mateo County Transit District's grant programs.

My professional planning experience has included the development of policies to promote and
improve walking and bicycling as a mode of alternative transportation and the planning for the
implementation of specific projects, with a focus on multi-use bicycle/pedestrian trails.
Currently, as a grant manager, I have an extensive working knowledge of grant funding programs
and a successful track record of effectively applyrng for and managing grants from inception
through project close-out. I have also served on grant scoring committees both developing
program criteria and evaluating proposals for the initial call for projects for the Transportation
and Land Use Coalition's (TALC's) Safe Routes to Transit (SR2T) prog¡am and to disperse
federally earmarked funds programmed to SamTrans for the Grand Boulevard in San Mateo
County. In addition, I served on two grant review committees for the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission's (MTC's) Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) program.

2.Why do you want to serve on this committee?

As a resident of San Mateo County, I desire to "give back" and further improve the county's
pedestrian and bicycle network. I believe that well planned and implemented bicycle and
pedestrian facilities are key factors in smart growth and that I can make a positive contribution in
decisions to further strengthen the connection between transportation and land use. tn addition to
my interest from a work perspective, I also have a personal interest as I frequently bicycle as my
mode of transportation between home and work.

555 county center, 5th Floor, Redwood crty, cA 94063 PuoNp: 650.599.1460 F¡x: 650.361.822'7

6ø



C/CAG
CrryicouNTy AssocIATroN oF GovERNMENTs

or S,cN MATEo CouNry

AthertoncBelmontoBrìsbaneoBurlingamecColmaoDalyCitycEastPaloAlto.FosterCityo¡7n¡¡¡4oonBayo¡7¡¡r6oroughoMenlopark
MillbraeoPacílicocPorlolaValleyoRedwootlCitycgorg*rooSanCarlosoSanMateo¡SanMalei:oCounly.SouthSanFràncíscooWoodsitle

3. What special strengths \r/ould you bring to the committee?

As a planner, I understand the need to consider and weigh all potential impacts that could occur
from a proposal and to develop positive rworking relationships from my interaction with
stakeholders, especially when there are competing interests or potential conflicts. In addition to
the shengths that I have noted from my u/ork experience, I can bring additional insight to the
committee as a user of bicycle facilities.

4. \Mhat is the role of the countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee?

The role of the countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) is to provide
recommendations on all matters pertaining to bicycle and pedestrian facilities in the County,
which may include the development of plans and policies and input on proposals that are
presented to the committee. The BPAC also provides reconìmendations on the award of various
bicycle and pedestrian grant funding programs and serves in an advisory role to the C/CAG
Board.

5. Have you ever attended a meeting of this committee? If so, when?

I have not previously attended a meeting of this committee but I do have an extensive amount of
experience as an agency staff person making presentations to various boards and commissions,
including the City of San Jose's bicycle advisory committee.

6. The C/CAG BPAC meets on the fourth Thursday of the month from 7:00 - 9:00 p.m., do you
have other commitments that will keep you from attending meetings?

No.

7. Are you a member of any other committees/organizations?

No.

8. Please mention the city in which you reside.

San Carlos.

Applications will be reviewed and presented to the C/CAG Board for consideration. Applicants
may be asked to present before the C/CAG Board or its selection subcommittee.

Please email, fax, or mail your application attention Tom Madalena.

tmadalena@co, sanmateo. ca. us

555 County Center, 5th Floo¡, Redwood City, CA 94063 PnoN¡: 650.599.1460 Ftx: 650.361.g227

Ê1



2621 Adeline Drive
Burlingame, CA 94010
November 28,2008

Mr. Tom Madalena and Committee
Birycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
555 County Center, 5th Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

Mr. Tom Madalena and Committee Members,

I am writing to ask for your consideration in appointment to the City/County
Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee (BPAC). My formal training is as a Landscape Architect. While I
am no longer a currently practicing Landscape Architect, I spent over a decade working
in Illinois and California on public and private projects, many of which were specifically
focused on design issues of integrating, separating and managing pedestrian, bicycle and
vehicular traffic for safety and volume optimization, and educating the public atlarge.
Public projects have included municipal master planning, the expansion of bike paths and
connector trails in Champaign lllinois, reclamation of railroad corridors across Illinois
and bike parking across university campuses. Private projects have included road,
sidewalk and bike path design for subdivisions. My work in all of these projects has
included aspects of design, public policy, fundraising, advocacy and grass roots activism.
In lllinois, I developed extensive experience working with state and local government on
public policy issues.

I have lived in Burlingame for l0 years. I currently commute to work, from
Burlingame to San Mateo, daily on a bicycle. I ride an addition 120 to 150 miles per
week around the Peninsula for fitness training. I volunteer 1 afternoon a week at a local
middle school, taking 10 students on local bike rides. I have 3 children who are also avid
bike enthusiasts. I have no commitments that would conflict with my ability to attend
meetings.

I understand that the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee makes
recommendations to C/CAG on bicycle and pedestrian projects and serves as a
countywide forum for information on bicycling issues for local bikeways committees. I
believe that my background and experience as a Landscape Architect combined with my
practícal experience of biking throughout the county provides a unique perspective on the
relationship and challenges of developing and improving bicycling and pedestrian
opportunities across the county. My desire is to become involved and assist the
committee in any area that the committee believes I may add value and are a priority.

My motivation and desire to become involved is to give back to the community in
a way that leverages my experience and can improve the transportation and recreation
resources within the County for the enjoyment of residents, our children and future

EZ



generations. In this day of TV and video games, our children are spending less time
outdoors and consequently we see a rise in diabetes and childhood obesity. The more

work we can do to improve the access to outdoor activities and improve the safety for the

participants, the better chance we will have to reverse this trend. Gasoline prices are

constantly rising and carbon emissions have reached unsustainable levels. By developing

safe and convenient pedestrian and bicycle corridors, we can augment public
transportation solutions and provide additional options in transportation costs saving and

environmental improvement. My commitment to the sport of cycling is based on the fact
that bicycling is one of the few sports that span the ages of four to eighty. The bicycles

and pedestrian transportation and recreation assets of the county represent some of the

most widely applicable and accessible resources to all county residents. As population
growth continues, it is imperative that these resources are developed and managed in
conjunction with gtowth, not as an afterthought.

I believe that with my background and my commitment to improve bicycle and

pedestrian access and safety, I can be a valuable contributing member to the Bicycle and

Pedestrian Advisory Committee. Please let me know if you would like additional
information. I look forward to your reply.

Sincerely,

Justin Kromelow

63



Lucy Wicks
136Lakemead Way
Emerald Hills, CA 94062
510-290-7338
Luc)¡. Wicks @stanford. edu

City/County Association of Govemments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)

1. What expertise/experience do you have pertaining to serving on this committee?

Dwing my years of working for a non-profit organization, in local govemment and as a private
consultant, I have supported communities in creating successful traffic calming projects, helped
design pedestrian and bike-friendly routes, launched safe routes to school campaigns, started
over a dozen senior walk clubs and advocacy groups, and sat on working committees for city and
county-wide Pedestrian Master Plan development efforts.

Having been trained by renowned walkability expert Charles Gandy, president of Livable
Communities, Inc., I am recognizedby the California Center for Physical Activity and California
Department of Transportation as a walkability expert. Through my efforts to encourage more
pedestrian and bike-füendly livable communities, I have worked closely with elected officials,
transportation engineers, land use planers, public health professionals, law enforcement and
citizens to analyze their community's design and identify needed improvements.

I have facilitated cross-disciplinary working groups aimed at resolving issues and making
changes within the built-environment. I have also drafted policy considerations and program
approaches that encourage healthy living by design, and have worked to motivate people in
communities throughout Califomia to walk, bike and ride public transit.

2. Why do you want to serve on this committee?

Since moving to the peninsula, I have been eager to find an opportunity to contribute my energy
and experience to my new community. Having worked with communities throughout the state, I
know how important it is for local citizens to be actively involved in the process of needs

assessment, funding allocation and program implementation, and I am committed to helping San

Mateo County find thoughtful solutions to its bicycle and pedestrian issues.

3. What special strengths would you bring to the committee?

I pride myself on being able to encourage people with competing viewpoints to work together
toward a common purpose. I think it helps that I can appreciate firsthand the particular
challenges and concems of advocacy organizations, elected officials, local businesses and
academic institutions. Having started my career as a coÍrmunity organizer before working for a

County Supervisor and now as Assistant Director of Community Relations at Stanford
University, I have had the benefit of seeing bicycle and pedestrian issues from a variety of
perspectives-perspectives which have often been at odds with one another, even when all sides
have been operating in the interest of the community.

Ê4



4. What is the role of the countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee?

The presence of a committee such as this BPAC is essential to the development and support of
well-designed communities throughout San Mateo County. As a forum for information on

bicycle and pedestrian issues, its members have a responsibility to create an active and

productive dialogue, to solicit input from the community and to provide reasonable and

thoroughly-considered recommendations to the larger C/CAG Board.

5. Have you ever attended a meeting of this committee? If so, when?

No, I have not yet attended a meeting of this committee.

6. The C/CAG BPAC meets on the fourth Thursday of the month from 7:00 - 9:00 p.m., do
you have other commitments that will keep you from attending meetings?

No.

7. Are you a member of any other committees/organizations?

In my current position as Assistant Director of Community Relations at Stanford University, I
represent the university as a member of Redwood City/San Mateo County Chamber of
Commerce and at variety of other San Mateo County and Santa Clara Countybased
organizations.

8. Please mention the cify in which you reside.

I live in the community of Emerald Hills, which is located between the cities of Redwood City,
'Woodside and San Carlos, in the unincorporated lands of San Mateo County.

References

Lisa Cirill, MS
Acting Chiel
California Center for Physical Activity,
California Department of Public Health
Lisa Ciri lllgrcdph.ca. gov
(916) ss2-9e43

Seth Kaplan
Chief of Staff
Office of Supervisor Nate Miley,
Alameda County Board of Supervisors
510-891-5588
seth.kapl an (4)ac gov. or g

Tess Lengyel
Programs and Public Affairs Manager,
Alameda County Transportation Authority
510-893-3347,ext. lll
tlens:r eI(ò actia2022 . c om

Supervisor Liz Kniss
Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors
c/o Marsha Nye Adler
PolicyAnalyst
408-299-50s0
marsha. adler@bo s. scc gov. olg

65



C/CAG
Crry/CouNry AssocrATron on GovnRNMENTS

or Sex Merno CouNry

AlherloncBelmontoBrisbaneoBurlingameoColmacDalyCiryoEastPaloAlto.FosterCityo¡¡oyroonBaycll¡¡t6oroughcMenlopark
MillbraeoPacil'Ìca.PortoloValleycRedwoodCitycsorBrunooSanCarlos.SanMateocsanMateoCountyoSoulhsanFranciscool1ootlsitle

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Call for Applicants

Interested parties should complete the attached BPAC Membership Application and return it to
Tom Madalena by November 28, 2008.

tm ad alena@co. s anm ateo. c a. us

650-361-8227 fax

Tom Madalena
555 County Center
5th Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Membership Application
Applicant - John Fox
1310 Elder Ave
Menlo Park CA 94025
650 328 5809
jd_fox(âatt.net

Please give brief answers to the following questions to be considered for appointment to the
City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee (BPAC).

1. What expertise/experience do you have pertaining to serving on this committee?

I am a longtime recreational cyclist and regular bike commuter to work. Since 2000 I have
served on the City of Menlo Park's Bicycle Commission. In these years the commission
developed the city bike plan, worked on various programs related to Safe Routes to Schools
projects, school safety education programs, and general citizen outreach from commissioner's
rides through Menlo Park. As a commission we have tried over the years to address road

555 County Center, 5'h Floor, Redwood City, CA 940ó3 PHoNn: 650 599.1460 Fex: 650.361.822'l

bb



C/CAG
ClryiCouNry AssocrlTroN oF GovERNMENTS

oF SAN Marro CouNTy

AlhertonoBelmontcBrisbanecBurlingamecColmaoDalyCity¡EastPaloAlto¡FosterCityo¡¡o¡¡roonBay.HillsboroughcMenlopnrk
MíllbraeoPacifrcacPortolaValleyop"¿*oodCitytSorBntnocsanCarlos.SanMateo.sanMoteÒCountycsouthsanFranciscocllootlside

hazards, plan with the city on signage and improvements for cyclists ( such as our wayfaring
signs now in a pilot program in the V/illows neighborhood), and coordinate with the public
on bike to work week efforts, coordinate with our neighbor cities on cross-town routes. We
have had interests in working with the Police Department on important safety enforcement
issues, though funding and staffing limits aÍe Íeal, we think the communications with the
Police are important.

Over the years I learned that to best promote cycling and transit alternatives, one has to listen
to a very diverse community, and to recognize that education of both cyclists and motorists is
key to improving cyclist safety.

2. Why do you want to serye on this committee?

I am now nearing the end ofmy second 4year appointment as a city commissioner, and will be
termed out in April 2009.I have enjoyed working on these cyclist and transit issues, and think
expanding to a larger forum, and one which has a county-wide authority to recommend projects
and suggest how development funds are spent would be an interesting way to use the skills from
my bike commission terms.

2. What special strengths would you bring to the committee?

I think I've learned a bit how the funding proposal system works, and have experience with
public meetings and the importance of hearing from the public.

One aspect of my professional experience - among the courses I teach at Stanford is an
undergraduate seminar in the Applied Physics department "Energy Choices for the 21't Century''.
I've really enjoyed developing this course - and it has offered all sorts of insight into
transportation options, energy use, etc. I served on the Menlo Park Green Ribbon committee
which advised the city council on ways the city could reduce its' environmental impact - and I
made sure that cycling and pedestrian issues were featured as ways the city could contribute in a

positive way to reducing the impact from transportation in Menlo Park.

3. What is the role of the countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee?

As I understand the C/CAG advisory purpose, and the role of the Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee, the county wants an advisorybody to review and recommend projects
submitted by various jurisdictions. Projects related directly to pedestrian and bicycle
improvements, or city proposals to develop bicycle and pedestrian projects are reviewed and
ranked for funding by this committee. In their review the committee has to balance competing
demands from various jurisdictions in the county, and serving various constituents.

4. Have you ever attended a meeting of this committee? If so, when?

555 CountyCenter,5'hFloor, Redwood City,CA94063 PnoN¡: 650.599.1460 Fex: 650.361.8227

67



C/CAG
CITy/CouNTy AssocIATroN oF GoVERNMENTS

on Snx MATEo Couxrv

AthertonoBelmontcBrisbane¡BurlingomecColmaoDalyCítycEastPaloÀlto.FosterCityc¡¡oyroonBayo¡1¡¡t6oroughoMenloPark
MillbraeoPacifca.Portolol/alleyop¿¿roodCitytSanBrunocSanCarloscSanMateo¡SanMaleoCountycSoulhSanFrancisco¡Wootlside

I've never attended a meeting, though I have prepared and reviewed city materials on grants

which were presented to the committee.

5. The C/CAG BPAC meets on the fourth Thursday of the month from 7:00 - 9:00 p.m., do
you have other commitments that will keep you from attending meetings?

I can attend Thursdays once a month. I may have some conflicts from work travel but I would
expect these to be infrequent.

7. Are you a member of any other committees/organizations?

As to cyclingorganizations, I am a member of 'Western Wheelers ( I try to keep mymembership
in SVBC current, too).
I also serve on the county Transit Authority Citizen's Advisory Committee. I enjoy this, and

certainly the larger role of the Transit Authority for all modes of transit is interesting for me.
However, I would particularly be interested in a more direct role for altemative transit ( such as

bike and pedestrian planning). I will be serving on the Menlo park bike commission through
April2009.

8. Please mention the city in which you reside.

I live in Menlo Park

Applications will be reviewed and presented to the C/CAG Board for consideration. Applicants
may be asked to present before the C/CAG Board or its selection subcommittee.

Please email, fax,.or mail your application attention Tom Madalena.

tmadalena@co. sanrnateo. ca. us

650-361-8227 fax

555 County Center
5th Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

555 County Center, 5'h Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063 PsoNs: 650.599.1460 F¡x: 650.361.8227
êct
UÔ



BICYCLE A]VD PEDESTRIAN ADWSORY COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP ROSTER _ 2OO8

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Naomi Patridge Cathy Baylock
City of Half Moon Bay City of Burlingame

Karyl Matsumoto Julie Lancelle
City of South San Francisco City of Pacifica

Matt Grocott (Vice-Chair) Ken Ibarra
City of San Carlos City of San Bruno

Michael Barnes
City of Brisbane

Ian Bain
City of Redwood City

PUBLIC MEMBERS

David Alfano - Chair (Menlo Park) Cory Roay (Daly City)
(Term ended Sept. 2008) (Term ended Sept. 2008)

Juda Tolmasoff (Redwood City) Mark Meadows (Pacifica)

Robert Cronin (Menlo Park) Mike Harding (Menlo Park)
(Term ended Sept. 2008)

Judi Mosqueda (Millbrae)
(Term ended Dec. 2008)

BPAC SUPPORT STAFF

SandyWong Tom Madalena
C/CAG C/CAG
555 County Center, 51h Floor 555 County Center 5th Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063 Redwood City, CA 94063
650-599-1.409 650-599-7460
650-367-8227 - lax 650-361-8227 - fax
slwong@co.sanmateo.ca.us tmadalena@co.sanmateo.ca.us

69



7ø



CICAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: December 1 l, 2008

To: C/CAG Board of Directors

From: Richard Napier, Executive Director

Subject: Review and approval of Resolution 08-68 adopting the Final San Mateo County
Energy Strategy (Energy Strategy) and request cities in San Mateo County to
adopt the Energy Strategy and support implementation of the Energy Strategy

(For further information, contact Richard Napier 650-599-1420)

RECOMMENDATION

That the C/CAG Board review and approve Resolution 08-68 adopting the Final San Mateo
County Energy Strategy (Energy Strategy) and request cities in San Mateo County to adopt the
Energy Strategy and support implementation of the Energy Strategy.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

SOURCE OF FUNDS

N/4.

SAII MATEO COUNTY ENERGY STRATEGY OYERVIEW

The main objective of the San Mateo County Energy Strategy is to bring together local
jurisdictions in the county to work collaboratively on energy and water-related issues and to
define goals, strategies, and possible actions. The Strategy includes five main goals with
associated strategies, actions, resources, and best practices to support them. These goals address

renewable energy and energy efficiency, water conservation and new sources of water,
collaboration between cities and the utilities, economic development opportunities, and the
promotion of leadership on these issues in the county. The San Mateo County Energy Strategy is
intended to be a working document and will be updated over time with resources and current
data.

Staff will be asking the San Mateo County cities to:
o Adopt the goals of the Energy Strategy
. Commit to working collaboratively towards these goals with other cities and the County
o Release utility data to the County and C/CAG for the purposes of tracking the countywide

energy- and water-use reduction goals
. Complete energy, water andCO2 baseline inventories.

71.

ITEM 7.4



BACKGROUND/DIS CUSSION

In February 2006, the Congestion Management and Environmental Committee (CMEQ)
authorized the creation ofan ad hoc energy working group to develop an energy strategy for San

Mateo County. The group was chartered to consider the county's future energy and infrastructure

needs and to recommend how to address these needs in an economically, socially and

environmentally responsible manner.

This working group became the Utility and Sustainability Task Force (USTF), an ad hoc

committee of the Congestion Management and Environmental Quality Committee (CMEQ of
the CitylCounty Association of Govemments (C/CAG). Comprised of six elected officials and

six stakeholder representatives, the USTF first met in June 2006 and began work on the energy

strategy with a project consultant and County staff.

The draft County Energy Strategy was completed in July 2008. The Executive Summary was

presented to the C/CAG Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), the C/CAG Congestion

Management and Environmental Quality (CMEQ) Committee, and the C/CAG Board of
Directors in July and August 2008. The complete draft Energy Strategy was reviewed and

approved by the County Board of Supervisors in September 2008. Both C/CAG and the Board of
Supervisors authorized the distribution of the Energy Strategy to the cities in the county for
comment.

A complete draft copy of the Energy Strategy was sent to all City Managers and Mayors via mail
and e-mail on September 18, 2008; cities were invited to submit comments to the County for
consideration until October 15, 2008. Many of the comments received from cities were

incorporated in the final document. Other comments requested or suggested additional
information about specific actions to implement the Energy Strategy, such as case studies,

program models, and sample policies, as well as more information about how to implement
certain programs and certain technologies. C/CAG and the County plan to incorporate these

requests for additional information in future versions of the Energy Strategy, and there is also the
potential for C/CAG and the County to coordinate workshops that will provide this information.

The "actions" in the Strategy was also changed to "potential actions" per the City of San Carlos'

suggestion, to clarifu that these are suggested actions that may help a city reach the Energy

Strategy's goals. Some actions listed in the Strategy may not work for a particular city and are

not required to be implemented, especially if they are in conflict with a city's existing climate

action plan.

ATTACHMENTS

o Resolution 08-68
. Sample staff recommendation and resolution for cities
o Final San Mateo County Energy Strategy (Enclosed for Board Members and Alternates

only. Please contact Nancy Blair for additional information).

TZ



RESOLUTION 08.68
'?ktr*****rrtr*

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF'SAN MATEO COUNTY
(C/CAG) FOR ADOPTION OF THE SAN MATEO COUNTY ENERGY STRATEGY

(ENERGY STRATEGÐ

*?k******r<tr**rk*?k

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Govemments
of San Mateo County (C/CAG), that

WHEREAS, the Utility and Sustainability Task Force (USTF), an ad hoc committee of
the Congestion Management and Environmental Quality Committee (CMEQ) of the CitylCounty
Association of Governments (C/CAG), completed the San Mateo County Energy Strategy
(Energy Strategy), in order to effect greater collaboration between the utilities and the cities, to
increase energy efficiency and the utilization of renewable energy sources, to increase the
conservation of water, and to reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and

WHEREAS, all cities and the county had the opportunity to review and comment on the
draft Energy Strategy, and many of comments received were incorporated in the final Energy
Strategy; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG seeks to effectively communicate, collaborate, and develop strategic
approaches on issues affecting San Mateo County; and

WHEREAS, C/CAG wishes to distribute the Energy Strategy to all the cities in the
county and ask that they adopt the goals in the Energy Strategy, commit to working
collaboratively towards these goals with other cities and the County, and release utility
information to the County for purposes of tracking energy and water use and greenhouse gas
emissions; and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe C/CAG Board adopts the final San Mateo
County Energy Strategy (Energy Strategy) and request cities in San Mateo County to adopt the
Energy Strategy and support implementation of the Energy Strategy.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS llTH DAY OF DECEMBER 2008.

Deborah C. Gordon, Chair

?3



SAMPLE STAFF REPORT

Your City/C ounty Memo form/letterhead
November _, 2008

To: Honorable Mayor/President/Chair and Members of the Council/Board

From: Name of Chief Executive/StaffResponsible

o Subject: Review and approval of ResoluTion Q{umber) to adopt the San Mateo County
Energy Strategy

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution NumbeLto adopt the San Mateo County Energy Strategy

BACKGROIIND:

In late 2005, President of the Board of Supervisors, Jerry Hill proposed the need for a
countywide task force to investigate and recommend how best to meet the county's current and
future energy needs.

A Novemb er 2005 Board report recommended that San Mateo County's Department of Public
Works, Environmental and Waste Management Section (RecycleWorks), as staff for City and
County Association of Governments (C/CAG), bring forward the idea of an energy strategy
development process to C/CAG's committee for discussion.

In February 2006, the Congestion Management and Air Quality Committee (CMAQ authorized
the creation of an ad hoc energy working group to develop an energy strategy for San Mateo
County. The group was chartered to consider the county's future energy and infrastructure needs
and to recommend how to address these needs in an economically, socially and environmentally
responsible manner.

This working group became the Utility and Sustainability Task Force (USTF), an ad hoc
committee of the Congestion Management and Environmental Quality Committee (CMEQ) of
the CitylCounty Association of Governments (C/CAG). Comprised of six elected officials and
six stakeholder representatives, the USTF first met in June 2006 and began work on the energy
strategy with a project consultant and County staff.

The draft County Energy Strategy was completed in July 2008. The Executive Summary was
presented to the C/CAG Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), the C/CAG Congestion
Management and Environmental Quality (CVßQ) Committee, and the C/CAG Board of
Directors in July and August 2008. The complete draft Energy Strategy was reviewed and
approved by the County Board of Supervisors in September 2008. Both C/CAG and the Board of

74



Supervisors authorized the distribution of the Energy Strategy to the cities in the county for
comment.

A complete draft copy of the Energy Strategy was sent to all City Managers and Mayors via mail
and e-mail on September 18, 2008; Cities were invited to submit comments to the County for
consideration until October 15, 2008. The County received comments from several cities and
was able to incorporate many of the comments. Overall, the feedback was positive: cities said
that the Energy Strategy would support their own climate action goals and efforts. :[.lnf,of,iï+atisû
abOUt:::th e:,COrnr,trent$: :City,,,sub:mítted;: :if : apþ-li,rAb,le)

The final County Energy Strategy was reviewed and approved by the C/CAG Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisors, USTF, C/CAG Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), the C/CAG
Congestion Management and Environmental Quality (Cl\ßQ) Committee in November and
December 2008 and is ready for adoption by the all the cities in the County.

The San Mateo County Energy Strategy is one piece of a concerted effort countywide called
"COz San Mateo County" to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and take action on climate
change. Other efforts include a new (partially grant funded) County staff person to provide
support to the Cities, volunteer staff support for Cities, financial support for greenhouse gas

emission inventories that has already been offered by C/CAG, a new partnership with PG&E to
fund energy efficiency projects for the cities in the county ("San Mateo County Energy Watch"),
and other resources available to Cities from several nonprofit organizations.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

The main objective of the San Mateo County Energy Strategy is to bring together the cities in the
county to work collaboratively on energy and water-related issues; to define goals, to propose
strategies and actions; and to provide resources, The Strategy includes five main goals with
associated strategies, actions, and best practices to support them. These goals address renewable
energy and energy effrciency, water conservation and new sources of water, collaboration
between cities and the utilities, economic development opportunities, and the promotion of
leadership on these issues in the county.

The Strategy's goals for energy and water usage are consistent with the current institutional
thinking in our region and State: the energy goal is related to current State legislation (4832),
and the water goal is based on current projections by the Bay Area Water Supply and
Conservation Agency and contracts with the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission.
Although these topics are very important, the Energy Strategy does not specifically include
transportation or solid waste because these topics were not included in the scope of work of the
USTF committee. The San Mateo County Energy Strategy is intended to be a working document
and will be updated over time with resources and current data and could include these other
important topics in a future update.

,*,. ..änd.i..höw...ttre,.Couni¡1 r' , .riSfrâr
fits W,ork:;';;,,;li Collaborating with other cities facing

similar challenges in the county will save the City time and resources and reduce the risk of

lf,



implementation pitfalls: cities will learn about and share best practices and will be able to take
advantage of staff suppoft, training and even bulk purchasing opportunities for items such as

solar by having a greater connection with other cities in San Mateo and Santa Clara counties.

By adopting this resolution, the City will be adopting the goals of the San Mateo County Energy
Strategy and committing to pursuing the next steps recommended by the Strategy:

¡ Commit to working collaboratively with other cities and the County
o Release energy and water utility data to the County and C/CAG for the purposes of

tracking countywide energy-use and emission-reduction goals

The City will assign one staff person and one elected offìcial to be the main contact for the City's
climate action program for the County and C/CAG. C/CAG and the County need City contacts
for purposes of routing information about the Energy Strategy, not for purposes of establishing a

new C/CAG committee. If the City does not assign these contacts, the City's existing C/CAG
Board member and TAC member will become the contacts for this program.

By adopting the Energy Strategy, the City is not required to adopt and implement every action
suggested in the Energy Strategy; some actions listed in the Strategy may not work for the City
or may conflict with the City's current climate action plan. The intention of the energy strategy is
to support city efforts, to provide resources and to promote collaboration.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS :

There is no membership fee to adopt the San Mateo County Energy Strategy, so there is no
financial impact at this time. Some actions recommended by the Strategy may require City
funding and will be evaluated by the city on a case-by-case basis. Other actions may be funded
through rebates, grants, or partnerships. One of the objectives of the Strategy is to save Cities
money by sharing resources, expertise and purchasing power.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

If the City adopts the San Mateo County Energy Strategy, there is no requirement to implement
all the actions suggested in the Strategy and there are no penalties for not meeting targets by
specific deadlines.

?Ê



SAMPLE RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF TIIE CITY COUNCIL OF TFIE CITY OF
THE SAN MATEO COUNTY ENERGY STRATEGY

TO ADOPT

WIIEREAS, the City of is committed to reducing greenhouse gas

emissions and taking action on climate change; and

WHEREAS, the San Mateo County Energy Strategy identifies five main goals with

associated actions related to renewable energy and energy efficiency, water conservation and

new sources of water, collaboration between cities and with utilities, economic development

opportunities, and promoting leadership; and

WHEREAS, the San Mateo County Energy Strategy complements and supports the

City's current climate action program by....[Cities can provide information about their

programs];

WHEREAS, the Utility and Sustainability Task Force, an ad hoc committee of the

Congestion Management and Environmental Quality Committee of the City/County Association

of Governments (C/CAG), was chartered in 2006 to develop a countywide energy strategy that

would consider the county's future energy and infrastructure needs and recommend how to

address these needs in an economically, socially, and environmentally responsible manner; and

WHEREAS, the City received a draft County Energy Strategy in September 2008 for

comment [and provided comments/feedback to the County]; and

WHEREAS, the final County Energy Strategy was completed in November 2008 and

approved by the County Board of Supervisors and C/CAG Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the County Energy Strategy is one piece of a concerted effort countywide

called "COz San Mateo County" to take action on climate change, including a ne\ry County staff

person to provide support to the Cities, a new partnership with PG&E called San Mateo County

Energy Watch to fund energy effrciency projects in the county, and other resources available to

Cities from several nonprofit organizations.

NOW, TIIEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of

adopts the San Mateo County Energy Strategy.

BE IT FURTIIER RESOLVED that the City commits to pursuing the next steps

recommended by the Strategy: committing to working collaboratively with other Cities and

the County towards the goals of the Energy Strategy and releasing energy and water utility

data to the County and C/CAG for tracking purposes

77



Regularly passed and adopted this

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

day of 2008 by the following vote:

Chair/Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

78



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT

I)ate: December 11, 2008

To: City/County Association of Governments Board of Directors

From: Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director

Subject: Review and approval of the C/CAG Quarterly Investment Report, Policy, and
County of San Mateo Pooled Investment Report.

(For further information or questions, contact Richard Napier at 650-599-1420)

RECOMMENDATION:

CiCAG staff has reviewed the reports and recommendations from C/CAG's Financial Agent
(City of San Carlos) and agree with its findings and recommendations. Therefore, C/CAê staff
recommends approval of:

7.5.1 Review and approval of the C/CAG Quarterly Investment Report as of September 30,
2008

7 .5.2 Review and approval of Resolution 08-67 adopting the C/CAG Investment Policy for
2008-09 (Special voting required).

This is in accordance with the C/CAG staff and Financial Agent recommendations.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Return on investment of C/CAG Funds. Approximately $250K per year in earnings.

SOURCE OF FUNDS:

Earnings on investments of C/CAG funds in accordance with the adopted C/CAG Investment
Policy.

BACKGROUNDIDIS CUS SION:

The City of San Carlos is the Financial Agent for C/CAG. The Financial Agent invests C/CAG
funds in accordance with the adopted C/CAG Investment Policy. A quarterly C/CAG
Investment Report is provided. Annually C/CAG reviews and makes changes to the C/CAG
Investment Policy.

c/cAG INVESTMENT REPORT AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2008:

This is the Quarterly Investment report provided by the Financial Agent The two liquid
investments used are the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) managed by the State and the
San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL) The C/CAG portfolio for the Quarter Ending

ITEN'T 7.5

79



September 30, 2008 achieved a combined return of 3. 10 per cent. Horvever, after adjusting for
the I00Yo write-off of the Lehman Brothers investments ihe combined return was -l .5%o for the
quarter' The Lehman Brothers write-off (lOO%) occurred in the San Mateo County Investment
Pool. It is likely that a minimum or 5OYo of the write-off will be returned in the bankruptcy
proceedings. Gven that this is only reporting the actual return achieved it is recommended that
the C/CAG Board approve the report as presented.

REVTEW AND APPROVAL OF THE C/CAG INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 2OO8-09:

This is the annual review of the C/CAG Investment Policy. It is recogn ized thatthese are
unusual financial times with the serious collapse of financial markets. The¡efore, the Board
should update as necessary its Investment Policy. First one should look at how well the policy
performed in this financial downturn, C/CAG's funds were invested with the focus on
preservation of capital. Although a -l .5Yo quarterJy return is not desirable, it reasonably
preserved the capital under extreme financial times. Having said that the performance does merit
that questions be posed and changes recommended to the Sán Mateo County Investment pool.
C/CAG staff recommends that the Board adopt the C/CAG Investment poüóy for 2O0g-09.

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO POOLED INVESTMENT POLICY:

The main questions raised relate to the County of San Mateo Pooled fnvestment policy The
following changes are currently under consideration:

1- Reduce the Commercial Paper/ Floating Rate notes maximum from 1O per cent to 2
per cent.

2- Reduce the Corporate bonds and medium term notes including asset backed bonds
(two agencies) maximum from 10 per cent to 2 per cent.

3- The County will contract with a third-party financial adviser to advise and assist the
Treasury Oversight Committee. The Adviser will review and recommend changes to
the investment policy.

4- Add Internal Controls designed to prevent losses of pooled funds due to fraud,
employee error, misrepresentations by third parties, unanticipated changes in
financial markets or imprudent actions by employees of the county.

5- Changes to the Method of Accounting.

C/CAG staff recommends that the Board support and encourage these changes to the County of
San Mateo Pooled Investment Policy.

ATTACHMENTS:

7 .5.I Quarterly Investment Report as of September 30, 2OOg,
7 5.2 Resolution 08-67
7.5.2 Adoption of C/CAG Investment policy.
7 5.3 County Investment Pool
7 5.3 Information regarding the Investment Pool and the Lehman Brothers Investment and

Bankruptcy.

Bø



ITY AND COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNME
Board of Directors Aqenda Re

To:
From:
Date:

Richard Napier, Executive Director
Jeff Maltbie, Administrative Services Director
December 11, 2008

SUBJECT: Quarterly Investment Report as of September 30, 2008

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the C/CAG Board review and accept the Quarterly lnvestment
Report.

ANALYSIS
The attached investment report indicates that on September 30, 2008, funds in the
amount of $ 9,945,126 were invested producing a weighted average yield of 3.1Oo/o.

Accrued interest this quarter totaled $68,161. However, this interest income was offset
by a loss reported from the San Mateo County lnvestment Pool in the amount of
$222,171.

Below is a summary of the changes in the portfolio:

Qtr Ended
9/30/08

Qtr Ended
6/30/08

lncrease
(Decrease)

Total Portfolio $ 9,945,126 $ 8,378,570 $ 1.566.556
Wotd Avq Yield 3.10% 3.18o/c -0,08%
lnterest Earninos $ (154,010) $ 66,556 $ (220,566)

The increase in the portfolio totaling $1,566,556 is attributable to the receipt of the
interest accrued in June 2008 and excess receipts over disbursements that were
transferred to the investment accounts. The decrease in interest income is due to the
continued decline in market rates and the posting of the loss by the San Mateo County
Pool.

As further described in the attached memo from Lee Buffington, County Treasurer, the
loss was incurred from holdings the investment pool had in Lehman Brothers. On
September 15,2008, Lehman Brothers filed a petition forbankruptcy. Atthetime, the
San Mateo County lnvestment Pool had approximately 5o/o of the total holdings
invested in Lehman Brothers. The County Pool has hired an attorney to represent the
interests of all of the investors in the Pool (including C/CAG) in the bankruptcy
proceedings. Attached is a copy of the lawsuit filed on November 13,2008 in the
Superior Court of California. ln addition, the County is reaching out to Federal Elected
Officials for any assistance that might be available through the bailout or other
legislation. Many local school districts have been especially hard hit because state law
requires that all their funds be put in their county pool exclusively. Our portfolio is more

CCAG Quarterly lnvestment Report 09-30-08

öI

ITEI\T 7.5.1



diversified which may have reduced our exposure and loss due to the Lehman
bankruptcy. ln addition, over the past month, staff has transferred the maximum
amount of funds from the County Pool into LAIF.

As per the San Mateo County Pool lnvestment Pool Policy, gains or losses are
attributed to the balance of each depositor on a quarterly basis. As such, the entire
loss was recorded in the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

The GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB), through GASB 31, requires
governmental entities to report their investments at fair market value as part of the
annual reporting. Because of changing market conditions, C/CAG investments may, at
times, appear to be losing value. However, because it is our intent to hold investments
to maturity, apparent reporting losses in principal are "pape/'losses only and in most
cases are reported on an annual basis for the San Mateo County Pool. This quarter
was unusual as the entire portion of the loss was accrued and deducted from the book
balance in October 2008. GASB 31 fair market value of the current investments is
$9,722,955 compared to a total book value on September 30, 2008 of $9,945,126.

Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an
ongoing basis to ensure that C/CAG's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid
to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. As of June 30, 2008, the
portfolio contains enough liquidity to meet the next six months of expected
expenditures by C/CAG. All investments are in compliance with the lnvestment Policy.
Attachment 2 shows a historical comparison of the portfolio for the past seven quarters.

The City's lnvestment Advisory Committee has reviewed and approved the attached

lnvestment Report.

Attachments
1 - lnvestment Portfolio Summary for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2008
2 - Historical Summary of lnvestment Portfolio
3 - Letter from County Treasurer dated October 14,2008

CCAG Quarterly lnvestment Report 09-30-08

onTL

Page 2



SUMMARY OF ALL INVESTMENTS
For Quarter Ending September 30, 2008

Category

ultf,fri:çE¡¡i6nfsI:raii:i::::::,iii:::::,,:::,,,::::i::::;::::::::::::::ii:i:,:::::::::i:::

Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF)
S. M. County lnvestment Pool (COPOOL)

if€lI/*|::9,F.:,'€!O,FÈTf€tl¡¡9,:,iiri:riiir;::,i:::ir:::!::'!;,.::,:

Total Accrued lnterest th¡s Quarter
Total Lehman Loss
Total lnterest Earned (Loss) Fiscal-Year-to-Date

5,018,363
4,926,763

f -ro-gãll-r--s-;ì1Fll-11,r5-ã-l
68,161

(222,1711
(154,010)

277o/o

3.44To

l--3 to./A f---1,%Efr6 I 9,722,955

GASB 31 ADJ
Market Value

5,018,363
4,704,592

01
ôL)



City/County Association of Governments
Historical Summary of lnvestment Portfolio

12,000,000

10,000,000

8,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

El SM County Pool

E LAIF

Mar-07 Jun-07 Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08

City/County Association of Governments lnvestment Portfolio

Mar-07 Jun-07 Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08
LA|F 3,663¡42 3,259,805 4,807,185 4,859,593 5,169,947 4,972,951 5,0.18,363
SM County Pool
Total

TT



RESOLUTION 08.67

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CITY/COUNTY
ASSOCTATTON OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY (C/CAG)

ADOPTING THE C/CAG INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FY 2OO8-09

\ryHEREAS, the CityiCounty Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo
County is a Joint Powers Authority created by the Cities and the County; and,

\ryHEREAS, C/CAG utilizes the services of its member agencies in order to minimize
staffand cost; and,

WIIEREAS, the City of San Carlos has been designated as the Financial Agent for
C/CAG, and,

ÏVIIEREAS, the City of San Carlos invests the C/CAG funds under its control; and,

WIIEREAS, it is important for the C/CAG Board to provide clear investment Policy
direction.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
CitylCounty Association of Governments of San Mateo County that the attached Investment
Policy is approved and adopted.

PASSED, APPRO\rED, AND ADOPTED Trrrs l1TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2008.

Deborah C. Gordon - Chair

85

ITEtlr 7.5.2



86



ITY AND COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMEN
Board of Directors Aqenda Repo

To: Richard Napier, Executive Director
From: Jeff Maltbie, Administrative Services Director
Date: September, 2008

SUBJECT: Adoption of C/CAG lnvestment Policy

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the C/CAG Board review and approve the adoption of the attached
C/CAG lnvestment Policy.

ANALYSIS
The City of San Carlos is the Financial Agent for C/CAG. The C/CAG lnvestment Policy is fully
compliant with California Code and is modeled after the City of San Carlos. The primary
objective of the lnvestment Policy is safety of principal, while meeting the cash flow needs of
the JPA, through prudent investment of unexpended cash.

The policy review section indicates that the lnvestment Policy shall be adopted by resolution
on an annual basis. On July 31, 2008, the updated Annual lnvestment Policy was sent to the
lnvestment Committee consisting of City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Administrative
Services Director and City Treasurer of the City of San Carlos for their approval. The only
change to the policy that has been recommended is the removal of the position of Financial
Services Manager since that position was eliminated in June 2008.

Attachments
1 - Resolution
2 - CICAG lnvestment Policy

87



CITY AND COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
INVESTMENT POLICY

August 2008+

POLICY
The investment of the funds of the City and County Association of Governments (C/CAG) is
directed to the goals of safety, liquidity and yield. This Investment Policy incorporates the policies
defined by the certified investment policy standards recommended by the Association of Public
Treasurers. The authority governing investments for municipal governments is set forth in the
California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659.

The primary objective of the investment policy of the City and County Association of Governments
is SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL. Investments shall be placed in those securities as outlined by type
and maturity sector in this document. Effective cash flow management and resulting cash
investment practices are recognized as essential to good frscal management and control. C/CAG's
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent
with state and local law. Portfolio management requires continual analysis and as a result the
balance between the various investments and maturities may change in order to give C/CAG the
optimum combination of necessary liquidity and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.

SCOPE
The investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City and County Association of
Governments. Policy statements outlined in this document focus on C/CAG's pooled funds.

PRUDENCE
The standard to be used by investment officials shall be that of a "prudent investor" and shall be
applied in the context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. 'When investing, reinvesting,
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care,
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to,
the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency,that aprudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a
like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the
agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an
overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.

It is C/CAG's full intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity to ensure the
return of all invested principal dollars.

Ilowever, it is realized that market prices of securities will vary depending on economic and
interest rate conditions at any point in time. It is further recognized that in a well-diversified
investment portfolio, occasional measured losses are inevitable due to economic, bond market or
individual security credit analysis. These occasional losses must be considered within the context
of the overall investment program objectives and the resultant long-term rate of return.

The Administrative Services Director and other individuals assigned to manage the investment
portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other written procedures
and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and liability for an
individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are
reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

0û



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 2

OBJECTIVES

Safety of Principal
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the City and County Association of Governments.
Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from
securities default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value. C/CAG shall seek to preserve
principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk.

Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by
investing in investment grade securities and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the
failure of any one issuer does not unduly harm C/CAG's capital base and cash flow.

Market risk, defined as market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the general level of
interest rates, shall be mitigated by limiting the average maturity of C/CAG's investment portfolio
to two years, the maximum maturity of any one security to five years, structuring the portfolio
based on historic and current cash flow analysis eliminating the need to sell securities prior to
maturity and avoiding the purchase of long term securities for the sole purpose of short term
speculation.

Liquidity
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing basis in
an effort to ensure that C/CAG's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
C/CAG to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements.

MATURITY MATRIX
Maturities of investments will be selected based on liquidity requirements to minimize interest rate
risk and maximize earnings. Current and expected yield curve analysis will be monitored and the
portfolio will be invested accordingly. The weighted average maturity of the pooled portfolio
should not exceed two years and the following percentages of the portfolio should be invested in
the following maturity sectors:

Maturity Range
Suggested Percentage
I day to 7 days
7 days to 180
180 days to 360 days
1 year to 2 years
2years to 3 years
3 years to 4 years
4 years to 5 years
Over 5 years

l0 to 50%
I0 to 30Yo

l0 to 30Yo

I0 to 20Yo

0 to 20Yo

0 to 20Yo

0 to 20Yo

Board Authorization Required *

* One exception does exist regarding the investment of bond reserve funds. If in the opinion of the
Administrative Services Director, matching the segregated investment portfolio of the bond reserve
fund with the maturity schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given current economic
analysis, the investment policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity limitation as

outlined in this document.

89



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 3

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Day to day management of C/CAG's portfolio is conducted by the Finance Officer. Investment
performance is monitored and evaluated by the Investment Advisory Committee. Investment
performance statistics and activity reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the
Investment Advisory Committee and to the C/CAG Board Annually, a statement of investment
policy, and any proposed changes to the policy, will be rendered to the Investment Advisory
Committee and to the C/CAG Board for consideration at a public meeting.

C/CAG's investment portfolio is designed to at least attain a market average rate of return through
economic cycles. The market average rate of return is defrned as average return on the Local
Agency Investment Fund (assuming the State does not adversely affect LAIF's returns due to
budget constraints).

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The Joint Powers Authority Agreement of the City and County Association of Governments and

the authority granted by the C/CAG Board, assign the responsibility of investing unexpended cash

to the Administrative Services Director. Daily management responsibility of the investment
program may be delegated to the Finance Officer, who shall establish procedures for the operation
consistent with this investment policy.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
An investment committee consisting of the City of San Carlos Treasuret, City Manager, Assistant
City Manager, and Administrative Services Director shall be established to provide general
oversight and direction concerning the policy related to management of C/CAG's investment pool.

The Finance Officer shall not be a member of the committee but shall serve in a staff and advisory
capacity. The committee shall review and approve quarterly investment reports prepared by the
Finance Department and reviewed by the Finance Officer or meet as necessary to discuss changes

to the report or the investment strategy. The Investment Committee serving as the legislative body
of the Investment Policy will have the quarterly reports for their review within thirty (30) days

following the end of the quarter covered by the report as per Section 53646 (bXl) of the California
Government Code.

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Offrcers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business

activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program, or impairs their ability to
make impartial investment decisions. Additionally the Administrative Services Director and the
Finance Officer are required to annually file applicable financial disclosures as required by the Fair
Political Practices Commission (FPPC).

SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities
dealer, all securities owned by C/CAG shall be held in safekeeping by a third party bank trust
department, acting as agent for C/CAG under the terms of a custody agreement. All trades

executed by a dealer will settle delivery versus payment (DVP) through C/CAG's safekeeping
agent.

90



City and County Association
Investment Policy

of Governments

Securities held custody for C/CAG shall be monitored by the
verify investment holdings.

Page 4

Administrative Services Director to

All exceptions to this safekeeping policy must be approved by the Administrative Services Director
in written form and included in the quarterly reporting to the Investment Committee and the
C/CAG Board.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Separation of functions between the Administrative Services Director or Finance Officer and-the

andlortheSeniorAccountantisdesignedtoprovideanongoing
internal review to prevent the potential for converting assets or concealing transactions.

Investment decisions are made by the Administrative Services Director, executed by the
Administrative Services Director or Finance Officer and confirmed by the F-inanciaL Serviees
*+anaær-erSenior Accountant. All wire transfers initiated by the Administrative Services Director
or Finance Officer must be reconfirmed by the appropriate financial institution byto the Fjnanei-a.l

Ser+iees-Manager-or-the-Senior Accountant. Proper documentation obtained from confirmation
and cash disbursement wire transfers is required for each investment transaction. Timely bank
reconciliation is conducted to ensure proper handling of all transactions.

The investment portfolio and all related transactions are reviewed and balanced to appropriate
general ledger accounts by the Senior Accountant on a monthly basis. An independent analysis by
an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review and perform procedure testing on the
Agency's cash and investments that have a material impact on the financial statements. The
Administrative Services Director andlor Investment Committee shall ¡eview and assure compliance
with investment process and procedures.

REPORTING
The Administrative Services Director shall review and render quarterly reports to the Investment
Advisory Committee and to the C/CAG Board which shall include the face amount of the cash
investment, the classification of the investment, the name of the institution or entity, the rate of
interest, the maturity date, the current market value and accrued interest due for all securities. The
quarterly reports will be submitted to the Investment Committee within thirty (30) days following
the end of the quarter covered by the report as per Section 53646 (bX1) of the California
Gove¡nment Code. Once approved by the Investment Committee, the quarterly reports shall be
placed on C/CAG's meeting agenda for its review and approval no later than 75 days after the
quarter ends.

QUALIF'IED BROKER/DEALERS
C/CAG shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and with broker/dealers
registered with the State of California or the Securities and Exchange Committee. The
broker/dealers should be primary or regional dealers. The Administrative Services Director will
make exceptions only upon written authorization. Investment staff shall investigate dealers
wishing to do business with C/CAG's staff to determine if they are adequately capitalized, have
pending legal action against the firm or the individual broker and make markets in the securities
appropriate to C/CAG's needs.

9L



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 5

The Administrative Services Director or Finance Officer shall annually send a copy of the current
investment policy to all broker/dealers approved to do business with C/CAG. Confirmation of
receipt of this policy shall be considered evidence that the dealer understands C/CAG's investment
policies and intends to sell C/CAG only appropriate investments authorized by this investment

policy,

COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS
Collateral is required for investments in certificates of deposit. In order to reduce market risk, the

collateral level will be at least 7l0yo of market value of principal and accrued interest.

In order to conform with the provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy Code which provides for
liquidation of securities held as collateral, the only securities acceptable as collateral shall be

certificates of deposit, commercial paper, eligible banker's acceptances, medium term notes or

securities that are direct obligations of, or are fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the

United States or any agency of the United States.

AUTIIORIZED INVESTMENTS
Investment of C/CAG's funds is governed by the California Government Code Sections 53600 et

seq. Within the context of the limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further
limited herein:

United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes or those for which the full faith and credit of
the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no percentage

limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-year
maturity limitation is applicable.

Obligations issued by the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), the

Federal Farm Credit System (FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Bank Board (FHLB), the

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Student Loan Marketing Association
(SLMA), and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). There is no

percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-
year maturity limitation is applicable.

Investments detailed in items 3 through 10 are further restricted to a percentage of the cost

value of the portfolio in any single issuer name to a maximum of 5Yo, The total value

invested in any one issuer shall not exceed 5o/o of the issuers net worth. Again, afle-year
maximum maturity limitation is applicable unless further restricted by this policy.

Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by commercial banks, otherwise

known as banker's acceptances. Banker's acceptances purchased may not exceed 180 days

to maturity or 30Yo of the cost value of the portfolio.

Commercial paper ranked Pl by Moody's Investor Services or A1+ by Standard & Poor's,

and issued by domestic corporations having assets in excess of $500,000,000 and having an

AA or better rating on its' long term debentures as provided by Moody's or Standard &,

Poor's. Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity nor

I

J

9Z



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 6

represent more than 10o/o of the outstanding paper of the issuing corporation. Purchases of
commercial paper may not exceed 15% of the costvalue of the portfolio.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by nationally or state chartered banks (FDIC
insured institutions) or state or federal savings institutions. Purchases of negotiable
certifrcates of deposit may not exceed 30Yo of total portfolio. A maturity limitation of five
years is applicable.

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed investment
pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the maximum permitted
by California State Law. A thorough.review of the pool/fund is required when they are part
of the list of authorized investments.

Time deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized in accordance with the California
Government Code, may be purchased through banks or savings and loan associations. Since
time deposits are not liquid, no more than 25Yo of the investment portfolio may be invested
in this investment type,

Medium Term Corporate Notes, with a maximum maturity of five years may be purchased.
Securities eligible for investment shall be rated AA or better by Moody's or Standard &.

Poor's rating services. Purchase of medium term notes may not exceed 30Yo of the market
value of the portfolio and no more than l5o/o of the market value of the portfolio may be
invested in notes issued by one corporation. Commercial paper holdings should also be
included when calculating the l5Yo limitation.

Ineligible investments are those that are not described herein, including but not limited to,
common stocks and long term (over fìve years in maturity) notes and bonds are prohibited
from use in this portfolio, It is noted that special circumstances arise that necessitate the
purchase of securities beyond the five-year limitation. On such occasions, requests must be

approved by the C/CAG Board prior to purchase.

Various daily money market funds administered for or by trustees, paying agents and
custodian banks contracted by the City and County Association of Governments may be
purchased as allowed under State of California Government Code. Only funds holding U.S.
Treasury or Government agency obligations can be utilized.

The following summary of maximum percentage limits, by instrument, are established for C/CAG's
total pooled funds portfolio:

8

9

10

n4JJ



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy

Investment Type
Repurchase Agreements
Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool
US Treasury BondsÀ{otes/Bills
US Government Agency Obligations
Bankers' Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certifi cates of Deposit
Time Certifi cates of Deposit
Medium Term Corporate Notes
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Percenta&e/Amount
0%
$40,000,000 per account
$40,000,000 per account
0to 100%
0to 100%
0 to 30Yo

0 to 75Yo

0 to 30o/o

0 to 25Yo

0 to 30Yo

0%

Page 7

DERTVATI\rE INVESTMENTS
Derivatives are investments whose value is "derived" from a benchmark or index That benchmark
can be almost any financial measure from interest rates to commodity and stock prices. The Joint
Powers Authority will not invest directly in derivative investments However, derivative
investments could be made by the San Mateo County Pool or the Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) in which C/CAG invests. Securities or investments classified as derivatives must be issued
by an agency or entity authorized by this policy.

LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
Any State of California legislative action that further restricts allowable maturities, investment
type, or percentage allocations will be incorporated into the City and County Association of
Governments" Investment Policy and supersede any and all previous applicable language.

INTEREST EARNINGS
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated
quarterly based on statements received from LAIF, the San Mateo County Pool, and the
Safekeeper.

LIMITING MARKET VALUE EROSION
The longer the maturity of securities, the greater their market price volatility. Therefore, it is the
general policy of C/CAG to limit the potential effects from erosion in market values by adhering to
the following guidelines:

All immediate and anticipated liquidity requirements will be addressed prior to purchasing all
investments,

Maturity dates for long-term investments will coincide with significant cash flow requirements
where possible, to assist with short term cash requirements at maturity.

All long-term securities will be purchased with the intent to hold all investments to maturity under
then prevailing economic conditions. Ilowever, economic or market conditions may change,
making it in C/CAG's best interest to sell or trade a security prior to maturity.

94



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY
The investment program shall seek to augment returns consistent with the intent
identified risk limitations and prudent investment principals. These objectives will
use of the following strategies:

Page 8

of this policy,
be achieved by

Active Portfolio Management. Through active fund and cash flow management, taking advantage
of current economic and interest rate trends, the portfolio yield may be enhanced with limited and
measurable increases in risk by extending the weighted maturity of the total portfolio.

Portfolio Maturity Management, When structuring the maturity composition of the portfolio,
C/CAG shall evaluate current and expected interest rate yields and necessary cash flow
requirements. It is recognized that in normal market conditions longer maturities produce higher
yields. However, the securities with longer maturities also experience greater price fluctuations
when the level of interest rates change.

Security Swaps. C/CAG may take advantage of security swap opportunities to improve the overall
portfolio yield. A swap, which improves the portfolio yield, may be selected even if the
transactions result in an accounting loss. Documentation for swaps will be included in C/CAG's
permanent investment file documents.

Competitive Bidding. It is the policy of C/CAG to require competitive bidding for investment
transactions that are not classified as "new issue" securities. For the purchase of non-"new issue"
securities and the sale of all securities at least three bidders must be contacted. Competitive bidding
for security swaps is also suggested, however, it is understood that certain time constraints and
broker portfolio limitations exist which would not accommodate the competitive bidding process.
If a time or portfolio constraining condition exists, the pricing of the swap should be verified to
current market conditions and documented for auditing purposes.

POLICY REVIEW
The City and County Association of Governments' investment policy shall be adopted by resolution
of the C/CAG Board on an annual basis. This investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually
to ensure its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield,
and its relevance to current law and frnancial and economic trends. Any amendments to the policy
shall be forwarded to the C/CAG Board for approval.

95



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy

Glossary of Terms

Page 9

Accrued Interest- Interest earned but not yet received.

Active Deposits- Funds which are immediately required for disbursement.

Amortization- An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time.

Asked Price- The price a broker dealer offers to sell securities.

Basis Point- One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01).

Bid Price- The price a broker dealer offers to purchase securities,

Bond- A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specified
stream of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.

Bond Swap - Selling one bond issue and buying another at the same time in order to create an
advantage for the investor, Some benefits of swapping may include tax-deductible losses,
increased yields, and an improved quality portfolio.

Book Entry Securities - Securities, such stocks held in "street name," that are recorded in a
customer's account, but are not accompanied by a certificate. The trend is toward a certificate-free
society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors' concerns about the
certificates themselves All the large New York City banks, including those that handle the bulk of
the transactions of the major government securities dealers, now clear most of their transactions
with each other and with the Federal Reserve through the use of automated telecommunications
and the "book-entry" custody system maintained by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.
These banks have deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank a major portion of their government
and agency securities holdings, including securities held for the accounts of their customers or in a
fiduciary capacity. Virtually all transfers for the account of the banks, as well as for the
government securities dealers who are their clients, are now effected solely by bookkeeping entries.
The system reduces the costs and risks of physical handling and speeds the completion of
transactions,

Bearer and Registered Bonds - In the past, bearer and registered bonds were issued in paper form.
Those still outstanding may be exchanged at any Federal Reserve Bank or branch for an equal
amount of any authorized denomination of the same issue. Outstanding bearer bonds are
interchangeable with registered bonds and bonds in "book-entry" form. That is, the latter exist as
computer entries only and no paper securities are issued. New bearer and registered bonds are no
longer being issued. Since August 1986, the Treasury's new issues of marketable notes and bonds
are available in book-entry form only. All Treasury bills and more than 90o/o of all other
marketable securities are now in book-entry form. Book-entry obligations are transferable only
pursuant to regulations prescribed by the Secretary ofthe Treasury.

Book Value- The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount.

96



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 10

Broker - In securities, the intermediary between a buyer and a seller of securities. The broker, who
usually charges a commission, must be registered with the exchange in which he or she is trading,
accounting for the name registered representative.

Certificate of Deposit- A deposit insured up to $100,000 by the FDIC at a set rate for a specified
period of time.

Collateral- Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys.

Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT)- An average yield of a specific Treasury maturity sector for a
specific time frame. This is a market index for reference of past direction of interest rates for the
given Treasury maturity range.

Coupon- The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the
bond's face value.

Credit Analysis- A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the
ability to meet debt obligations.

Current Yield- The interest paid on an investment expressed as a percentage of the current price of
the security.

Custody- A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal,

Delivery vs. Payment (DVP)- Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for
the securities.

Discount- The difference between the cost of a secu¡ity and its value at maturity when quoted at
lower than face value.

Diversification- Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent
returns and risk profiles.

Duration- The weighted average maturity of a bond's cash flow stream, where the present value of
the cash flows serve as the weights; the future point in time at which on average, an investor has
received exactly half of the original investment, in present value terms; a bond's zero-coupon
equivalent; the fulcrum of a bond's present value cash flow time line.

Fannie Mae- Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U.S.
sponsored corporation.

Federal Reserve System- The central bank of the U.S. that consists of a seven member Board of
Governors, 12 regional banks and 5,700 commercial banks that are members.

97



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page l1

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)- Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing
bank that guarantees deposits to a set limit (currently $100,000) per account.

Fed Wire- A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system.

Freddie Mac- Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S
sponsored corporation.

Ginnie Mae- Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct
obligation bearing the fulI faith and credit of the U.S. Government.

Inactive Deposits- Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.

Interest Rate- The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.
Investment Agreements- An agreement with a financial institution to borrow public funds subject
to certain negotiated terms and conditions concerning collateral, liquidity and interest rates.

Liquidity- Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash.

Market Value- The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold,

Maturity- The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and
payable.

New Issue- Term used when a security is originally "brought" to market.

Perfected Delivery- Refers to an investment where the actual security or collateral is held by an
independent third party representing the purchasing entity.

Portfolio- Collection of securities held by an investor.

Primary Dealer- A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market
activity and security positions held to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its
informal oversight.

Purchase Date- The date in which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date.

Rate of Return- The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return.

Repurchase Agreement (REPO)- A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from the
buyer (C/CAG) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.

Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPO)- A transaction where the seller (C/CAG)
agrees to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period
of time.

98



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 12

Risk- Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset,

Safekeeping- see custody.

Sallie Mae- Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), a U.S, sponsored
corporation.

Secondary Market- A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the
initial distribution,

Settlement Date- The date on which atrade is cleared by delivery of securities against funds.

Time Deposit - A deposit in an interest-paying account that requires the money to remain on
account for a specific length of time. While withdrawals can generally be made from a passbook
account at any time, other time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, are penalized for early
withdrawal.

Treasury Bills- U. S . Treasury Bills which are short-term, direct obligations of the U. S. Government
issued with original maturities of 13 weeks, 26 weeks and 52 weeks; sold in minimum amounts of
$10,000 in multiples of $5,000 above the minimum. Issued in book entry form only. T-bills are
sold on a discount basis.

U.S. Government Agencies- Instruments issued by various US Government Agencies most of
which are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular ageîcy.

Yield- The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage.It is obtained
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price of the security.

Yield to Maturity- The rate of income return on an investment, minus any premium or plus any
discount, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of
maturity of the bond, expressed as a percentage.

Yield Curve- The yield on bonds, notes or bills of the same type and credit risk at a specific date
for maturities up to thirty years.

99



RESOLUTION NO
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD

CITY AND COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
Adoption of the lnvestment Policy

WHEREAS, the City of San Carlos is the Financial Agent for C/CAG; and

WHEREAS, the City of San Carlos invests the C/CAG funds under its control; and

WHEREAS, it is important for the C/CAG Board to provide clear lnvestment Policy direction

NOW, THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City/County
Association of Governments of San Mateo County that the attached lnvestment Policy is
approved and adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of
Governments of San Mateo County, State of California on the _ day of September 2OOB,
by the following vote:

AYES, BOARD MEMBERS

NOES, BOARD MEMBERS

ABSENT, BOARD MEMBERS

ATTEST: Chairperson of C/CAG

Richard Napier, Executive Director

1.øE



CITY AND COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY
INVESTMENT POLICY

August 2008

POLICY
The investment of the funds of the City and County Association of Governments (C/CAG) is
directed to the goals of safety, liquidity and yield. This Investment Policy incorporates the policies
defined by the certified investment policy standards recommended by the Association of Public
Treasurers. The authority governing investments for municipal governments is set forth in the
California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659.

The primary objective of the investment policy of the City and County Association of Governments
is SAIETY OF PRINCIPAL. Investments shall be placed in those securities as outlined by type
and maturity sector in this document. Effective cash flow management and resulting cash

investment practices are recognized as essential to good fìscal management and control. C/CAG's
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent
with state and local law. Portfolio management requires continual analysis and as a result the

balance between the various investments and maturities may change in order to give C/CAG the
optimum combination of necessary liquidity and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.

SCOPE
The investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City and County Association of
Governments. Policy statements outlined in this document focus on C/CAG's pooled funds.

PRUDENCE
The standard to be used by investment officials shall be that of a "prudent investor" and shall be

applied in the context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. When investing, reinvesting,
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care,

skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to,
the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the ageîcy, that a prudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a
like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the
agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an

overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.

It is C/CAG's full intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity to ensure the
return of all invested principal dollars.

However, it is realized that market prices of securities will vary depending on economic and

interest rate conditions at any point in time, It is further recognized that in a well-diversified
investment portfolio, occasional measured losses are inevitable due to economic, bond market or
individual security credit analysis. These occasional losses must be considered within the context
of the overall investment program objectives and the resultant long-term rate of return.

The Administrative Services Director and other individuals assigned to manage the investment
portfolio, acling within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other written procedures
and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and liability for an

individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are

reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

1EL



City and County Association of Governments
lnvestment Policy Page 2

OBJECTIVES

Safety of Principal
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the City and County Association of Governments.
Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether f¡om
securities default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value. C/CAG shall seek to preserve
principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk.

Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by
investing in investment grade securities and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the
failure of any one issuer does not unduly harm C/CAG's capital base and cash flow.

Market risk, defined as market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the general level of
interest rates, shall be mitigated by limitingthe average maturity of C/CAG's investment portfolio
to two years, the maximum maturity of any one security to five years, structuring the portfolio
based on historic and current cash flow analysis eliminating the need to sell securities prior to
maturity and avoiding the purchase of long term securities for the sole purpose of short term
speculation.

Liquidity
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing basis in
an effort to ensure that CICAG's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
C/CAG to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements

MATURITY MATRIX
Maturities of investments will be selected based on liquidity requirements to minimize interest rate
risk and maximize earnings, Current and expected yield curve analysis will be monitored and the
portfolio will be invested accordingly. The weighted average maturity of the pooled portfolio
should not exceed two years and the following percentages of the portfolio should be invested in
the following maturity sectors:

Maturity Range
Suggested Percentage
1 day to 7 days
7 days to 180
180 days to 360 days
1 year to 2 years
2years to 3 years
3 years to 4 years
4 years to 5 years
Over 5 years

10 to 50%
70 to 30o/o

l0 to 30Yo

70 to 20o/o

0 to 20Yo

0 to 20%o

01o 20Yo

Board Authorization Required +

x One exception does exist regarding the investment of bond reserve funds. If in the opinion of the
Administrative Services Director, matching the segregated investment portfolio of the bond reserve
fund with the maturity schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given current economic
analysis, the investment policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity limitation as

outlined in this document.

ß?



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 3

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Day to day management of C/CAG's portfolio is conducted by the Finance Officer. fnvestment
performance is monitored and evaluated by the Investment Advisory Committee. Investment
performance statistics and activity reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the
Investment Advisory Committee and to the C/CAG Board. Annually, a statement of investment
policy, and any proposed changes to the policy, will be rendered to the Investment Advisory
Committee and to the C/CAG Board for consideration at a public meeting.

C/CAG's investment portfolio is designed to at least attan a market average rate of return through
economic cycles. The market average rate of return is defined as average return on the Local
Agency Investment Fund (assuming the State does not adversely affect LAIF's returns due to
budget constraints).

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The Joint Powers Authority Agreement of the City and County Association of Governments and
the authority granted by the C/CAG Board, assign the responsibility of investing unexpended cash
to the Administrative Services Director. Daily management responsibility of the investment
program may be delegated to the Finance Officer, who shall establish procedures for the operation
consistent with this investment policy.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
An investment committee consisting of the City of San Carlos Treasurer, City Manager, Assistant
City Manager, and Administrative Services Director shall be established to provide general
oversight and direction concerning the policy related to management of C/CAG's investment pool.
The Finance Officer shall not be a member of the committeebut shall serve in a staff and advisory
capacity. The committee shall review and approve quarterly investment reþorts prepared by the
Finance Department and reviewed by the Finance Officer or meet as necessary to discuss changes
to the report or the investment strategy. The Investment Committee serving as the legislative body
of the Investment Policy will have the quarterly reports for their review within thirty (30) days
following the end of the quarter covered by the report as per Section 53646 (bX1) of the California
Government Code.

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program, or impairs their ability to
make impartial investment decisions. Additionally the Administrative Services Director and the
Finance Offrcer are required to annually file applicable financial disclosures as required by the Fair
Political Practices Commission (FPPC).

SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities
dealer, all securities owned by C/CAG shall be held in safekeeping by a third party bank trust
department, acting as agent for C/CAG under the terms of a custody agreement. All trades
executed by a dealer will settle delivery versus payment (DVP) through C/CAG's safekeeping
agent.

1E3



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 4

Administrative Services Director toSecurities held custody for C/CAG shall be monitored by the
verify investment holdings.

All exceptions to this safekeeping policy must be approved by the Administrative Services Director
in written form and included in the quarterly reporting to the Investment Committee and the
C/CAG Board

INTERNAL CONTROL
Separation of functions between the Administrative Services Director or Finance Officer and/or the
Senior Accountant is designed to provide an ongoing internal review to prevent the potential for
converting assets or concealing transactions.

Investment decisions are made by the Administrative Services Director, executed by the
Administrative Services Director or Finance Officer and confirmed by the Senior Accountant All
wire transfers initiated by the Administrative Services Director or Finance Officer must be
reconfirmed by the appropriate financial institution by the Senior Accountant. Proper
documentation obtained from confrrmation and cash disbursement wire transfers is required for
each investment transaction. Timely bank reconciliation is conducted to ensure proper handling of
all transactions.

The investment portfolio and all related transactions are reviewed and balanced to appropriate
general ledger accounts by the Senior Accountant on a monthly basis. An independent analysis by
an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review and perform procedure testing on the
Agency's cash and investments that have a material impact on the financial statements. The
Administrative Services Director andlor Investment Committee shall review and assure compliance
with investment process and procedures.

REPORTING
The Administrative Services Director shall review and render quarterly reports to the Investment
Advisory Committee and to the C/CAG Board which shall include the face amount of the cash
investment, the classification of the investment, the name of the institution or entity, the rate of
interest, the maturity date, the current market value and accrued interest due for all securities. The
quarterly reports will be submitted to the Investment Committee within thirty (30) days following
the end of the quarter covered by the report as per Section 53646 (bxl) of the California
Government Code. Once approved by the Investment Committee, the quarterly reports shall be
placed on C/CAG's meeting agenda for its review and approval no later than 75 days after the
quarter ends.

QUALIF'IED BROKER/DEALERS
C/CAG shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and with broker/dealers
registered with the State of Calìfornia or the Securities and Exchange Committee. The
broker/dealers should be primary or regional dealers. The Administrative Services Director will
make exceptions only upon written authorization. Investment staff shall investigate dealers
wishing to do business with C/CAG's staff to determine if they are adequately capitalized,have
pending legal action against the firm or the individual broker and make markets in the securities
appropriate to C/CAGs needs.

Lø4



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 5

The Administrative Services Director orFinance Officer shall annually send a copy of the current
investment policy to all broker/dealers approved to do business with C/CAG. Confirmation of
receipt of this policy shall be considered evidence that the dealer understands C/CAG's investment
policies and intends to sell C/CAG only appropriate investments authorized by this investment
policy.

COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS
Collateral is required for investments in certificates of deposit. In order to reduce market risk, the
collateral level will be at least 110% of market value of principal and accrued interest.

In order to conform with the provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy Code which provides for
liquidation of securities held as collateral, the only securities acceptable as collateral shall be
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, eligible banker's acceptances, medium term notes or
securities that are direct obligations of, or are fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the
United States or any agency of the United States.

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
Investment of C/CAG's funds is governed by the California Government Code Sections 53600 et
seq, Within the context of the limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further
limited he¡ein:

United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes or those for which the full faith and credit of
the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no percentage
limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-year
maturity limitation is applicable.

Obligations issued by the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), the
Federal Farm Credit System (FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Bank Board (FHLB), the
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Student Loan Marketing Association
(SLMA), and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). There is no
percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-
year maturity limitation is applicable.

Investments detailed in items 3 through 10 are further restricted to a percentage of the cost
value of the portfolio in any single issuer name to a maximum of 5o/o The total value
invested in any one issuer shall not exceed 5Yo of the issuers net worth. Again, a f:e-year
maximum maturity limitation is applicable unless further restricted by this policy.

Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by commercial banks, otherwise
known as banker's acceptances, Banker's acceptances purchased may not exceed 180 days
to maturity or 30%o of the cost value of the portfolio

Commercial paper ranked Pl by Moody's Investor Services or A1+ by Standard & Poor's,
and issued by domestic corporations having assets in excess of $500,000,000 and having an
AA or better rating on its' long term debentures as provided by Moody's or Standard &
Poor's. Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity nor

I

2

J

4

Lø5



5

City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 6

represent more than l)Yo of the outstanding paper of the issuing corporation. Purchases of
commercial paper may not exceed I5Yo of tbe costvalue of the portfolio.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by nationally or state chartered banks (FDIC
insured institutions) or state or federal savings institutions. Purchases of negotiable
certificates of deposit may not exceed 30Yo of total portfolio. A maturity limitation of five
years is applicable.

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of Califo¡nia managed investment
pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the maximum permitted
by California State Law. A review of the pool/fund is required when they are part of the list
of authorized investments.

Time deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized in accordance with the California
Government Code, may be purchased through banks or savings and loan associations. Since
time deposits are not liquid, no more lhan 25Yo of the investment portfolio may be invested
in this investment type.

Medium Term Corporate Notes, with a maximum maturity of five years may be purchased.
Securities eligible for investment shall be rated AA or better by Moody's or Standard &,

Poor's rating services. Purchase of medium term notes may not exceed 30Yo of the market
value of the portfolio and no more than I5%o of the market value of the portfolio may be
invested in notes issued by one corporation. Commercial paper holdings should also be
included when calculating the l5o/o limitation

Ineligible investments are those that are not described herein, including but not limited to,
common stocks and long term (over five years in maturity) notes and bonds are prohibited
from use in this portfolio. It is noted that special circumstances arise that necessitate the
purchase of securities beyond the five-year limitation. On such occasions, requests must be

approved by the C/CAG Board prior to purchase.

Various daily money market funds administered for or by trustees, paying agents and
custodian banks contracted by the City and County Association of Governments may be
purchased as allowed under State of California Government Code. Only funds holding U.S.
Treasury or Government agency obligations can be utilized.

The following summary of maximum percentage limits, by instrument, are established for C/CAG's
total pooled funds portfolio.

7

8

9

10

Lø6



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy

Investment T)¡pe
Repurchase Agreements
Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool
US Treasury Bonds/|{otes/Bills
US Government Agency Obligations
Bankers' Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Time Certificates of Deposit
Medium Term Corporate Notes
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Percentage/Amount
0%
$40,000,000 per account
$40,000,000 per account
0 to 100%
0 to 100%
0 to 30o/o

0 to 75Yo

0 to 30Yo

0 to 25%o

0 to 30Yo

0o/o

Page 7

DERIVATIVE INVE STMENTS
Derivatives are investments whose value is "derived" from a benchmark or index. That benchmark
can be almost any financial measure from interest rates to commodity and stock prices. The Joint
Powers Authority will not invest directly in derivative investments. However, derivative
investments could be made by the San Mateo County Pool or the Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) in which C/CAG invests. Securities or investments classified as derivatives must be issued
by an agency or entity authorized by this policy.

LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
Any State of California legislative action that further restricts allowable maturities, investment
type, or percentage allocations will be incorporated into the City and County Association of
Governments" fnvestment Policy and supersede any and all previous applicable language.

INTEREST EARNINGS
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated
quarterly based on statements received from LAIF, the San Mateo County Pool, and the
Safekeeper.

LIMITING MARKET VALUE EROSION
The longer the maturity of securities, the greater their market price volatility. Therefore, it is the
general policy of C/CAG to limit the potential effects from erosion in market values by adhering to
the following guidelines:

All immediate and anticipated liquidity requirements will be addressed prior to purchasing all
investments.

Maturity dates for long-term investments will coincide with significant cash flow requirements
where possible, to assist with short term cash requirements at maturity.

All long-term securities will be purchased with the intent to hold all investments to maturity under
then prevailing economic conditions. However, economic or market conditions may change,
making it in C/CAG's best interest to sell or trade a security prior to maturity.

1E7



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY
The investment program shall seek to augment
identified risk limitations and prudent investment
use of the following strategies.

Page 8

returns consistent with the intent of this policy,
principals. These objectives will be achieved by

Active Portfolio Management. Through active fund and cash flow management, taking advantage
of current economic and inte¡est rate trends, the portfolio yield may be enhanced with limited and
measurable increases in risk by extending the weighted maturity of the total portfolio.

Portfolio Maturity Management. When structuring the maturity composition of the portfolio,
CICAG shall evaluate current and expected interest rate yields and necessary cash flow
requirements. It is recognized that in normal market conditions longer maturities produce higher
yields. However, the securities with longer maturities also experience greater price fluctuations
when the level of interest rates change.

Securit)¡ Swaps. C/CAG may take advantage of security swap opportunities to improve the ove¡all
portfolio yield. A swap, which improves the portfolio yield, may be selected even if the
transactions result in an accounting loss. Documentation for swaps will be included in C/CAG's
permanent irivestment fi le documents.

Competitive Bidding. It is the policy of C/CAG to require competitive bidding for investment
transactions that are not classified as "new issue" securities. For the purchase of non-"new issue"
securities and the sale of all securities at least three bidders must be contacted. Competitive bidding
for security swaps is also suggested, however, it is understood that certain time constraints and
broker portfolio limitations exist which would not accommodate the competitive bidding process.
If a time or portfolio constraining condition exists, the pricing of the swap should be veiified to
current market conditions and documented for auditing purposes.

POLICY REVIEW
The City and County Association of Governments' investment policy shall be adopted by resolution
of the C/CAG Board on an annual basis. This investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually
to ensure its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield,
and its relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. Any amendments to the policy
shall be forwarded to the C/CAG Board for approval.

1E8



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy

Glossary of Terms

Page 9

Accrued Interest- Interest earned but not yet received.

Active Deposits- Funds which are immediately required for disbursement

Amortization- An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time.

Asked Price- The price a broker dealer offers to sell securities.

Basis Point- One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01).

Bid Price- The price a broker dealer offers to purchase securities.

Bond- A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specified
stream of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and aprincipal repayment.

Bond Swap - Selling one bond issue and buying another at the same time in order to create an
advantage for the investor. Some benefits of swapping may include tax-deductible losses,
increased yields, and an improved quality portfolio.

Book Entry Securities - Securities, such stocks held in "street name," that are recorded in a
customer's account, but are not accompanied by a certificate. The trend is toward a certificate-free
society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors' concerns about the
certificates themselves All the large New York City banks, including those that handle the bulk of
the transactions of the major government securities dealers, now clear most of their transactions
with each other and with the Federal Reserve through the use of automated telecommunications
and the "book-entry" custody system maintained by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
These banks have deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank a major portion of their government
and agency securities holdings, including securities held for the accounts of their customers or in a
fiduciary capacity. Virtually all transfers for the account of the banks, as well as for the
government securities dealers who are their clients, are now effected solely by bookkeeping entries.
The system reduces the costs and risks of physical handling and speeds the completion of
transactions.

Bearer and Registered Bonds - In the past, bearer and registered bonds were issued in paper form.
Those still outstanding may be exchanged at any Federal Reserve Bank or branch for an equal
amount of any authorized denomination of the same issue. Outstanding bearer bonds are
interchangeable with registered bonds and bonds in "book-entry" form That is, the latter exist as
computer entries only and no paper securities are issued. New bearer and registered bonds are no
longer being issued. Since August 1986, the Treasury's new issues of marketable notes and bonds
are available in book-entry form only. All Treasury bills and more than gOYo of all other
marketable securities are now in book-entry form. Book-entry obligations are transferable only
pursuant to regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury.

Book Value- The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount.

1ø9



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 10

Broker - In securities, the intermediary between a buyer and a seller of securities. The broker, who
usually charges a commission, must be registered with the exchange in which he or she is trading,
accounting for the name registered representative,

Certificate of Deposit- A deposit insured up to $100,000 by the FDIC at a set ¡ate for a specified
period of time.

Collateral- Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys.

Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT)- An average yield of a specific Treasury maturity sector for a
specific time frame This is a market index for reference of past direction of interest rates for the
given Treasury maturity range.

Coupon- The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the
bond's face value.

Credit Analysis- A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the
ability to meet debt obligations.

Current Yield- The interestpaid on an investment expressed as apercentage of the current price of
the security.

Custody- A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal.

Delivery vs. Payment (DVP)- Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for
the securities.

Discount- The difference between the cost of a security and its value at maturity when quoted at
lower than face value.

Diversification- Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent
returns and risk profiles.

Duration- The weighted average maturity of a bond's cash flow stream, where the present value of
the cash flows serve as the weights, the future point in time at which on average, an investor has
received exactly half of the original investment, in present value terms; a bond's zero-coupon
equivalent; the fulcrum of a bond's preseht value cash flow time line.

Fannie Mae- Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U S.

sponsored corporation.

Federal Reserve System- The central bank of the U.S. that consists of a seven member Board of
Governors, 12 regional banks and 5,700 commercial banks that are members

1.1ø



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 11

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)- Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing
bank that guarantees deposits to a set limit (curently $100,000) per account.

Fed Wire- A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system.

Freddie Mac- Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S.
sponsored corporation.

Gnnie Mae- Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct
obligation bearing the ful1 faith and credit of the U.S. Government.

Inactive Deposits- Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.

Interest Rate- The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.
Investment Agreements- An agreement with a financial institution to borrow public funds subject
to certain negotiated terms and conditions concerning collateral, liquidity and interest rates.

Liquidity- Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash.

Market Value- The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold.

Maturity- The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and
payable.

New Issue- Term used when a security is originally "brought" to market,

Perfected Delivery- Refers to an investment where the actual security or collateral is held by an
independent third party representing the purchasing entity.

Portfolio- Collection of securities held by an investor.

Primary Dealer- A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market
activity and security positions held to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its
informal oversight.

Purchase Date- The date in which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date.

Rate of Return- The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return.

Repurchase Agreement (REPO)- A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from the
buyer (C/CAG) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.

Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPO)- A transaction where the seller (C/CAG)
agrees to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period
of time.

11.1



City and County Association of Governments
Investment Policy Page 12

Risk- Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset.

Safekeeping- see custody.

Sallie Mae- Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing
corporation.

Association (SLMA), a U,S. sponsored

Secondary Market- A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the
initial distribution.

Settlement Date- The date on which atrade is cleared by delivery of securities against funds.

Time Deposit - A deposit in an interest-paying account that requires the money to remain on
account for a specific length of time. While withdrawals can generally be made from a passbook
account at any time, other time deposits, such as certificates of depósit, are penalized 

^for 
early

withdrawal.

Treasury Bills- U.S. Treasury Bills which are short-term, direct obligations of the U.S. Government
issued with original maturities of 13 weeks, 26 weeks and,52 weeks; sold in minimum amounts of
$10'000 in multiples of $5,000 above the minimum. Issued in book entry form only. T-bills are
sold on a discount basis.

U.S. Government Agencies- Instruments issued by various US Government Agencies most of
which are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular agency.

Yield- The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. It is obtained
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market prìce of the seËurity

Yield to Maturity- The rate of income return on an investment, minus any premium or plus any
discount, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of pu.r¡ur. to the date of
maturity of the bond, expressed as a percentage.

Yield Curve- The yield on bonds, notes or bills of the same type and credit risk at a specific date
for maturities up to thirty years.

II7.



CITY OF SAN CARLOS

MEMORANDUM

To: Mark Weiss, City Manager
Brian Moura, Assistant City Manager
Mike Galvin, City Treasurer
City Council

Cc: Rich Napier, CCAG Executive Director
Kevin McCarthy, SBWMA Executive Director

From: Jeff Maltbie, Administrative Services Director

Subject: County Investment PooI

Date: October 2,2008

Last week my office received correspondence from the San Mateo County
Treasurer's Office concerning the Lehman Bros. bankruptcy and its effect on the
County Investment Pool. Today I received an additional letter from the County
on this matter. Both letters are attached.

On Friday, September 26,I attended the PooI Investment Oversight Committee
meeting, along with representatives from many of the other cities, school districts
and special districts that have investments with the Pool, held at the County
Government Center to further discuss this issue. Please take a moment to read
the letter.

This issue is sti[ very fluid but as of today the Investment Pool Committee has
notified the Pool participants that it intends to implement option #2 described in
the first attached letter. This option wiII require the PooI to write off the entire
Ioss in the first quarter and then carry the Lehman investments as "non-
performing assets" until the bankruptcy proceedings are resolved. This is
important because writing off the loss wrll protect the credit rating of the Pool
and also the ratings of the individual members such as San Carlos. The PooI has
hired. a New York based financial attorney to represent them in the bankruptcy
process. The County is also working closely with our local congressional leaders
to ensure that the San Mateo County Investment Pool is included in any Federal
bailout legislation. The write off will mean an approximate loss of 4 - 6% for the 

ITEM 7.5.3

1.13



quarter. The County PooI is now projecting an annual return on investments for
this fiscal year in the range of -7% to 0%.

As of last week the Lehman investments were worth only 15 cents on the dollar.
I share the County Investment Committee opinion that hotding onto to the
Lehman investments as "non-performing assets" will likely yield a return of 50 to
60 cents on the dollar once the Lehman assets are liquidated through the
bankruptcy proceedings and any Federal assistance.

Attachment: Lee Buffington's 9125108 Letter-The Result of the Lehman Bros.
Bankruptcy

Lee Buffi.ngton's 10/1/08 Letter-Accounting for the Lehman Loss

LL4



COUNTYOF SANMATEO

To: All participants in the county pool

From: Lee Buffington

Date: October 1,2008

Subject: Accounting for the Lehman Loss

After considering a number of altematives regarding how to handle the loss generated by the Lehman Bros.
Bankruptcy, we narrowed the alternatives down to three different approaches all of which we discussed in the
Special Meeting of the Investment Advisory Committee on September 26,2008.

After consideration of all of the testimony from September 26, atd a review of the County Investment Policy, we
have decided to follow the course outlined in the second approach. The Lehman Bros Securitles will be written
off the County books and held as nonperforming assets until the bankruptcy hearings are completed. All of the
pool participants will be charged approximately 5Yonegatle interest. The charge for each participant will be
based on their average daily balance for the quarter ended October 1, 2008. A record of these charges will be
retained to facilitate the recalculation of the distributions when recovery is made from banknrptcy. When the
bankruptcy hearings are completed all fi:nds will be distributed in proportion to the participant's participation in
the loss.

We will work with any paficipant to facilitate any special needs or requests so long as they can be
accommodated within the framework outlined above. We anticipate final numbers will be available around
October 6,2008.This has not been an easy decision, but we do believe this is the fairest way for us to handle this
very unpleasantjob.

LL5



LL6



COUNTYOF SANMATEO

To: Pool Participants

From:

Date:

Lee Buffington

September 25,2008

Subject: The Result of the Lehman Bros. Bankruptcy

On September 15, 2008, Lehman Bros. declared bankruptcy sending shockwaves throughout the financial
ma¡ket. This action had a direct, negative impact on the County Pool. To say this was unexpected would be an
understatement. One of the thtngs that have made this process diffrcult has been the lack of information
regarding the bankruptcy and the dispersal of their assets. In addition, the ma¡ket pnce of the Lehman Notes has
been changing and seems to be based upon some perceived value of Lehman's underþing assets.

What has happened since then:
1, We have searched and found a number of other public entines (citres, county, state, retirement systems,

and otler agencies) that own Lehman Securities.
2. Our County Counsel is now coordinating our legal efforts with Monterey County.
3. In conjunction with Monterey County, we have hired a bankmptcy counsel in New York to represent

our collective interests in the proceedings.
4. We have also made contact with Nancy Pelosi regarding the possibility of being included in the fiscal

bail out package on which they are currently working.
5. We have identifred and discussed the most logical altemative procedures we can follow in dealing with

this situaûon with our outside auditor and legal counsel.
6. We have contacted the state Treasurer to see if they could put pressure on the collective parties to speed

up the bankruptcy proceedings.

At the present time, after extensive consultation with our advisors, auditors and legal counsel, there are tìree
approaches to this problem that we are considering:

1. Sell the Lehman Securities at curent malket pnces and take a loss on the difference between the ma¡ket
value and our book value. This would result in a net loss fo¡ the quarter.

2 Retain the Lehman Securities but mark their value down to zero and carry them as a non-performing
asset r¡ntl the bankruptcy proceedings are completed. At that poin! any proceeds would be credited
back to the participant's account. The loss in value of the Lehman Securities, when we marked them
down to zero, would result in a net negative earnings charge for the quarter.

3. Keep the Lehman Securities, adjust their value to the current market price and take the balance as a
negative earnings charge for the quarter. Upon completion of the bankruptcy preceding the proceeds
would be credited to the participant's account.

Even though alternative #1 is the simplest and the easiest, we have, as have most of the other note holders at the
present time, rejected the idea of selling the securities at the cunent market price because we feel we will get
more out of the bankruptcy than we would by selling the securities on the open market. There is a question of
net present value that will have to be determined at the time we take action.

The difference between altematives #2 &. #3 has to do with how we handle the value of the securities.
Alternative #2 would be more expensive than alternative #3 because the entire holdrng would be treated as If it
had no value until we receive the proceeds of the bankruptcy proceedings. On the other hand, it should clear up
any problems with the rating agencies since the Lehman Securities would no longer be part of the active
porfolio.

Alternative #3, carrying the Lehman Securities at their ma¡ket value reduces the dolla¡ amount that would be
necessary to show as negative earmngs for the quarter. This approach is not without its own problems. The fact
that we would be continuing to carry the Lehman Securities in the porfolio as an active account would be a red

1.17



flag to anyone ratng the pool. The other problem has to do with the market value of the securities, in the
unlikely event that the securities value dropped significantly; we would have to recognize another loss.

Obviously, there is no easy answer to tlus problem. What ever we decide to do, our primary focus will be
finding the best and fairest way to handle the problem for all pool participants.

L18



TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

COUNTY OF SAN II,IATEO
I nter-Departmental Correspondence

Treasurer Tax Collector

DATE; November3,2008

BOARD MEETING DATE: November 4,2008
SPECIALNOTICE/HEARING: None

VOTE REQUIRED: None

Honorable Board of Supervisors

Lee Buffington, Treasurer Tax Collector

lnformation regarding the lnvestment Pool and the Lehman
Brothers lnvestment and Bankruptcy.

At its October 21,2008 meeting, the Board requested me to attend today's meeting
and present information and answer questíons regarding the lnvestment Pool and
the recent loss suffered by the lnvestment Pool as the result of the Lehman Brothers
bankruptcy. The Board directed the County Counsel's office to develop questions
and subrnit them to me in advance.

The following are my responses to County Counsel's questions. I submitted this
document on November 3, to members of your Board, the Treasury oversight
Committee, and agencies participating in the lnvestment Pool. I have worked with
staff to respond to the questions in as thorough a manner as possible. I will give a
short presentation and welcome the opportunity to respond to follow up questions.

l. lnvestment Pool and the Pooled Fund lnvestment Policy.

A. Background lnformation on the lnvestment Pool and lts Participants.

1 . Descríbe the lnvestment Pool, the three parts of the pool, and the
differences between each of the three parts of the pool.

As set forth in the lnvestment Policy, the pool is divided into three parts
based on the nature of the use of a participant's funds and the

1L9



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 2 of 22

resulting amount of banking activity generated by such funds. Funds
deposited for payroll purposes, for example, are placed in "pool 1,'and
subject to certain fixed and variable banking costs in addition to the
Pool's standard administration fees. Fundswhich do not generate
excessive banking activity are only charged fixed bankinglosts and
administrative fees and are placed in "pool 2." Finally, tunos that only
require incidental use of the county banking system are placed in
"Pool 3" and are only charged administrative fees.

Allfunds in the lnvestment pool hold the same investments and are
lferefore subject to the same gains and losses with the exception of
the banking and administrative fees and costs that are charged. At
present, approximately 9% of total funds reside in "pool 1," 2oo/o in
"Pool 2," and71o/oin "pool 3."

2. ln addition to the county, how many and what type of tocal agencies
pafticipate in the lnvestment pool?

ln addition to the county, numerous local agencies participate in the
lnvestment Pool, íncluding 25 school districts and 15 cities, as well as
special districts.

3' Do all of these agencies participate in all three pañs of the lnvestment
Pool? lf not, why not.

Not all of the local agencies have funds in each of the three parts of
the lnvestment Pool. The Treasurer deterrnines which ',part'i of the
Pool a fund is placed into and this determination depends on the
purpose of such fund and the local agency's banking needs. some
local agencies, such as schoor districts, have funds irom which regular
payment obligations such as payroll are made, and, therefore, thole
funds are placed in "Pool 1." other rocal agencies have funds which
do not require regular banking servíces and such funds are therefore
placed in "Pool 3."

4' Does the Treasurer maintain any separate accounts for outside local
agencies in addition to the lnvestment pool? lf so, please explain.

The Treasurer does not generally rnaintain accounts for local agencies
outside of the lnvestment pool. currenfly, the Treasurer only hãs one
such account which has been maintained at the request of the
Brisbane School District. The Brisbane account has been rnaintained
for approximately 10 years and contains instruments with longer
maturity terms than would have othenryise been allowed in the
lnvestment Pool pursuant to state raw and the lnvestment policy.

1ZE



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 3 of 22

B. Sfafe Law Authority and Requiremenús.

1- What is the statutory authority to establish an investment pool?

Each California county maintains a pooled treasury, comprised of
funds belonging to the county as well as to school districts, special
districts, and other local agencies within the county. Cal. Gov't Code $27000, Government Code S 27130 further recognizes that "by pooling
deposits from local agencies and other participants, county treasurieJ
operate in the public interest when they consolidate banking and
investment activities, reduce duplication, achieve economiel of scale,
and carry out coherent and consolidated investment strategies."

2. What are the primary objectives of investments of the poot as set fo¡-th
in state law?

Pursuant to state law, the primary objectives in managing public funds,
in order of priority, are to: 1) safeguard the principal of the funds;
2) satisfy the liquidity needs of depositors; and 3) achieve a return on
the funds. Cal Gov't Code S 27000.5.

3. Does state law limit the types of investments that can be made w¡h
funds maintained in the pool? lf so, describe the types of allowabte
investments.

Yes, there are limits. Please see my response to the following
question for a description of the allowable instruments.

4. Does state law allow the poolto invest in equities? Are there any other
common types of investments that state law does not allow the poot to
invest in?

state law places strict limitations on the instruments in which local
agencies may invest as well as the concentration of such investments.
Cal, Gov't Code SS 53ô01, 53601.6, 53601,7, 53601.9,53635,
53635.2, 53638, and 53684 By way of general description, treasury
pool investments are limited, by statute, to conservative instruments
such as U.S. Treasury obligations, highly-rated commercial paper,
certificates of deposit, and the like. Treasury investment pools'are
prohibited, by statute, from investing in equities and are not allowed to
purchase other instrurnents, such as "inverse floaters," "range notes,"
"interest only strips," and any other securities which could result in zero
interest accrual if held to maturity.

TZl



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 4 ol 22

Does state raw rimit the pergentage of poor funds that can þe investedin each type of investment? tf sõ, what are those t¡m¡tsZ

Yes, there are rimits.. 
.prease see my response to the foilowingquestion for a description of the li niís.

Does state raw timit the percentage of pootfunds that can be investedwith one issuer? lf so, what ur" ihrr" Iimits?

State law also places restricti
of investments. Such restrict
issue as well as the type of lo
example,
County p
local age
of fund proceeds into the com
as such issuer has a rating of
up to 30% of a pool,s funds to
only 20% of the pool,s funds t
market mutualfunds.

c" The Treasury oversight committee and the pooled Fund lnvestmentPotícy.

1' Explain the Pooled Fund lnvestment Poticy currenily in effect and itscomponents.

The poored Fund rnvestment poricy sets forth the phirosophy of theinvesting for the fund, the objective! or t¡re tuno, the a¡owabreinvestment instruments, the matr
investments, and
sets forth controls
accounting metho
matters. Finally, the policy sets
executin g ínvestment transactions,

2. what is the membership of the Treasury oversight committee? whatare the statutory duties and responsibilities of the Treasury oversightCommittee?

Government code s 27131(a) provides that the Board of supervisors,in consurtation with the Treâsurer, determines the size of thecommittee, which shail consist of 3 to 11 members serected from thelist of categories set forth in the statute. w¡iÁ¡n tnuse parameters, ourTreasury oversight committee ras eight members, with suchmembers serected from the foilowing ãrn*"ó1" .ategories: the

5.

6

IZ?



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 5of22

Treasurer, a representative appointed by the Board of supervisors, the
county superintendent of schools or her designee, four members
nominated by the Treasurer and confirmeO by the Board of
supervisors, and one member selected by the presidents of the
various school boards.

Government code SS 27130 and 27131 provide for the formation of a
Treasury oversight committee in order to: 1) insure participation by
local agencies in the review of investment policies; 2) involve
pafticipating local agencies in the management of their funds; and
3) enhance the security and ínvestmentleturn on their funds by
establishing criteria for the withdrawal of funds. The Treasury
oversight committee reviews and monitors the investment pólicy, The
Committee also causes an annual audit to be conducted to deteimine
the Treasury's compliance with certain statutes. This audit may include
issues relating to the structure of the investment portfolio and iisk.
Pursuant to statute, the Treasury oversight committee does not direct
individual investment decisions, select individual investment advisors,
brokers, or dealers, or impinge on the day{o-day operations of the
treasury.

3. Explain the role of the Treasury oversight committee with regard to
the management and oversight of the lnvestment Pool and rionitoring
of investment decisions.

Pursuant to the lnvestment policy, the responsibility for making
investments resides with the Treasurer who supervises the invãstment
program within the guidelines of the policy and state law. The
Treasury oversight committee meets quarlerly to evaluate general
strategies and to monitor results and discuss the economic óuflook,
portfolio diversification, maturity structure and potential risks to the
funds.

The Treasury oversight committee causes an annual audit to be
conducted of the portfolios, procedures, reports and operations related
to the lnvestment Pool.

4. under what statutory authority is the lnvestment policy developed and
adopted? Describe the process used, including the roles of the
Treasurer, Treasury oversight committee and-Board of superuisors, in
developing the lnvestment policy.

The lnvestment Policy is developed and adopted pursuant to
Government code section 27193. ln accordancewith section 27133,
the Treasurer annually prepares the policy which is reviewed by the' Treasury oversight committee. The annual lnvestment policy js then

1Z3



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 6 of 22

approved by Board of Supervisors, All amendments to the policy mustbe approved by the Board of Supervisors,

5' List the investment objectives sef forfh in the poticy. Are theseinvestment objectives consrsfe nt with state la'w?

The investment objectives in the poricy are consistent with state rawand can be summarized as follows:

Safetv
Preseryation 

.oj 
principar is of primary importance. The objective is tominimize credit risk whire recognizini and .ontrotiing market risk.Liquidítv

The poor attempts to match maturities with capitar expenditures andother planned ouflays.
Yietd

ln addition to these investment objectives, the poricy set forth thefollowing two general objectives:

Leveraoe
The Treasurer shar.not reverage the county poor through anyborrowing coilaterarized or othðn¡rise r".uréinv'cäsn or securitiesheld unless authorized by this investment policy.

Public Trust
io, the Treasurer shall exercise a
sustain public confidence in the
mbering that both investment
sacting investment business are
eption of safety and professionalism
e concepts, To further public trust,
rom doing personal business with
ounty.

6 
Y!"rin{!ii nts are ailowed unler.the poticy?

investment ? Are they consislenf w¡tn the'

subject to the rimitations set forth in Government code ss s3600ef seg', the Treasurer may invest in the ¡nstrumenis listeo in the chartbelow, subject to the rimité of flexibírity oescri¡eã in tü. poricy,

r2.4



125



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 7 of22

INSTRUMENT RATING
LIMITATIONS

% of Fund % of Fund per
lssuer

Maturity

U.S. Treasury Obligations 100 100 15 years
oþttgat¡ons of U.S. Agencies or
government sponsored enterprises

A1 I P1t F1

100 100 15 years
Bankers Acceptance-
"Domestic: ($500 million minimum assets)*Foreign: ($500 million minimum âcçêfc\

15
15

10
10

180 days
180 davsvv[qrEréil¿su Ut f te qeposlls wltnln tne

state of CALIFORNTA 30 10 1 year

Negotiable certificates of deposit 30 10 5 years

"Commercial paper/Floating rate notes A1 / P1/ F1
40 10 270 days

or less
Repurchase agreements secured by U.S
Treasury or agency obljgation (102o/o
collateral)

100 50 | 1 year

Reverse Repurchase agreements 20 20 92 days
Corporate bonds and medtum termiotõI
including asset-backed bonds (two
agencies)

A 30 10 5 years

Local Agency tnvestment Fund (LAtF)
Up to the

current state
limitShares of benef¡cial interestGsuedÇ

diversified management companies as
defined in Government Code section
53601

A

10 5

MortgageBackedffi
No lnverse Floaters
No Range Notes
N-o lnterest only strips derived from a pool
of Mortgages

20 5 5 years

7. Does the policy 
-tìmit 

the pool's purchase of any paft¡cutar types ofinvestments? lf so, are fhese timits cons¡stent with state taw?

As reflected in the chart above, the policy limits the percentage of the
fund that can be invested ín all of the abóve listed investment
instruments except for u.s. Treasury obligations, àbtigations of u.s.
Agencies or government sponsored-enter[rises, and the repurchase
agreements secured by the United States for which there is no statedlimit. The percentage allocations set forth in the lnvåstment policy are
consistent with state law.

126



Honorable Board of Superuisors
Page 8 of 22

8' Doe,s the pgticy limit investments with a singlerssue4 and areffieselimits consistent with state taw?

As reflected in the chart a
funds per issuer for each
These lÍmits range from 5
type of ínvestment and, in
Obligations, state law doe
set forth in the above chart

9. visions for the removal of funds from
cy? lf so, p/ease describe the

for the provisíons.

nd 27136 require that each
from a county treasury pool

e county treasurer. The

such request in accordance
provides that funds deposit
maximum rate of 20o/o of th
apportionment, payroll and
authorized by the Treasurer.
withdrawals is to avoid the n
unanticipated large withdra
participants.

The policy further provides t
withdraw funds for normal c
withdraw funds for purposes
investing shall be subject to
requests are subject to the Treasurer's consideration of the stability,liquidity and predictability.of the pooled Ñestment fund, or the adverseeffect on the interests olthe othòr oepòsitors in the pooled investmentfund.

D. lnvestment Decisions.

1. Descrìbe the current ailoca.tion of the poor investments by type ofinvestment instrument and by issuer.

The lnvestment Pool's current allocation of assets is set forth below:

IZ7



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page I of 22

2.

F ercentagcr r:rf Elol[a¡.s lr.¡trested Ë¡l T5l¡lc-"

Loc¡l Ag.ncy
lnycrfnìorit

fund Cøtiflc¡tc ot
Drpool

8qi

,le, 
u¡l.d sl.tac

I fc¡eftoÊ
FodoralAgoncy

Sccurfr6o Röpurchârc
Aglaamnto

151'å

l.qö 
P¡pcf

AAÂ
Áctat E¡c¡od

Socurllô!
< 1!å

E Local Agency lnveslment Fund

e Cefiificate ol Deposir

tr United States Treasur¡es

D Repurchase Agreements

! commerctal Paper

B Asset Backed Securiti es

I Floating Rate Secur¡ties

e Corporate Bonds

g Federal Agency- Ftoatìng Rate
Securities

r Federal Agency Securites

lnformation concerning pool investment allocation by issuer is reflected
in the Pool's standard monthry report, The pool's september 20og
Monthly Reporl is attached as Attachment L lt should be noted that
state law does not limit the amounTõliõiãsets which may be
invested in federal_agency securities and the lnvestment poiicy allows
up to 100% of the Pool's assets to be invested in these instruments.
The Pool's current investment in federal agency securities reflects the
conservative nature of such investments.

How does your office insure that investments are made in accordance
with the investment policy and state law?

our office determines if the security is one of the instruments listed in
the lnvestment Policy we also check the ratíngs of the institutions
offering the instruments from ratings agencies such as standard &
Poor's,l\4oody's, and Fitch. we then dètermine whether adding this
type of investment to the portfolio furthers our investment objeðtives as
set forth in the Policy.

Is the preseruation of principatthe primary basis for investment
decisions?

Yes, preseruation of principal is the primary basis for investment
decisions. one of the chief ways of protecting principal is adhering to
the statutory limitations relating to tt e types of invesiment instruments
that may be purchased. These instruments are historically safer
investments for the purposes of preserving principal than unauthorized
investments, such as equities. lt is important to note that the fiscal
objectives of the lnvestment pool atso include the maintenance of a

r28



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 10 of22

margin of liquidity in order to meet anticipated as well as unanticipated
expenses.

4. Does onsideration the cash needs of the poolpaftic poot par-ticipants' rong term and shoft termneed ent decisions?

Satisfaction of the pool,s o
that, notwithstanding the n
throughout the year, there
when the pool receives mo
operational concerns, as well as the requirements set forth in state law
and the lnvestment policy, impact the typ sthat my office purchases for the pool. Éo
above, the poolpurchases instruments w
investments until their scheduled maturity
income of the instruments, as opposed tó timing such purchases and
sales for maximum profít.

5. Describe the process used to make investmenf decisions and who
makes the decisions. What informationis consrde red before an
investment decision is made? ls there anyone outside of the
Treasurer's Office with whom your office discusses its investment
decisions?

Our office insures that the investment meets the Government Code,
the.lnvestment Policy and rating requirements. Then we evaluate our
liquidity needs, the market oveÑiew, and examine whether the security
is competitive with other like securities and whether it fíts our portfolio.

E. Monitoring of lnvestments.

1. Describe the process for monitoring pool investments. What are thesfeps? Who monitors them? Whal is the process for determining
whether to sell or retain inve;tments?

Our monitoring process has several aspects. All securities are
automatically brought to current market prices daily and silnncant
price.swings are identified. We monitorine ratings from Siandard &Poor's, Moody's, and Fitch as well as our financiãl ¡nformatiòn
reporting services, such as Bloomberg,s and rradeweb, for new
information' We consult with economìsts Keitaro n¡atsuoa, Michael
Bazdarich, and peter struck twice a year, and we watch th" ö;;;-comparison between like securities. Although we purchase securities
with the intent and capacity to hold them to maturiiy, we continuously
monitor our portfolio for subsequent changes in percentages resulting

1?q



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 11 of 22

from non-purchase activity or changes in credit rating of our existing
securities.

2' What factors are considered before deciding to sett an investment prior
to its maturity date? Do these factors differ from the factors considered
for the initial purchase of an investment? lf so, why do they differ and
how do they differ?

There are two main reasons why we would sell an instrument before
its maturity date: either the fund needs to liquidate an asset to meet
the cash needs of the participants or there is an instrument that we
have determined ís better than the instrument presently in the portfolio.
I am assuming that your question is directed to the latter of these two
reasons. lf we are selling one asset to purchase another, we analyze
the "opportunity cost" of such a transaction. ln other words, we
determine what it will cost the portfolio to sell prior to maturity date and
what will be gained by purchasing the new asset at that time, rather
than waiting until the existing investment matures, lf we feel as though
the potential new asset would be a better asset due to its features' such as yield, then we would sell the existing asset prior to maturity to
make the purchase,

F. Returns on Pool lnvestments.

1. For each of the three parts of the lnvestment Pool, list the average
gross returns, over the last 10 years, 5 years, 3 years and 1 year.

The Pool's average gross return forthe last 10 years is 4.36%. The
average gross return on investment for the last 5 years is 3.68%. The
average gross return on investment for the last 3 years is 4.14o/o, and
the average gross return on investment for the last year is 4,31%.
Annual gross returns for the last 10 years are set forth on the chart
attached as Attachment 2.

2. What is fhe Local Agency lnvestment Fund? How do the returns of the
lnvestment Pool compare with LocalAgency lnvestment Fund?

The LocalAgency lnvestment Fund is a voluntary program created by
statute in 1977 as an investment alternative for Califoinia's local
governments and special districts, The Fund is administered by the
State Treasurer. Agencies such as the CounÇ are limited in the
amount that they can invest in the Fund.

Attachment 2 also sets forth annual gross returns of the lnvestment
Pool as compared to the Local Agency lnvestment Fund for the last 10
years.

138



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 12 of 22

ll' Purchase of Lehman Brothers lnstruments Held at the tirne Bankruptcy.

A. Detailed Description of the Lehman Brothers lnvestment
lnstruments.

1' How many specific Lehman investment instruments were held in thelnvestment Pool at the tíme that Lehman declared bankiuptcy?

The Lehman Brothers investments held by the lnvestment pool at thetime of the bankruptcy are set forth in Attachment 3.

2. For each of the Lehman instruments;
List the date of purchase.
The amount of the investment.

!!"Z#åturitv 
date 

stment instrument and which category it
fell under lnvestment policy.
Describe stment instrument worked, i.e., at what
inte¡vals interest was earned, and how it was catc'ulated?

time of the bankruptcy fìling,

;ili'."-T :: ;il i. i: iffålî ".,
i nro rm ation rh e,h,,t 

"'lJJSi; iläiilJ ì ;iffi l"iä::l"., reset
tment Policy which provides that corporate
alyzedlrun to their reset date rather ihan

and are based on 
urities pay out each quafter

which made them ?3::i15,i: [,:!r?:ì.,
was dropping in v ¡ainst all other currencies The corporate
note paid out semi_annually.

B. Decision to make the purchase,

1 ' What was the process for determining to buy each of these Lehman
i n ve stm e nt i n stru m ents ?

Please see my response to euestio n 8.2.

2' Describe the process used to verify that each purchase would be inconformance with the criteria set fòrth in the lnvestment ioi¡cv

131



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 13 of22

our office first determines whether it is authorized to purchase the
security pursuant to the Government code and the lnvestment policy
based on the type of investment at issue, its maturity date, and its
rating. lf it is determined that state law and the Policy allow the pool to
purchase the instrument, we then evaluate the strength of the
instrument and our porlfolio needs as well as general market
conditions based on our market research.

3' was the process used to determine to purchase the Lehman
instruments the saÍne as the process used in determining to purchase
other investments? lf not, in what way did the process differ?

The process was the same as other securities except that with respect
to our purchase of Lehman securities, our analysis took into account
the London lnterbank offered Rate (LrBoR) in comparison to u.s.
rates.

4. what was your specific role in the decision to purchase fhe Lehman
instruments?

I was involved in the decision to purchase each of the Lehman
Brothers instruments.

5, what factors were considered in deciding to purchase the Lehman
instruments?

Although the Lehman instruments were purchased over several years,
in each case the process was the seme, For each instrument, the
following factors were considered: the purchase of the instrument. satisfied state law requirements; the purchase of the instrument
satisfied the requirements of the lnvestment Policy; verification that the
rating of the financial instiiution met statutory and lnvestment policy
requirements; and the terms of the instrument satisfied the liquidityand
allocation needs of the Pool. with respect to the Lehman investmênts
specifically, we compared available like instruments and the LIBoR vs.
u.s. rates were compared. Finaily, we reviewed the general market
conditions and economic forecasts.

6. what analysis was done in regards to the amount of each Lehman
investment to be purchased?

ln addition to the foregoing, we also evaruated the size of each
investment, the lnvestment policy requirements, the needs of the pool,
pricing, and yield.

lDn
-l- +J ¿



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 14 of 22

7. what information was used in making such decisions?

We utilize a realtime Bloomberg terminalwhich provides us with
access to the Bloomberg Professional service through which our office
can monitor and analyze real-time financial market dãta movements
and monitor news and price quotes. We also review other financial
and news publications such as the Wall Street Journal, Barons, and
the New York Times, as well as financial news broadcasts, Since we
purchase investments directly from primary dealers, including Lehman
Brothers, we also have access to the prímãry dealeis' bond traders
and economists.

8. What was the role of the rating agencies in your review of the
soundness of each of the Lehman instrume,nts?

As with our other investments, the ratings issued by various ratings
agencies provide a starting point for determining whether the poo-l is
authorized by statute and the lnvestment Policy to purchase the
instrument. Following an instrument's purchasê, we continue to follow
fínancial institution ratings in order to take into account any ratings
changes. Because such ratings changes often lag behind market
conditíons, however, we place primary importancã on current market
research.

c. Diversìfication and the Lehman Brothers purchase.

1. When making investmenf declsions, is diversification by sector (i.e.,
financial, transpoftation, energy, man ufacturing, etc.) i consideration?

We always consider sector diversification in the decision to purchase
instruments that we are authorized to invest in. However, we are faced
with certain market constraints that limit our ability to achiêve broad
diversification. Unlike banks, brokerages and finánce companies,
other sector companies do not go to market with offerings äs
frequen-tly, thus making the timing of these purchases difficutt. lt is
also difficult to find and procure non finance investment instruments
that meet statutory and Policy requirements, have the appropriate term
and pay well,

2' Was there a review of the impact of the Lehman investment on the
Pool's diversification by sectot2

We reviewed the impact of the Lehman investments on the pool,s
diversification by sector at the time of each Lehman purchase.

L33



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 15 of 22

3. Have there been other instances when there has been a similarty
significant investment with one investment bank?

The Pool currently holls Morgan stanley investments which comprise
approximately 4.3% of th a Pool, There have been other instancei
during the last 23 years where the pool has made other signifícant
investments in a single issuer in accordance with state law, the
lnvestment Policy, and the pool's portfolio needs. There were no
negative impacts on the Pool as a result of such investments.

4- At the time each of the subject Lehman investmenfs ryas purchased,
did the total of all simílar investments fatt within the paramefers sef
forth in the investment policy for that type of investment and did it fatt
within the porícy parameters at ail times thereafter?

As set forth earlier, at the time of purchase our practice is to make sure
any new purchase meets state law and the lnvestrnent Policy
requirements regarding the allocation of the Pool by instrument
category and issuer, Subsequent changes in percéntages resulting
from non-purchase activity, such as thelnflux of tax mo-neys, aretaken
into account when making future investment decisions.

5. At the time each of the subiect Lehman investmenfs vzas purchased,
did the total of alt similar investments fatl within the per-issuer timits set
foñh in the investment policy and did it fattwithin per-issuer timits at all
times thereafter?

Yes, we verified that each of the subject Lehman instruments were in
compliance at the time of each purchase and thereafter.

lll. Monitoring the Lehman Brothers lnstruments After purchase.

1. After each Lehman investment vehicle was purchased, what was fhe process
for reviewing the investment to ensure it remained a sound investment and
who was responsible for conducting that review?

Please see my response to euestion lll.3 below.

2. Describe what your office did in regards to monitoring the Lehman Brothers
investment from the date of purchase to the date Lehman Brothers declared
bankruptcy.

Please see my response to euestion lll,3 below.

L34



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 16 of22

3' was the process used in reviewing the Lehman investments the same as theprocess used in reviewing other investments?

Our monitoring process has seve

a year.

The Lehman purchases were made over a four year time period. At the timeof initial purchase of each of the investmenti Lenman Brothers lnstrumentswere considered conseruative and secure investments.

heightened by a series of significant
Lehman's declaration of bañkruptcy. For
America announced its takeover of

we followed Lehman,s negotiations with
rding a possible takeover. We were
t Bank, Bank of America and Barclays
itors for Lehman. Additionally, many
assistance for Lehman woulâ be

would be made whole. us to believe that Lehman note holders

As the Board is aware, Lehman,s d

announced that they had steppe
sale to Bank of America failed'to
refused to offer Lehman Brothers the same guarantees that had beenprovided to countrywide and Bear stearns. buring this entire time period, mystaff was conferring with the representatives from various brokerage housessuch as Morgan Stanley and fVierrill Lynch, ur *"rr as Lehman Brothers

L35



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 17 of 22

4. What was your role in reviewing the on-going soundness of the Lehman
investments?

I was involved in all of the monitoring activities described above.

5' What was the role of the rating agencies in the review of the soundness of
each of the Lehman investments? How often were rating agency ratings
reviewed?

Historically, in monitoring the ongoing soundness of our investments, we
receive continuous updated information regarding ratings changes. While
ratings were one of the factors used in our on-going evãluationãf Lehman
Brothers, we placed greater weight on our market research due to the fact
that ratings changes can often lag behind current rnarket conditions.

6. How did the sale of Bear Sfearns in March 2008 factor into your office's
evaluation of the soundness of the Lehman investments and/or the retention
of the investments, if at all?

Please see my response to euestion lll,3 above.

7' At any time before the Lehman bankruptcy, was consideration given to setting
any of the Lehman investment instruments? lf so, describe thã
circumstances behind that consideration, inctuding when such cons ideration
was given, the circumstances that led to the consideration, who was involved
in that consideration, and why a decision was made not to seil.

Selling any or all of the Lehman instruments was one of the options that we
continually considered. up to and incruding Friday septembe¡ 12th, our
evaluation of the situation, which included the factors detailed in my answer to
Question lll.3 above, led me and rny staff to conclude that it would be more
beneficial for the Pool to hold the securities as opposed to selling at a definite
loss.

8. For each of the types of Lehman instruments, describe the effect of seiling the
instruments before their maturity date.

Selling any ìnstruments, including the Lehman instruments, prior to their
maturity dates would have a direct, negative impact on Pool earnings which
would affect all Pool participants. The magnitude of any such earnfngs losses
would depend on both market conditions as well as the time remaining until
the instruments' maturity.

136



Honorable Board of Superursors
Page 18 of 22

9' was the Treasury oversight committee advised of concerns with the Lehman

'{Ji;;',"rrs 
af ds meeting prior to the baikruptcy? tr so, what were they

our office's evaluation of the Lehman investrnents was discussed at theTreasury oversight committee,s 
¡ulv zóo-e me"ting at which tíme theAssistant Treasurer advised that Lehman Brotners, rating had beendowngraded from 'A1" to ',42,' but #ri;"d at investment grade. ïheAssistant rreasurer informed the commitiãã il.t"t our office remainedconfident in Lehman Brothers. ¡le also inioimed the committee that the poolcontinued to purchase Lehman Brothersi àvernight commerciái p"p", as wellas entered into repurchase agreements with Leñmrn. ft'u .oämíttee wasinformed that the Pool owned-numerous nnánciar securities irom worganstanley, Lehman rothers, union Bank, 

"nJ 
w"il, Fargo, and that our officeremained confiden in these investments uuì would closely monitor LehmanBrothers' The Assistant Treasur"r ru.tnã, nàt"o that there was a nighprobabitity that Le

such as Éarcray,s î::i,lJ î[ iT::ient 
bank

Oversight Committ
and August 200g olio reports for July 2008

as weil ás their then_current market price. 
r the Lehman investments

10'what other pubtic entÌties are you aware of that had investments in LehmanBrothers at the time of the bankruptcy? 
- '

Monterey was the first other county that I was aware of to announce that ithad Lehman exposure. since thai announcement, a number of othercounties hale jo¡ed the gro.up incruding' sãrr"runto, Arameda, Madera,Tuolumne, san Diego anð others Attä"ir*tely twenty california citieshave arso indicated that they rrao r-eñrial'åriorrr".

lv' Galculation of and Accounting for the Lehman Brothers lnvestment Loss.
1 

3:år,:,,!:i:iiî,:È::d 
/osses have been historicatty distributed amons

For at least the.past twenty years, gains and losses have been attributed toeach depositor based on their averäge oaily pàol balance as reported by thecounty's controller and are attributeã to thé iuno balan"u oi eããÀ oepositoron a quarterly basis.

2. /s fhrs consistent with the lnvestment policy?

Yes' The policy mandates that losses ''shall be allocated as othenrvisedescribed in this investment policy." Ïle õoriãv provides that gains or losses

L37



V

Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 19 of22

from investment sales be credited or charged to investment income at the
time of sale' The policy fufther provides thãt gains and losses are to beproportiona each depositor añd each credit
for accrued s and capital gains each heir
average da as reported by the Count ly, the
Policy provi r losses will bê attributed e of
each depositor quafterly.

3. Describe. bd as a result of the Lehman bankruptcy.
Who was arding how to calculate such loss, what
other alte
downfhe /oss as a fofal /oss. 

and why a decision was made to write

The Lehman loss occurred in the quarter ending September 30, 200g. During
this quarter the Pool also made some earnings. My office distributed the
gross earnings proportionately to each particþant and then deducted the
proportionate rata share of the loss to each participant. The net effect of
these transactions was a loss of 4.7o/o against eaih participant based on their
average daily balance for the quarter.

I considered several factors before making my decision to write down the loss
as a total loss' First, if the Treasurer's office continued to recognize a value
in the Lehman investment, we would have to continue to includä it in theportfolio. lf we continued to include it in the portfolio, it would have diluted all
future earníngs because it would have been a non-performing asset,
I'e. earning zerc. Another factor was the potential Äegative 

""tf"ðitf'rtcontinuing e Lel^rman investment would have upon
Pool paftic ond sales. Finally, a failure to write down
the loss du pose pool particijants to the risk that
other participants would withdraw significant funds from the eãol prior to the
complete recognítion of the loss.

Actions Taken by the Treasurer's Office Following The Lehman Brothers
Bankruptcy.

1' Describe ffre sfeps that your office has taken in regards to reevaluating thepool's investments in investment banks in tight of lne Lehman bankruptcy and
other market and financial events.

Consistent with our past practice, we are continuing to evaluate each of the
Pool's investments on a daily basis in light of current market conditions. The

ool has to investment banks is the
in September, we reduced from g160
anley investment is approximately 4.3o/o
21,2008, the federal government

L38



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 20 of 22

allowed Morgan^Stanley to become a bank, allowing it to take in deposits thusbuilding capital. This action dramatically chãnged the basic structure of thecompany' On october 14, Mitsubishi púrchasèd a 20o/oinÌerest ín Morgan
Stanley and the U.S' Treasury Department purclased $10 billion in Morganstanley preferred stock. Mo.rgan stanley's present long term ratings contínueto be "lnvestment grade" ratings in accoidance with the Government codeand its short term ratings remãin investment grade as well.

With respect to the Pool's bank holdings, the Pool currenfly holds investmentst¡ strong A rated california Bank (ownéd'by Mitsubishi Bañk¡,-Ùnion Bank ofCalifornia' Sun Trust and PNC all of which ãre large nR rateo'f¡nancialinstitutions, We are not adding any financial sector investments to the fundwith the exception of the highest raied commercial paper and Certifícates ofDeposits. This office will cõntinue to evaluate each'oi it. inu"stÀents in lightof any developments which may occur.

2' Describe fhe sfeps that your office has taken to address any potential
problems in the portfotio which might present a risk of additional /osses.

Since the Lehman bankruptcy, our office has taken a number of steps toreduce our risk consistent with the Policy's guidelines and state law. First, wehave instituted.an internal operational invesiment limit of sZ. perirrr",
pending consideration of changes to the County lnvestmenreori"y. 1-,i,percentage decrease will ensure a broader divérsification than thé to"lo setforth in the Policy. Finally, as.an on-going process, I continue to work with mystaff to determine additional steps tnãt ca-n be taken to address any potential
problems in the portfolio.

3' What factors should be considered in determining whetherfo esfab/rs h lowerlimits on th.e am.ount of totat poolfunds that can õe investea in aþarticutar
investment vehicle as wellas fhe amount of pool funds that can be investedwith a paftícular issuefl

ln the current financial market, the number of firms that meet the investmentpolicy criteria is greafly reduced. and getting smaller every day. 
-

Consequently, there are fewer firms wittr rni¡.t.' we can choose to invest.
Lowering the limits on investment vehicles and issuers means that we wouldneed more vehicles and more vendors to meet our portfolio requirements.while there.is implied safety in greater diversity there is also the added risk ofhaving to relax our standards toinclude more iisuers and a greater variety ofinstruments to remain fuily invested and profitabre.

4' Describe the effor-ts that are being unde¡'taken in regards to recovering of poolassefs from the bankruptcy, through the federal resôue legislation or otheravenues?

139



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 21 of 22

Within days of the Lehman bankruptcy, we were in contact with officials fromMonterey County because its treasury pool also held Lehman lnstruments.
Like our Board, the Monterey County'Board of Supervisors Jetermined to hirethe Nixon Peabody law firm in New Vork to handle the bankruptcy claims.

ln addition to the officials from Monterey County, I had discussíons with the
finance director from the City of Costa Mesa. We discussed the Lehman lossand began to contact other local agencies that suffered similar losses as aresult of Lehman's collapse. We cóntacted Congresswoman Anna Eshoo
advising her of our situation and a
office is overseeing
efforts have been v
McMillan, who also
California public agencies that suffered a Lehman investment loss, Finally,
this Board, on behalf of the Pool participants, has determined to commence
litigation against the officers and directors of Lehman brothers.

vt. Treasurer's office's on-Going Reporting and providing of lnformation toPoo! Participants.

1. Describe the nat,ure and frequency of your office,s reporfs to the poot
parficipants relating to the investment poticy and the'returns from the
investments.

The Policy provides that the Treasurer will prepare a monthly report for the
county pool participants and members of tñe county treasúry oversight
Comrnittee stating the type of investment, name of the issuer, maturity Oate,par and dollar amount of the investment. For the total pooled investmentfyn{ the report will list average maturity and the market value. ln addition,
the Treasurer shall prepare a quarterly cash flow report which sets forth
projections for revenue inflows, and ir terest earnings as compared to theprojections for the operating and capital outflows oidepositors. This
projection shall be for at least the succeeding 12 months.

The Treasurer's offìce has a permanent mailing list of 76 individual poolpafticipants consist of the earnings
report, year bution, ttre porttãtio,
gaíns and lo comparison of our
projected ex vs. the actual expenditures, a twelve
month cash flow forecast, a comparison of our results vs, LAIF, and a copy of
the current yield curve, ln addition, there are ten other pool participants whoget hard we receive any inquiries from tne'puOLic or
other po receive e-mail copies of tfre reports. Aytradition the schools are sent to the County 

)

148



Honorable Board of Supervisors
Page 22 of 22

superintendent of Schools for them to distribute. All of this information is alsonow available on our web site.

Finally, as set forth above, the Treasury oversight committee, which reviewsand advises the Treasurer on p
quarterly. The appointees to th
participants in the pool, including
County Office of Education. Mínu
participants and the publíc general

2' can more or different types of information be made available in such reporis?

Given the large number of Po.ol participants, it would be problematic to try tomeet differing expectations with regard to piovisions of iÅtorr"iiãn. lnaddition, it would be difficult to rna
software. We are, however, are al
currenily can not give the reque
mind while we work on the next

3. Can the reports be made available online?

Commencing last month, our offtce now posts all pool reports on our website.

cc: John L. Maltbie, County Manager
David Boesch, Assistant Couniy Manager

I4I



142



C/CAG
CITY/CoUNTY ASSoCTATIoN oT GovBRNMENTS

o¡SaNMarEo CouNTy

Atherlon¡BelmontoBrisbaneoBtrrlingameocolmaeDalycityaEastPaloAlro),FosterCityc¡¡oyroonBayc¡¡¡¡¡r6oroughoMenlopark
MillbraecPacifcaoPortolal/alley.ReãwoodCily;SanBrunooSanCarlosnianMoteooSanMateoCounlycsouthsanFranciscocWootlside

November 13,2008

All councilpersons of San Mateo county cities and Members of the Board ofSupervisors

Deborah c. Gordon, chair, citylcounty Association of Governments

VACANCY ON TIIE CONGESTION MANAGEMENT ANI)ENVIRONMENTAL QUAI,ITY COMMITTEE (CMEQ)

Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

If you would like to be considered
elected official for appointment to
Napier through letter, or e-mail at

The city/county Association of Governments (c/cAG) congestion Management andEnvironmental Quality (CMEO committee currently íu, on" vacancy for an elected offìcialfrom city councils and'/or the Board of Supervisors.'Inàirriduals wishing to be considered forappointment to the CMEQ Committee should send a letter of interest to:

Richard Napier, C/CAG Executive Director
CitylCounty Associ ation of Govemments
555 County Center, 5th Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063

or e-mail to slwonq@co.sanmateo.ca.us

Individuals must be an elected official of one of the twenty city councils in San Mateo countyor an elected official. of the County Board of supervisorr. Th" letter of interest should includethe reasons why the individual wishes to be appãinted and any particular experience, background,or qualities that they feel would bring value tå trre cvnq committee. All letters of interest willbe considered by the C/CAG Board.

The congestion Management and Environmentai Quality (cMEe committee provides adviceand recommendations to the fuIl c/cAG Board or, àl -uti"., relating to transportation planning,congestion management, travel demand management, coàrdination oiland usË and transportationplanning' mobile source air quality programs, energy resources and conservation, and other

åiäïffi:Tiljìîîiiå::tng 
the locãt ¡urisdictions io su,' Mateo county rhe rore orthe cMEe

funding for specific proje i Board on the allocation of
committee meets on the last Mo 

ammatic areas' The CMEQ

Mateo City Hall. 
'' e rv rsÙr rvtv m' to 5:00 p'm. in the San

for the CMEe Committee or would like to nominate an
the CMEQ Committee, please submit your request to Richard
the addresses provided at the beginninj of this letter.

555 counry cenrer, 5'h Floor, Redwood ciry, cA 9406:14j,Hon¡: 650.599.1460 F¡x: 650.36r.g22j

ITENT l0.l




